Chief Executive’s Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  The Lonsdale Building  The Courts  Carlisle
Cumbria  CA3 8NA  Fax 01228 226372
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

To: The Council Leader and Members of Cabinet

Agenda
CABINET
A meeting of the Cabinet will be held as follows:
Date:
Time:
Place:

Thursday 24 March 2016
10.00 am
Council Chamber - County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

Dawn Roberts
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Nick Evans
Direct Line:
01228 226367
Email:
nick.evans@cumbria.gov.uk
This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria

1

MEMBERSHIP

Mr SF Young (Leader)
Mrs PA Bell (Deputy Leader)
Mrs A Burns
Mr B Doughty
Mrs C Feeney-Johnson

Ms B Furneaux
Mr KA Little
Mr DE Southward
Mr I Stewart
Mrs J Willis

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Agenda and Reports
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect
prior to the meeting. Copies will also be available at the meeting.
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –
www.cumbria.gov.uk
Background Papers
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

AGENDA
PART 1:
1

ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS
AND PUBLIC

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
2

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item
on the agenda which comprises
1

Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

2

Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

3

Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have
a beneficial interest) and the authority
(a)

Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b)

Which has not been fully discharged.

4

Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5

Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
the authority for a month or longer.

6

Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)
(a)

The landlord is the authority; and

(b)
The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial
interest.
7

Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
(a)

That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the
area of the authority; and

(b)

Either –
(i)

The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii)

If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of
Conduct where these have not already been registered.
Note
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil
partners).
3

MINUTES

To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 4 February 2016
(Pages 7 - 30)
4

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of any item on the agenda.
5

STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL AND CABINET
MEMBERS

To receive statements by the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Members.
6

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

None at this stage
REFERRAL FROM LOCAL COMMITTEES
None for this meeting
REFERRAL FROM SCRUTINY
None for this meeting

CORPORATE ISSUES
7

2015/16 REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT TO 31
DECEMBER 2015

To consider a report from the Chief Executive
(Pages 31 - 36)
8

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT - QUARTER 3 201516

To consider a report from the Chief Executive
(Pages 37 - 84)
DIRECTORATE REPORTS - ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY SERVICES
9

WORKFORCE PLAN 2016-19

To consider a report from the Corporate Director – Environment and Community
Services
(Pages 85 - 106)
10

DRAFT CUMBRIA MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN

To consider a report from the Corporate Director – Environment and Community
Services (copy enclosed)
(Pages 107 - 136)
DIRECTORATE REPORTS - HEALTH AND CARE SERVICES
11

BETTER CARE FUND (BCF)

To consider a report from the Interim Corporate Director – Health and Care Services
(Pages 137 - 142)
DIRECTORATE REPORTS - CHILDREN'S SERVICES
12

APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNORS

To consider a report from the Corporate Director – Children’s Services (copy enclosed)
(Pages 143 - 150)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL
Minutes of a Meeting of the Cabinet held on Thursday, 4
February 2016 at 10.00 am at Committee Room 2, The
Courts, Carlisle, CA3 8NA

PRESENT:
Mr SF Young (Leader)
Mrs PA Bell (Deputy Leader)
Mrs A Burns
Mr B Doughty
Mrs C Feeney-Johnson
Ms B Furneaux
Mr KA Little
Mr DE Southward
Mr I Stewart
In Attendance:
Mr M Wilson
Officers in attendance:
Chief Executive, Corporate Director - Environment and Community
Services, Corporate Director - Children's Services, Chief Fire Officer,
Assistant Director - Corporate Governance, Assistant Director - Finance,
Assistant Director - Health and Well Being (Director of Public Health)
Senior Manager - Legal and Democratic Services,Democratic Services
Manager and Communications Manager
The Leadership Support Officers for
Conservative Groups were in attendance.

the

Liberal

Democrat

PART 1 ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE
OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

117

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None on this occasion.
118

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

7

and

There were no disclosures of interest for this meeting.
119

MINUTES

RESOLVED, that, subject to the correction of a typographical error at
minute 114 (Award of New Capital Funded Core Highways
Surfacing Contracts – Capital Programme and Property) by
in the resolution at the third bullet point substituting for the
South Area the name of the company awarded the contract
from Hanson Contracting to Aggregate Industries as set out
in the report the minutes of the meeting held on 17
December 2015, be confirmed as a correct record and
signed by the Chair.
120

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be excluded from the meeting
during consideration of Agenda Item No 17 – Whitehaven
Educational Campus (Outline Business Case) as it contained
exempt information relating to financial or business affairs
of any particular person (including the authority holding
that information) by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
121

STATEMENTS BY THE
CABINET MEMBERS

LEADER

OF

THE

COUNCIL

AND

The Leader advised members that this was the first Cabinet meeting
since the tragic death of Cabinet Member for Environment, John
McCreesh in January.
As per the established protocol the Council
meeting on 18 February 2016 would hear the formal tributes but the
Leader asked the meeting to stand in one minutes silent tribute in
memory of Mr McCreesh.
The Leader updated Cabinet on progress on the prospective Cumbria
devolution deal advising that a delegation had been invited to London to
meet with Lord Jim O’Neill for further discussions. He confirmed that
Cumbria and the government were currently a distance apart but
negotiations continued.
The Leader referred to the estimate of the cost of repair bill following the
recent floods which stood at £500m and catalogued the funding promised
by government so far which whilst most welcome was a fraction of what
was required. He confirmed that he would be seeking meetings with
Ministers whilst in London and was hopeful of an early announcement to
enable the reinstatement works to proceed in earnest.

2

8

The Cabinet Member for Health and Care Services made an
announcement that Cumbria County Council had been selected as one of
8 Councils nationally to take part in a national Department of Health
Programme known as ‘Social Work for Better Mental Health’. This
programme had been developed in recognition of the key role that Social
Workers play in improving the lives of people with serious mental
illnesses. We will now be working alongside other Councils to undertake
a self-assessment and will be working jointly with service users to plan
how we can make improvements together. As an implementation site
the Council would help contribute case studies of what had worked in
integrated working, how to build a strong Social Work profession and
help to show others how this could be improved.
The Cabinet Member for Public Health and Community Services was
pleased to offer congratulations to those organisations which had been
shortlisted in the Visit England Tourism Awards in a number of
categories.
The Cabinet Member for Schools and Learning announced that the
Cumbrian elections to the UK Youth Parliament had been moved to May
2016 in view of the disruption caused by the floods.
122

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Helen Wilson asked the following question in respect of Lazonby Fire
Station:
‘The IRMP quotes that CFRS appliance aims to have an appliance to
property fires in 15 minutes 80% of the time, however the 3 nearest
stations have a minimum drive time of 15 minutes. The CFRS risk review
actually quotes an average travel time of over 18 minute for appliances
to reach Lazonby, it doesn’t add up – this is contradictory. Also, this
doesn’t take in to account the turnout time it takes for the crew to be
mobilized which is up to 5 minutes for retained personnel. One of the
more worrying statements is that Alston can get to Lazonby within 21
minutes. As Lazonby is unique and has only one engine within 8 miles
and provides cover to such a huge area, should the county council not
review Lazonby independently due to the fact CFRS will meet a response
time of 15 minutes 0% of the time? Which contradicts the IRMP.’
Andrew Thomson made the statement below and asked the following
question in respect of Lazonby Fire Station:
Back in 2014 after the last cuts were opposed Barry Doughty, Cabinet
Member for the Fire Service, said: “The fire and rescue service is one of

9

3

the council’s life or death services, so I’ve not been surprised that our
proposals generated a high level of public interest. At a time when we
hear so many stories about public apathy, it’s been encouraging to see
local people making their voices heard.
“Cabinet has listened carefully to views put forward during the
consultation and has concluded,
despite the huge impact of the
service’s fire prevention work, not to proceed with the changes as
originally proposed.
This consultation has generated a huge amount of public feedback and
I’d like to commend people on the time and effort they have put in to
participating.”
Patricia Bell (Lib Dem, Penrith), Cabinet Member for Public Health and
Community Services, said she was “absolutely delighted” that a way had
been found for the second Penrith pump to be retained. She said the
concerns of the community had been listened to and it was vital that the
public had confidence in the blue light services which were provided.
Again this time the public have shown growing concern over the closure
of Lazonby fire station with over 5000 signatures collected. The public
have also been in voice at the recent flood action group meetings
stressing how important the response was ad that communities are at
risk with the closure.
There has also been fantastic support from various political leaders who's
parties have managed to overturn closures of stations in other counties!
But on top of that Theresa May is taking control of the fire service would
it not make sense to let her be the face of the closures as ultimately
when it goes wrong the people who close he stations will be held
responsible in the eyes of the public!!
Are the council taking note of the public and the concerns they have
raised with regards the closure of the fire station and are they looking at
Lazonby independently and the risk involved with the closure of the
station?
The Cabinet Member for Fire, Public Safety and Central Support Services
formally received a petition containing 1845 signatures submitted by
Claire Hevey opposing the proposals to close Staveley Fire Station . He
thanked the petitioners, Ms Wilson and Mr Thomson for their questions in
relation to the fire savings proposals and advised he would be making a
statement later in the meeting in relation to the item on the Integrated
Risk Management Plan which would answer the points raised.

4

10

123

SCRUTINY REVIEW - LEARNING DISABILITES

a

Scrutiny Review – Learning Disability Services

Mr Wilson presented the report which outlined for members the findings
of the Learning Disability Services Task and Finish Group which had
examined how the service worked for people, the direction of travel and
any improvements which could be made.
Members were invited to consider the seven of eight recommendations
made in the report which applied to the Council.
b

Response to Scrutiny Review – Learning Disability Services

The Director of Public Health thanked the Task and Finish Group for their
work and presented the response to the findings of the Learning
Disability Services Task and Finish Group and the Health and Care
Directorate response. Recommendations 1-6 set out in the report were
accepted by the directorate with just recommendation 7 not being
accepted as it was considered that the market itself was best placed to
shift, respond and develop to emerging needs and provide for necessary
progression.
RESOLVED, that the responses to the Learning Disability Services Task
Group recommendations as set out in the report be
approved.
124

COUNCIL PLAN 2016 - 2019

The Chief Executive introduced a report which presented the draft Council
Plan 2016-2019 as Appendix 1 and asked Cabinet Members to endorse
the draft for recommendation to Council. Draft priorities for the Council
were published on 22 October as the basis for consultation with the
public, partners and staff. This ended on 22 January 2016. A summary of
the feedback received in respect of the draft Council Plan 2016-2019 was
included as Appendix 2.
The Chief Executive highlighted the unprecedented challenges which
faced the Council in reshaping to deliver the further £76m of savings
required over the coming three years in addition to the task of flood
recovery. The Council Plan presented showed a reduced number of
priorities but would deliver the largest capital programme ever and
include investment which would provide savings in future years.
The Leader referred to the feedback to the consultation exercise noting
that this had commenced before the floods. The impact of the events

11

5

would be dealt with over the coming years and coincide with no grant
being received from government by 2020 by which time the transition to
the local retention of business rates would be complete. This itself would
create difficulties due to its volatile nature linked to the ups and downs of
the economy and the inequity present in the distribution of industry/big
business in the country.
RESOLVED, that

125

(1)

the draft Council Plan as presented in Appendix 1 for
RECOMMENDATION to Council be endorsed;

(2)

the outcomes of the public engagement process that
relate to Council priorities in the Council Plan be
noted, and the responses set out in Appendix 2 be
agreed;

(3)

authority be delegated to the Chief Executive to make
necessary amendments to the draft Council Plan in
consultation with the Leader and Deputy Leader of the
Council, prior to its consideration by Council on 18
February 2016.

CUMBRIA FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE INTEGRATED RISK
MANAGEMENT PLAN AND ASSOCIATED ACTION PLAN

The Chief Fire Officer introduced a report which presented the draft
Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) 2016-2020 as Appendix 1 and
asked Cabinet Members to endorse the draft for recommendation to
Council.
It also presented a draft Action Plan as Appendix 2 and asked Cabinet
Members to endorse the draft for recommendation to Council.
The draft IRMP and draft Action Plan for the Council were published on 22
October as the basis for consultation with the public, partners and staff.
This ended on 22 January 2016. A summary of the feedback received in
respect of the draft IRMP and Action Plan was included as Appendix 3a.
The Cabinet Member for Fire, Public Safety and Central Support Services
advised that he recommended to Cabinet that the draft Integrated Risk
Management Plan was endorsed and progresses to Council on 18
February for agreement. The IRMP was an assessment of risk, and
provided a sound basis on which to plan and deliver the activities of the
Fire and Rescue Service.

6

12

In relation to the Action Plan, he confirmed that the officer
recommendation to endorse it was made using solid evidence and advice,
and reflected the ever reducing number of incidents, which had halved
over the last 11 years. He advised however that following the recent
floods and also; the announcement by Theresa May MP regarding the
movement of Government responsibilities relating to fire services from
the Department of Communities and Local Government to the Home
Office, that he had taken the view that now was not the right time to
consider closures given the uncertainties ahead. He recommended that
the closures of 4 stations, the relocation of the Walney on-call fire engine
to Barrow fire station and the removal of the second on-call fire engine
from Maryport not be taken forward. Cabinet were advised that not
taking forward these changes, meant that the associated saving of £300K
for 2016/17 would still need to be identified for the Cabinet to be able to
recommend to Council a balanced budget for 2016/17 and this increased
to £405K from 2017/18 and beyond. This would need to be addressed
when Cabinet considered the budget paper.
The Cabinet Member then moved an amendment to the published
recommendations, as follows….
recommendation 3.1 stands, unchanged.
recommendation 3.2 to be amended such that the draft Action Plan for
2016/17 is not endorsed, and as a consequence do not recommend the
implementation of the associated savings to the Fire and Rescue Service
Budget.
recommendation 3.3 be amended to acknowledge that Appendix 3a will
need to be amended to reflect the decision not to endorse the draft
Action Plan.
Recommendation 3.4 be amended to remove reference to the draft
Action Plan.
The formal wording of the amendment was circulated for Cabinet’s
consideration and was made available to members of the public and
press in the room.
Cabinet welcomed the statement by the Cabinet Member and
acknowledged that, whilst difficult decisions remained to be made, this
served as an example of the Council listening and responding to the
views of the public received as part of the consultation process.
RESOLVED, that Cabinet

13

7

126

(1)

endorse the draft IRMP 2016-20 as presented in
Appendix 1 for recommendation to Council;

(2)

do not endorse the draft Action Plan for 2016/17 as
presented in Appendix 2 for recommendation to
Council, and as a consequence, do not recommend
the implementation of the associated savings to the
Fire and Rescue Service budget 2016/17;

(3)

note the outcomes of the public engagement process
that relate to the draft IRMP and Action Plan as set
out in Appendices 3a to 3c, and agree the proposed
responses, subject to amendment to Appendix 3a to
reflect the Cabinet’s decision not to endorse the draft
Action Plan;

(4)

delegate authority to the Corporate Director
Environment and Community Services to make
necessary amendments to the draft IRMP in
consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader and
Portfolio Holder for Fire, Public Safety and Central
Support Services prior to its consideration by Council
on 18 February.

COMMISSIONING STRATEGY FOR CARE AND
DELIVERED BY ADULT SOCIAL CARE 2015 – 2020

SUPPORT

The Director of Public Health presented Cabinet with Cumbria County
Council’s Commissioning Strategy for Care and Support delivered by
Adult Social Care 2016 - 2020 (Appendix 1).
A draft of the Commissioning Strategy had been published as the basis
for consultation with key stakeholders and formed part of the broader
consultation on the priorities for the Council Plan and Budget proposals
that took place between 22 October 2015 and 22 January 2016.
A draft of the Extra Care Housing Strategy was also consulted on during
this period. The Commissioning Strategy provided the overarching
direction for the Extra Care Housing Strategy.
A summary of the feedback received on the draft Commissioning
Strategy was included as Appendix 2 to the report.
The Strategy identified that needs and demand for services were growing
at a time of unprecedented financial challenge, and that the council

8

14

needed a new approach to working with stakeholders to reduce the gap
between demand and affordability.
The Strategy proposed to work on three broad fronts.




To reduce and divert demand.
To promote independence, supported by reablement, recovery,
rehabilitation, equipment and technology for people who do
need services.
To strengthen services for those with the most complex needs
by working proactively with the NHS to plan for and meet
needs.

The Strategy proposed a new model of care in Cumbria that meant
people would be supported earlier, allowing them to make the most of
their health and independence, and to avoid recourse to high-level care
for as long as possible.
The Strategy set out how the authority would do this within the context
of





Significant demographic growth
Unprecedented financial challenge
Increased expectations under the Care Act 2014
Demand from those who receive care and
individualised, personal service approaches

support

for

During the life of the Strategy the council would engage in a major
transformation and improvement programme for adult social care. This
programme would be based on strong analysis of frontline services,
commissioning knowledge and strategic planning, and would involve the
following:






Supporting partner organisations to innovate and adopt
established best practice
Recognising the potential of new providers as an important
source of innovation
Encouraging players at the local level to test new models of
care
Decommissioning less effective models of care
Providing a clear framework for Social Workers and
Occupational Therapists to make decisions and develop support
plans.

The Commissioning Strategy was a critical part of this transformation
programme, and would form the foundation for changes to adult social

15

9

care to ensure that the council was meeting the needs of the population
of Cumbria, fulfilling its statutory duties, and making best use of the
resources available.
The Cabinet Member for Health and Care Services thanked officers for
their work in producing the strategy and endorsed the views expressed
by the Leader that government did not acknowledge the additional costs
associated with delivering services in a large rural county.
RESOLVED, that Cumbria County Council’s Commissioning Strategy for
Care and Support delivered by Adult Social Care (2016 –
2020) be approved.
127

EXTRA
CARE
PROGRAMME

HOUSING

STRATEGY

AND

DELIVERY

The Director of Public Health introduced a report which presented Cabinet
with Cumbria’s Extra Care Housing and Supported Living Strategy (20162025) at Appendix 1, and sought approval of the Strategy and the
proposed major programme to secure more Extra Care and Supported
Living accommodation for Cumbria.
A draft of the Extra Care Housing Strategy was published as the basis for
consultation with key stakeholders. This formed part of a broader
consultation on the priorities for the Council Plan and Budget proposals
that took place between 22 October 2015 and 22 January 2016.
A draft Commissioning Strategy was also consulted on during this period,
which provides the overarching direction for the Extra Care Housing
Strategy.
A summary of the feedback received on the Extra Care Housing Strategy
was included as Appendix 2.
The Strategy set out the commissioning intentions that would deliver the
strategic actions in Cumbria’s Commissioning Strategy for Care and
Support delivered by Adult Social Care (2016-2020). These were:




Increasing the supply of Extra Care and other supported
housing.
Increasing the use of ‘support at home’ services for Older
People with lower-level eligible needs.
A reduction in overall number of placements of Older People in
residential and nursing care, with priority given to people with
high-level needs.

10

16

As identified in the Commissioning Strategy, needs and demand for
services were growing at a time of unprecedented financial challenge.
That Strategy proposed a new model of care that means people would be
supported earlier, allowing them to make the most of their health and
independence, and avoid recourse to high-level care for as long as
possible. Extra Care Housing and Supported Living were key elements of
this model of care.
The strategic commissioning intentions within the Extra Care Housing
Strategy state that the Council should do the following.


Accelerate the process to develop sufficient Extra Care Housing
to meet the needs of people who do not need highest-level
residential/nursing care over the next decade. Efficiencies
driven through increased Extra Care use would support the
ongoing challenges of additional demand and increased cost of
care.



Work with District Councils to identify any traditional sheltered
accommodation that could be remodelled to meet higher-level
needs or re-designed for alternative use.



Work with partner councils, developers, housing partners, and
the HCA to develop more schemes where people have their
own accommodation rather than residential care or shared
housing, with the intention that more people move into
mainstream housing or supported living.

This Strategy proposed the development of Extra Care housing in
Cumbria at scale and pace for the next five years until 2021-22, with the
intention that the rate of development should continue until 2025.
It also proposed a programme of in-depth work for people with learning
disabilities to identify those in residential care and existing Supported
Living accommodation who would benefit from moving to improved
accommodation.
The Cabinet Member for Health and Care Services endorsed the Strategy
and acknowledged the opportunity to consider its linkages with the
armed forces covenant to mutual advantage.
RESOLVED, that the Extra Care Housing and Supported Living Strategy
2016-2025 be approved.

17

11

128

DRAFT BUDGET, MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2016-2019
AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME.

The Chief Executive and the Assistant Director – Finance introduced a
report which presented to Cabinet the draft Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP) 2016-2019. The report also set out the proposed :




Revenue spending plans to achieve a balanced budget in
2016/17
Council Tax Requirement for 2016/17
Draft Capital Programme for 2016 – 2021
Draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17

Cabinet was asked to consider the recommendations set out in Section 3
in making its Budget proposal (Revenue and Capital) to Council for
Council to consider at its meeting on 18th February 2016.
The Budget Proposal had been prepared against a backdrop of:





Uncertainty (in relation to the draft Grant Settlement from
Government and estimates of local income from Council Tax
and Business Rates);
Continuing austerity in public finances (the Council had agreed
£153million of savings to its annual budgets since 1st April
2011). A requirement for further savings of £76m for 2016-19
were set out in the report;
Increasing pressures upon key local services, in particular, care
for the elderly and care for vulnerable adults and children; and
Recovery from extensive flooding experienced in December
2015 and further flooding incidents.

The Medium Term Financial Plan was the financial expression of the new
Council Plan 2016 – 2019. Taken together they demonstrated how the
Council intended to align its priorities with its resources to deliver
outcomes for the people of Cumbria for the next three financial years,
2016/17 to 2018/19.
Strategic planning of Council services continued to be undertaken against
a backdrop of reductions in funding from Government compounded by
the impact of the recent floods.
The costs associated with the flooding incidents in 2015 continued to be
established, but the initial estimate (presented to the Council at its
meeting in January 2016) was that the overall cost for both response and
recovery across all public sector agencies in Cumbria was estimated at
£465million. To date Government had announced financial support for

12

18

the business and community recovery schemes, this was estimated at
£51m. There had also been an initial £35m announced from DfT to
support the priority infrastructure schemes and £2m announced to
support work on surveys and investigative work to establish the level of
damage. The latest announcement was for £2m to fund recovery work for
Rights of Way in the Lake District National Park. Although this was
welcomed, there was a significant gap between announced funding and
expected need. The recovery shortfall was not addressed in this Revenue
Budget proposal.
The total funding available for the Council to deliver its services
continued to reduce, as the government continued to seek, through its
austerity programme, to bring the nation’s annual spending below annual
income down and reduce the national debt. The level of funding restraint
meant that difficult decisions would have to continue to be made by the
Council.
The Government set out its spending plans for the next four years as part
of the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) in November 2015. It
confirmed that for Local Government by 2020 the link between need
(demand) and funding would be broken and replaced by local sources of
finance such as Council Tax, Business Rates and Fees & Charges. The
Revenue Budget Proposal for 2016/17 indicated that the proportion (or
ratio) of revenue grants from government to locally generated income
would be 40:60. As an illustration, in 2011/12, the proportion was 51:49.
This emphasis on the ability of an area to raise income to fund local
services was a significant shift in Government thinking. The core Revenue
Grant from government would continue to reduce, in 2011/12 the RSG
received was £158million, by 2020, the Council expected it to be £0. This
was when the government expected the national finances to be in
balance. The Draft Grant Settlement received on 17th December
indicated Cumbria’s 2016/17 RSG grant would be £58.558m.
At the time of writing the report, the RSG grant for 2016/17 remained
unconfirmed, and various other supplementary grant announcements
were awaited. Also, there was an element of uncertainty in relation to
Council Tax and locally retained Business Rates income. Final figures
would be received from District Councils at the end of January, in
accordance with Department of Communities and Local Government
requirements.
CSR also set out the flexibility for those Councils who had responsibilities
for Adult Social Care, (which in Cumbria, was the County Council), to
raise further local revenue from Council Tax, by increasing Council Tax by
up to an additional 2% to be spent entirely on adult social care.

19

13

Government had assumed that councils would introduce the new social
care precept every year and had reduced the RSG accordingly. Cabinet
was asked to consider recommending to Council that the Council seeks to
levy a 2% adult social care precept for 2016/17 to meet these continuing
and significant responsibilities. The MTFP assumed this 2% precept was
agreed every year for the three years.
The Draft Commissioning Strategy for Care and Support set out clearly
that the ‘super-aging’ population of the County presented particular
service and funding challenges for the Council.
Consultation on the draft budget commenced on 22nd October 2015.
Sessions had been held with Trade Unions, Business and Voluntary
Sector and other key stakeholders. The consultation closed on the 22nd
January 2016. The summary of the responses received from the
consultation was set out for Cabinet to consider, in Appendix D.
Table 1 below set out the funding challenge facing the Council. In total
£76million of savings would need to be delivered from 2016/17 to
2018/19 which was in addition to the £153million identified between
2011/12 to 2015/16.
The savings forecast (before CSR and the assessment of budget
pressures) outlined to Council in September 2015 indicated £80m would
be required to be found between 2016/17 to 2018/19. Therefore, this
was an improvement in the overall position – but the MTFP (2016-2019)
assumed that the additional 2% precept for Adult Social Care was levied
every year from local Council Tax payers.
Overall it was projected the Council would have to deliver revenue (i.e.
annual budget) savings of £229m compared to 2011/12.
Table 1 – Summary of
Saving

Existing Savings
already identified
New Savings identified
Savings still to find
Total Savings
Total Savings

2011/12 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Total
Savings
To
2015/16
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
152.983
19.834
5.374
0 178.191
0
0
152.983
152.983

25.626
0
45.460

(3.809)
16.899
18.464
76.476

(0.008)
21.809
12.560
29.459
12.552 229.459
229.459

The savings required to be delivered in 2016/17 were £45.5million; split
between £19.8million already secured from Council decisions from

14

20

previous years, and new savings of £25.6million, subject to Cabinet’s
consideration, to be introduced from 1st April 2016.
Some of the new savings for 2016/17 were one-off savings and so
resulted in the permanent level of new savings identified by 2018/19 of
£21.809m.
A budget planning gap remained for years 2 and 3 of the MTFP (201619). There were savings still to find of £16.899m estimated for 2017/18
and an additional £12.560m for 2018/19. This represents a total of
£29.459m of new savings the Council would need to identify for the two
remaining years of the next MTFP (2016 – 2019), based on current
planning assumptions.
The Council needed to continue to invest in its infrastructure and assets
to be able to deliver local services. The draft CCC Capital Programme for
2016/17 is £119.151m (inclusive of £9.034m of new schemes proposed
in the report). This was set within an overall CCC capital programme of
£291.160m over the five years 2016/17 – 2020/21. Overall the total of
all new schemes proposed was £29.424m. £2.5m of this was profiled to
spend in 2015/16 resulting in £26.924m of new schemes in 2016/17 –
2020/21. Details were contained in section 7 of the report and within the
MTFP.
In agreeing the Budget for 2016/17, the Council would also be required
to agree its Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17. The proposed
strategy outlined the Council’s approach to cash management, long-term
borrowing and investment of cash and this was set out in Appendix F.
Cabinet was asked to recommend to Council to agree the Fees and
Charges Schedule (set out in Appendix E) and to inform Council of the
allocation of budgets to Local Committees (set out in Appendix G).
In proposing the draft Budget to Cabinet, the Assistant Director -Finance,
in her capacity as the Council’s Section 151 Officer had considered the
robustness of the estimates used in determining the 2016/17 Budget,
MTFP and Council Tax requirement for 2016/17 and the adequacy of
Council reserves to meet the known financial risks facing the Council over
the medium term. The MTFP assumed the level of General Fund Balance
(i.e. general revenue reserves) was no less than £13m.
In summary, the draft Revenue Budget proposed for 2016/17
(expenditure less specific grants and fees and charges) was £372.066m.
The draft budget was based on the assumption that there was a 1.99%
increase to the County Council’s element of Council Tax for 2016/17 and
a further increase of 2.00% for the new Adult Social Care precept.

21

15

The report asked Cabinet to consider recommending to Council that it
agree to increase Council Tax therefore, in total by 3.99% for 2016/17.
For a Band D property this represented an increase of £47.26 in the year
or a 91 pence increase per week.
The Deputy Leader thanked officers and members for their work in
pulling together a budget in very challenging circumstances. In the light
of the amendment of the IRMP and the decision not to take the Fire and
Rescue Service Savings proposals the Deputy Leader moved an
amendment to the recommendations published in the report in the
following terms:
Amend recommendation at para 3.4 (d) to read:d)

Subject to Cabinet’s decision at 3.4a and 3.4b Cabinet
considers recommending to Council a Budget for 2016/17 that
is based on accepting the updated budget proposals as set out
in the report except for those savings associated with the draft
IRMP Action Plan 2016-17 totalling £300,000 in respect of the
Fire and Rescue Service budget 2016-17 with this to be funded
from the Revenue Contingency Budget 2016-17.
The
amendments are set out in the budget revision schedule
attached. As a consequence this will increase the budget gap
in 2017-18 and 2018-19 as set out in the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP).

And amend recommendation at 3.6 (a) to read as follows
3.6 Cabinet to consider recommending to Council :(a)

The draft Medium Term Financial Plan 2016-2019
(Appendix A) subject to the necessary amendments to
reflect the decision not to take forward savings
associated with the draft Integrated Risk Management
Plan (IRMP) Action Plan and the Fire and Rescue Service.

The Leader endorsed the proposal put forward by the Deputy Leader
noting that the raise in the precept for Adult Social Care would simply
address that grant from government which was to be withdrawn. Were
the Council not to raise these funds over the next three years it would
find itself some £12m worse off. Members commented that these funds
would still not plug the estimated national shortfall of £700m for adult
social care (the 2% was estimated to raise £400m).
RESOLVED, that

16

22

(1)

Cabinet considers the response to the Budget
consultation set out in Appendix D and the EIA’s and
the advice of the Chief Executive.

(2)

Cabinet RECOMMENDS to Council the general
increase of Council Tax by 1.99% for 2016/17.

(3)

Cabinet RECOMMENDS to Council the additional
precept for Adult Social Care of 2.00% for 2016/17.

(4)

as Cabinet approves the proposal to RECOMMEND
both the Adult Social Care precept 2% and the
general Council Tax increase of 1.99% this results in
Cabinet RECOMMENDING the following:(a)

the draft Net Revenue Budget Requirement for
2016/17 of £372.066m;

(b)

the Council Tax Requirement for 2016/17 of
£200.939m which results in the precepts on the
Districts as set out below:-

Table 2 – Precepts
Allerdale
Barrow
Carlisle
Copeland
Eden
South Lakeland
Total
(c)

£
35,821,124
22,382,826
39,143,076
24,594,769
24,218,951
54,778,494
200,939,240

the following levels of Council Tax for each
property band as set out below:Table 3– Council Tax Levels
2016/
2015/
Increase
17
16
(pa) £
£
£
Band A (up to £40,000)
789.74
821.25
31.51
Band
B
(£40,001
to
921.36
958.12
36.76
£52,000)
Band
C
(£52,001
to 1,095.0 1,052.9
42.01
£68,000)
0
9
Band
D
(£68,001
to 1,231.8 1,184.6
47.26
£88,000)E
7 1,447.8
1
Band
(£88,001
to 1,505.6
57.76
£120,000)
2
6
Band
F
(£120,001
to 1,779.3 1,711.1
68.27
£160,000)
7
0
Band
G
(£160,001
to 2,053.1 1,974.3
78.77
£320,000)
2
5

23

17

Band
over)

H
(d)

(£320,001

and

2,463.7 2,369.2
94.52
4
2
subject to Cabinet’s decision at 3.4a and 3.4b
Cabinet considers recommending to Council a
Budget for 2016/17 that is based on accepting
the updated budget proposals as set out in the
report except for those savings associated with
the draft IRMP Action Plan 2016-17 totalling
£300,000 in respect of the Fire and Rescue
Service budget 2016-17 with this to be funded
from the Revenue Contingency Budget 2016-17.
The amendments are set out in the budget
revision schedule attached. As a consequence
this will increase the budget gap in 2017-18 and
2018-19 as set out in the Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP);

(5)

Cabinet agrees the detailed Local Committee revenue
budget allocations of £7.989m and capital allocations
of £21.557m as set out in Appendix G, subject to
agreement of the total Council budget;

(6)

Cabinet RECOMMEND to Council :(a)

the draft Medium Term Financial Plan 20162019 (Appendix A) subject to the necessary
amendments to reflect any decision not to take
forward savings associated with the draft
Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) Action
Plan and the Fire and Rescue Service.

(b)

the draft CCC Capital Budget for 2016/17 of
£119.151m, set within the rolling programme of
£291.160m (2016-2021).

(c)

the School’s Budget for 2016/17 of £332.536m.

(d)

the use of reserves and levels of forecast
reserves contained in the MTFP.

(e)

the fees and charges schedule for 2016/17 as
set out in Appendix E.

(f)

the adoption and publication of the statutory
Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 set out in
Appendix H. This sets the minimum hourly rate

18

24

at the UK Living Wage (as set by the Living
Wage Foundation) at £8.25 per hour in 2016/17
for all employees (not just those over 25 as
covered by the National Living Wage).
(7)

(8)

129

Cabinet RECOMMEND to Council the approval of the
Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17 which is
set out in Appendix F, specifically the :(a)

Treasury Management Strategy at Appendix F
(Section 4) (including the borrowing strategy is
set out in Section 4.4).

(b)

Annual Investment Strategy
Appendix F (Section 5).

(c)

Prudential Indicators at Appendix F Section 6.

(d)

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Statement at Appendix F Section 7.

Statement

at

Policy

To delegate to the Assistant Director - Finance
(Section 151 Officer) in consultation with the Leader
and Deputy Leader revisions to the Draft Budget and
Medium Term Financial Plan (2016-2019) and Capital
Programme (2016-2021) between the Cabinet
meeting at which this report is considered and the
Council meeting of 18th February 2016.

EMERGENCY EXEMPTIONS FROM CONTRACT PROCEDURE
RULES

The Assistant Director – Corporate Governance presented for information
a report which set out the authorisation of the procurement of goods and
services in accordance with paragraph 2.15 of the Council’s Contract
Procedure Rules as set out in the attached table in the report.
RESOLVED, that the actions taken and expenditure incurred by the
Corporate Directors under paragraph 2.15 of the Contract
Procedure Rules as a result of storm Desmond be noted.
130

NDA
DRAFT
STRATEGY
PROPOSED RESPONSE

CONSULTATION

DOCUMENT:-

The Assistant Director – Corporate Governance presented a report which
advised that the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) was

25

19

consulting on its third 5 year strategy which would take effect on 1 April
2016. The strategy set NDA’s overall priorities across its estate including
the Sellafield site and the Low Level Waste Repository. Agreed priorities
would shape the NDA’s Annual Business Plans that allocate funding for
decommissioning, waste management, asset management and
commercial activities. Annual Business Plans were subject to a separate
consultation.
The report summarised the key points from the draft strategy
consultation document and set out the proposed response to key
questions posed by the NDA.
RESOLVED, the consultation response set out in Appendix 1 and the
covering letter in Appendix 2 to the report be endorsed.
131

BAE SYSTEMS SITE REDEVELOPMENT
PLANNING PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT

PROGRAMME

-

The Corporate Director – Environment and Community Services reported
on BAE Systems embarking upon a major investment programme at their
Barrow facility. The Site Redevelopment Programme (SRP) comprised of
32 individual projects with the investment being in the region of £400
million. BAE Systems had already submitted, and had approved, a
number of significant planning applications in relation to the SRP.
However, there was still a significant amount of resource required from
the County Council to work with Barrow Borough Council to discharge the
conditions associated with the planning permissions to enable BAE
Systems to start on site.
In order to formalise and improve the collaborative working with BAE to
facilitate delivery of their Successor programme, it was proposed to have
a Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) between BAE, the County
Council and Barrow Borough Council. It was considered prudent for the
County Council to be a co-signatory to the PPA, given the statutory need
to respond to the consultations and the scale of the likely effects of the
development, especially from a Highways Authority perspective.
The report recommended that the County Council entered into a PPA with
BAE Systems and Barrow Borough Council in relation to the Successor
Submarine Manufacturing Programme.
RESOLVED, in principle agree to the Council being a co-signatory to the
Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) with BAE Systems
and Barrow Borough Council, and authority being delegated
to negotiate the detailed terms of the PPA to the Corporate
Director – Environment and Community Services in

20

26

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environment and
the Section 151 Officer.
132

EDEN DISTRICT COUNCIL LOCAL PLAN - PRE -SUBMISSION
(REGULATION 19)

The Corporate Director – Environment and Community Services
presented a report which informed Cabinet Members about the
consultation on Eden District Council’s Local Plan 2014-2032 (“the Local
Plan”) Proposed Submission Draft (Regulation 19 Consultation).
Members were asked to consider the issues outlined in the report and
agree that the full responses set out in Appendices A, B, C and the Local
Member comments in Appendix D be forwarded to Eden District Council.
In order to meet Eden District Council’s timescales to submit their draft
Local Plan to the Secretary of State by the end of 2015, Officers
submitted a holding response on 30th November 2015. Eden District
Council was informed that the holding response was subject to
ratification by Cabinet (as required by the County Council’s constitution).
The Council had sought to be actively involved in the development of the
Local Plan. This engagement had helped to positively shape its content in
line with matters relevant to the County Council. Therefore, from the
Council’s perspective the Plan should be welcomed because it:



broadly meets with the Council’s overall vision and priorities,
gives weight to the delivery of necessary infrastructure to
support the delivery of housing and employment sites.

Notwithstanding the positive aspects of the Local Plan detailed in
paragraph 1.3, the County Council raised an objection in relation to the
allocation of school playing fields as Public Open Space.
In addition it was considered that there were a number of areas which
required greater clarity or improvement. These were as follows:




Concern was expressed about the lack of allocations within Key
Hubs.
Greater clarity should be provided in relation to the size and
type of development at the Newton Rigg Campus.
Sites that the Council had previously put forward to be
included as allocations within the Local Plan should be
considered for inclusion.

27

21



Amendments should be made to policies relating to
infrastructure to explicitly identify contribution obligations that
may be sought.

The Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport endorsed the draft
response and on the proposal to include further comments on Extra care
Housing and Safer Walking Routes to School.
RESOLVED, that the strategic response outlined in the report be
endorsed and the technical response contained in
Appendices A, B and C and the views of Eden Local
Committee contained in Appendix D be agreed and
forwarded to Eden District Council to assist the ongoing
development of their Local Plan.
PART 2 ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE
PRESS AND PUBLIC
133

WHITEHAVEN EDUCATIONAL CAMPUS (OUTLINE BUSINESS
CASE)

The Corporate Director – Environment and Community Services
introduced a report which set out the Outline Business Case (OBC) for
the proposed Whitehaven Campus. The OBC set out the accommodation
options, the preferred option, estimated cost, the funding package and
the recommended procurement route and delivery timetable.
The Cabinet Members for Economic Development and Property and
Schools and Learning spoke in support of the proposals which would
transform the delivery of education in Whitehaven.
RESOLVED, that
(1)

Cabinet note the position with regard to the funding
package;

(2)

the Outline Business Case and commencement of the
procurement of the Design and Build Contract be
approved.

(3)

Cabinet
authorise
the
Corporate
Director
of
Environment and Community Services in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Economic Development
and Property to enter into a preconstruction services
agreement subject to completed funding agreements.

22

28

The meeting ended at 12.30 pm

29

23

This page is intentionally left blank

O
N

O

Virements Permanent or
Temporary

31

APPROVED BUDGET COUNTY
COUNCIL 19 FEB 2015
Quarter 3 14/15 Adjustments not
included in model
Transfer of budget for QA Support
Team
Transfer to Resources for HR
Transfer to Resources for Legal
BP4W Savings
Utilities Inflation allocated to
Resources
Quarter 4 14/15 Adjustments not
included in model
January
Transfer of budget from Health to
Resources for performance team
full year effect
Transfer of 14/15 inflation budget
from Fire Services to Resources
for Fire PFI
Transfer from Environment to
Resources Performance & Risk
team (full year effect)
Transfer of contract savings from
Corporate Budgets to Resources
Health & Care Services cover pay
award (Full year effect)
Transfer of Policy staff from Fire to
Resources
February
Centralisation of ICT, mobile phone,
vehicle fuel chgs (Full Year Effect)
Transfer of budget from Childrens
and Fire to Resources for
centralisation of policy budget (Full
Year Effect)
Transfer of budget for ADTransformation (Full Year)
Transfer of Cultural Grants and
CDC budgets from Resources to
Environment & Community Services
Sub Total for Budget Upload
Quarter 4 14/15 Adjustments not
included in model
Restructuring of Resources
Directorates
Corporate Director
Business Support
Chief Executive
Finance
Corporate Governance
Capital Programme & Property
Capital Programme & Property capital charges
People Management
Business Services
Cross Cutting savings
March
Allocation of Fleet cross cutting
savings
Transfer to Resources from
Environment for Policy posts

5992401
79910
C13

6030101
79910
C04

5944001
79910
C10

7106901
79910
C07

Children's
Services
£000s

Health & Environment &
Care
Community
Services
Services
£000s
£000s

Fire
Services
£000s

Local
Committees
£000s

Chief
Executive's

18,894

8,407

0

74,939 115,414

P
P
P
P

105,882

(3)

P

(259)

P

(12)

P

(43)

P
P

(28)

P

(251)

P

(28)

(339)

74,657 114,789

P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P
P

P
P

(366)

(80)

0

(36)

(16)

(105)

P

429
105,902

18,738

8,391

0

283
160
284
3,457
7,404

6155001 See
52010
Breakdown
C8120

Flooding
£000s

37,762

0

Sub total Service Exp Interest etc
£000s
£000s

Depn Chgd to
Services
£000s

Precepts
Paid
£000s

Corporately
Charged
£000s

Inflation &
Cont.
£000s

(34,577)

782

13,735

361,298

32,007

MIRS 6400601
79750
C81

6400601
79750
C81

C90

Sub total - Other
items
£000s

Earmarked
Reserve
£000s

General
Reserve
£000s

NET BUDGET
£000s

14,413

26,360

(6,691)

0

380,967

6400601
39000
C8150

3
175
300
90

0
175
300
90

(175)
(300)
(90)

0
(175)
(300)
(90)

0
0
0
0

840

840

(840)

(840)

0

259

0

0

0

12

0

0

0

43

0

0

0

(340)

(340)

340
(78)

340

0

(78)

0

28

0

0

0

1,052

0

0

0

64

0

0

0

105

0

0

0

(429)
39,964

0

0
362,441

32,007

(34,577)

782

14,075

12,930

0
25,217

(6,691)

0

0
380,967

13,450

(283)
(406)
(284)
(3,457)
(7,404)
(13,450)

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

3,433
4,929
13,190
(6,472)

(3,433)
(4,929)
(13,190)
6,872

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

246

(31)

MIRS 6401201
79552
C91

78

P

P

Resources
£000s

78

P

6159601
32802
C80

7106901
79910
C07

96
(103)

(400)

(65)
103

y
k

tr

ac

om

3945121
79910
C02

.c

1659001
79910
C12

lic

e5 codes - cost centre
e5 codes - nominal

C

om

k
lic
C

.c

re

.

.

k e r- s o ft w a

w

w

ac

to

bu

N

APPENDIX 1

to

bu

y

2015/16 BUDGET NET EXPENDITURE - MOVEMENTS IN THE YEAR

ww

ww

tr

d

!

PD

h a n g e Pro

t

W

XC

uc

F-

W

d

!

h a n g e Pro

t

PD

XC

uc

F-

k e r- s o ft w a

re

O

Original Budget For Monitoring
Q1 Cash Limit Adjustments
Tfr from inflation to meet the cost of
the rise in minimum wage for
apprentices (part year )
Tfr for Occupational Therapy
Equipment from Childrens to H&CS
Tfr of Local Committee Savings
Proposal from Environment to
Resources.
Reduction of Remand Placement
general grants
Tfr from inflation to Precepts
Transfer to Environment from
Childrens of FEML Payments
Budget
Business Support Review Saving
Allocation
Transfer of staff budget from Fire &
Rescue Services to Resources
(HR).

32

Commissioning, Procurement and
Contract Management Savings
Allocation - Final Adjustment
Drawdown from Pupil Premium
Earmarked Reserves to Childrens
Drawdown from Schools Earmarked
Reserves to Childrens
Drawdown from SEN Reform
Earmarked Reserves to Childrens
Drawdown of Earmarked Reserve
for Trading Standards
REVISED BUDGET at 30 APRIL
2015
Centralisation of Performance
Team
Allocation of Streamlining
Management Savings
Drawdown from Earmarked
Reserves to Environment for Rail
Partnerships Reserves
Transfer of Staff Budgets from
Environment to Chief Executives
Cerntralisation of residual pension
costs
Busness Support Review
Efficiencies
Transfer of staff budget from
Environment to Chief Executives
Transfer from Inflation for Coroners
Service in Environment &
Community Services
Transfer from inflation for ENCTs in
Environment & Community Services
Drawdown of Earmarked Reserve
for Older Adults in Health & Care
Services
Drawdown of Earmarked Reserve
for Cumbria Care Residential in
Health & Care Services
REVISED BUDGET at 31 MAY
2015
Transfer of staff budget from
Environment to Chief Executives

(16)

P
74,657 114,758

134,655

Chief
Executive's

Resources
£000s

Flooding
£000s

16
18,673

8,407

(131)

(13)

P

(9)

P

(22)

11,291

0

0

P

(51)

Corporately
Charged
£000s

Inflation &
Cont.
£000s

362,441

(75)

Sub total - Other
items
£000s

Earmarked
Reserve
£000s

General
Reserve
£000s

0
32,007

(34,577)

782

14,075

NET BUDGET
£000s

0

12,930

25,217

(35)

(35)

0

0

0

0

9
(68)

Precepts
Paid
£000s

35

75

P
P

Depn Chgd to
Services
£000s

0

131

P

Sub total Service Exp Interest etc
£000s
£000s

(6,691)

0

380,967

0

0

0

(13)
0

0
0

(13)
0

0

0

0

16

(16)

166

(76)

0

0

0

62

(62)

0

0

0

P

(83)

0

0

T

386

134

386

0

(386)

0

T

74

74

0

(74)

0

T

385

385

0

(385)

0

10

0

(10)

0

10

T

75,244 114,770
P

(29)

P

(112)

135,146

18,535

319

(33)

182

P

(26)
(4,008)

11,216

0

0

29
(174)

T

P

8,407

(443)

(342)

(14)

363,318

32,007

(34,577)

798

14,075

12,879

25,182

0

(7,546)

0

380,954

0

0

0

0

0

0

182

0

26

0

0

0

(64)

(4,871)

4,871

0

4,871

(182)

0

P

67

(67)

0

0

0

P

(46)

46

0

0

0

P

240

240

(240)

(240)

0

P

279

279

(279)

(279)

0

T

T

643

1,271
71,095 116,067

P

643

1,271
135,819
(34)

18,488

8,407

11,186
34

0

0

361,062
0

32,007

(34,577)

798

18,946

12,360

0

(643)

0

(1,271)

29,534

(9,642)

0

0

0
0

380,954
0

k

tr

ac

om

Local
Committees
£000s

35

P

P

Fire
Services
£000s

lic

Health & Environment &
Care
Community
Services
Services
£000s
£000s

.c

.c

Centralisation of ICT, mobile phone,
vehicle fuel charges (part year)

Children's
Services
£000s

C

om

to

bu

y

N

O
N
y
bu
to
k
lic
C

Virements Permanent or
Temporary

re

.

.

k e r- s o ft w a

w

w

ac

ww

ww

tr

d

!

PD

h a n g e Pro

t

W

XC

uc

F-

W

d

!

h a n g e Pro

t

PD

XC

uc

F-

k e r- s o ft w a

re

33

O

Drawdown of Performance Reward
Grant Reserve to Environment for
Connecting Cumbria
Transfer of S31 NNDR Grants to
General Grants
Allocation of DSG Savings
Drawdown of Headstart from
Earmarked Reserves
Transfer of Childrens Centre
Running Costs from Childrens to
Environment
Drawdown of Troubled Families
Earmarked Revenue Grant
Transfer to Childrens for Social
Work Academy from Improvement
and Efficiency Reserve
Additional Fire PFI Grant Tfr to Fire
PFI Earmarked Reserve
Transfer of new Independent Living
Grant to H&C Services
Additional Staying Put General
Grant
Additional Troubled Families
General Grant
Transfer from contingency to
Childrens Services for Children
Leaving Care Price Increases
Transfer from contingency to
Childrens Services for Children
Leaving Care Growth
Transfer from inflation to Childrens
Services for Looked After Children
Drawdown of Early Years Grant
Earmarked Reserve
Drawdown of SEND Preparation for
Employment Grant Earmarked
Reserve
Transfer from contingency to
Environment for the HWRC at
Millom following floooding

Local
Committees
£000s

Chief
Executive's

Resources
£000s

Flooding
£000s

Sub total Service Exp Interest etc
£000s
£000s

Depn Chgd to
Services
£000s

Precepts
Paid
£000s

Corporately
Charged
£000s

Inflation &
Cont.
£000s

Sub total - Other
items
£000s

Earmarked
Reserve
£000s

General
Reserve
£000s

NET BUDGET
£000s

T

146

146

0

(146)

0

T

534

534

0

(534)

0

T

(27)

(27)

0

27

0

155

0

0

10

10

0

(10)

0

0

(15)

0

(155)

P

T

T

15

15

P

240

240

40

T

949

T

P

105

T

169

(105)

471

T

(240)

0

(240)

0

40

0

40

949

0

(949)

0

0

0

169

0

(169)

0

471

0

(471)

0

0
0

0
0

198

0

0

0
0

P
P

(203)

T

198

P

(679)

0

0

T

643

643

0

(643)

0

T

260

260

0

(260)

0

65

203

679

P
2,819

P

(198)

0

0

0

0

2,819

0

2,819

65

P

122

122

0

122

P

521

521

0

521

T

98

98

(98)

(98)

0

T

539

539

(539)

(539)

0

T

3,350

3,350

(3,350)

(3,350)

0

T

30

30

0

(30)

0

T

34

34

0

(34)

0

T

200

200

(200)

(200)

0

k

tr

ac

om

Fire
Services
£000s

lic

Health & Environment &
Care
Community
Services
Services
£000s
£000s

.c

.c

Reserves to Childrens for Ill Health
Retirements
Drawdown of DSG Earmarked
Reserves to Childrens for 2 year
Old Funding
Transfer to DSG Earmarked
Reserve from Childrens for Early
Years
Transfer of PA budget from
Environment to Chief Executives
Office
Drawdown of Risk Projects
Earmarked Reserve for Chief
Executives
Drawdown of Public Notices
Earmarked Reserve for Chief
Executives
Transfer from inflation to Chief
Executives
Additional General Grant - Capacity
Funding
Local Committee Cfwd Balances
Drawdown
Transfer to Health & Care Services
for Corporate Directors Resources
Saving
Drawdown from Improvement &
Efficiency Reserve

Children's
Services
£000s

C

om

to

bu

y

N

O
N
y
bu
to
k
lic
C

Virements Permanent or
Temporary

re

.

.

k e r- s o ft w a

w

w

ac

ww

ww

tr

d

!

PD

h a n g e Pro

t

W

XC

uc

F-

W

d

!

h a n g e Pro

t

PD

XC

uc

F-

k e r- s o ft w a

re

O

Transfer from Inflation for Soulbury
Pay Increase in Childrens Services
Allocation of inflation to Environment
REVISED BUDGET AT 31 JULY
2015
BP4W Savings
Transfer of staffing budget from ICT
to Transformation
Transfer from inflation for Fire
Services pay award (part year)
Drawdown from Equal Pay and
Modernisation Reserve for VR
Costs
Transfer of staff budget from Public
Health to Performance & Risk
REVISED BUDGET AT 31
AUGUST 2015

34

Inflation allocation H&C residential
and transport contracts
May 2015 VR Budget reductions part year effect Business Support
May 2015 VR Budget reductions part year effect Management
ICT costs of bringing the 11-19
Youth Service in house from 1st
October
DASH funding for 11-19 Early Help
Provision
ICT & Communications contracts
transferred from Fire to ICT
Drawdown of Adult Education
Earmarked Reserves
Transfer from Inflation to Childrens
Services for Agency Costs
Transfer from contingency to
Environment for Connecting
Cumbria

Chief
Executive's

Resources
£000s

Flooding
£000s

2,500

T
76,661 119,260
T

316

P

79

139,665

P

77,056 119,260

140,602
10

P

(11)

9,356

11,843

0

0

18,488

9,356

11,843

0

0

11

Corporately
Charged
£000s

Inflation &
Cont.
£000s

Sub total - Other
items
£000s

100

(100)

(100)

0

250

(250)

(250)

0

0

(2,500)

7,583

24,757

(15,509)

375,273

32,007

(34,577)

798

18,946

126

150

(26)
77,189 119,360

18,574

9,356

12,030

0

854

384,521

0

316

(79)

0

(937)

0

6,567
(10)

23,741
(10)
0

0

(86)

(86)

0

376,605
10

32,007

(34,577)

798

18,946

0

377,224

(15,509)

0

(523)

(34,577)

798

18,946

384,837
0

0

0
32,007

854

0

6,471

23,645

(16,032)

0

384,837

(854)

(854)

0

P

(19)

(19)

52

0

0

0

P

(53)

0

53

0

0

0

T

(40)

40

0

0

0

P

50

0

0

0

0

0

0

6

0

(50)

P

669

T

6

T

Transfer 2015/16 Pay Award
Earmarked Reserve to Contingency

T

(669)

612

612

234

T

T

(14)

0
0

(79)

0
0

NET BUDGET
£000s

(937)

523

26
140,715

General
Reserve
£000s

79

86

114

Earmarked
Reserve
£000s

937

0

86

P

P

Precepts
Paid
£000s

2,500
18,488

937

P

Depn Chgd to
Services
£000s

316

P

133

Sub total Service Exp Interest etc
£000s
£000s

595

T
77,739 120,145

T

142,484

(27)

(612)

(612)

0

(234)

(234)

0

0

0

120

(120)

(120)

0

0

800

800

(800)

0

0

(595)

0

22,625

(17,433)

1,500

0

120

595
17,905

9,356

12,016

27

0

0

0

(1,500)

234

P

(6)

379,645

0

32,007

(34,577)

798

20,446

3,951

0

0

384,837

0

k
lic

tr

ac

om

Local
Committees
£000s

250

T

T

Fire
Services
£000s

100

T

Tfr to Corporate Insurances budget
Transfer from contingency to
Environment for the HWRC at
Millom following floooding

Transfer Shanks contract
negotiations Earmarked Reserve to
Environment & Community Services
REVISED BUDGET AT 30
SEPTEMBER 2015
Transfer from Environment to Chief
Executives office for ICT
contribution for finance post.

Health & Environment &
Care
Community
Services
Services
£000s
£000s

.c

.c

Transfer from contingency to Health
& Care Services for CQC Peer
audits
Allocation of contingency to
Environment for Winter
Maintenance
Drawdown of CMF Education
Earmarked Reserve to Fund Capital
Project
REVISED BUDGET at 30 JUNE
2015
Additional Troubled Families PBR
General Grant

Children's
Services
£000s

C

om

to

bu

y

N

O
N
y
bu
to
k
lic
C

Virements Permanent or
Temporary

re

.

.

k e r- s o ft w a

w

w

ac

ww

ww

tr

d

!

PD

h a n g e Pro

t

W

XC

uc

F-

W

d

!

h a n g e Pro

t

PD

XC

uc

F-

k e r- s o ft w a

re

O

Transfer from inflation to
Environment & Community Services
for School SEND Transport
Drawdown from Equal Pay and
Modernisation Reserve for VR
Costs
Transfer of School Admissions from
Childrens Services to Environment
(Part Year)
REVISED BUDGET AT 31
OCTOBER 2015
Increase depreciation budget to
actual charge for year
Transfer from Fire to E&CS for
Community Engagement Saving

35

Estimate of additional Bellwin Grant
Estimate of additional DfT Survey
Grant
REVISED BUDGET AT 31
DECEMBER 2015

Local
Committees
£000s

Chief
Executive's

Resources
£000s

Flooding
£000s

Sub total Service Exp Interest etc
£000s
£000s

12

12

T

3

3

P

247

247

T

P

P

65

57

340

77,708 120,202

143,155

17,905

(1,283)

(117)

(4,443)

70

(70)

0
0

141,942

17,718

(96)

(2,716)

0

65

P

74,992 119,875

Corporately
Charged
£000s

336

Sub total - Other
items
£000s

(12)

(12)

0

(247)

9,356

12,108

12,108

0

0

0

0

380,434

375,991

291

46

(34,577)

798

4,356

32,007

(30,221)

20,446

50

3,692

87

798

20,533

22,366

1,047

1,047

194

194

(3)

0

0

(527)

0

0

384,837

0
0

3,692

26,809

8

8

0
(194)

0
(17,963)

0

0

T

0

0
0

0

T

NET BUDGET
£000s

4,443

0

(50)

General
Reserve
£000s

0
32,007

883

P

Earmarked
Reserve
£000s

(247)

0

0

210

Inflation &
Cont.
£000s

0
9,356

T

T

Precepts
Paid
£000s

527

96

(327)

Depn Chgd to
Services
£000s

(17,963)

0

384,837

8

(883)

0

0

(1,047)

0

(194)

0

T

(330)

(330)

0

330

0

T

(450)

(450)

0

450

0

300

(300)

0

T

(300)
1,510

1,510

0

1,510

T

1,000

1,000

0

1,000

2,510

379,545

T

74,422 120,211

143,424

17,418

9,406

12,154

0

32,007

(30,221)

798

20,533

3,506

26,623
406,168

(18,813)

0

0

387,355

k
lic

tr

ac

om

Fire
Services
£000s

P

REVISED BUDGET AT 30
NOVEMBER 2015
Additional New Burdens for
Property Searches General Grant
(Contingency)
Drawdown from Equal Pay and
Modernisation Reserve for VR
Costs
Allocation of Waste Prevention
Fund from E&CS to Local
Committees
Drawdown from 'Property
Improvements - Dementia
(Property)' reserve, Revenue
Contribution to Capital
Transfer from Inflation to fund Ill
Health Retirement Costs
Transfer to Earmaked Reserves for
Focussed Family Grant from
Childrens Services
Transfer to Earmaked Reserves for
SEN Reform Grant from Childrens
Services
Transfer to Earmarked Reserves to
fund future employer pension
liabilities.

Health & Environment &
Care
Community
Services
Services
£000s
£000s

.c

.c

Transfer from inflation to
Environment & Community Services
for Fire PFI
Transfer from modernisation
reserve to Environment to Traded
Services for Pension Costs of VR

Children's
Services
£000s

C

om

to

bu

y

N

O
N
y
bu
to
k
lic
C

Virements Permanent or
Temporary

re

.

.

k e r- s o ft w a

w

w

ac

ww

ww

tr

d

!

PD

h a n g e Pro

t

W

XC

uc

F-

W

d

!

h a n g e Pro

t

PD

XC

uc

F-

k e r- s o ft w a

re

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2 - Summary of Progress on 2015/16 Savings Propositions

Current Forecast Saving

Group

No

Title

Lead Directorate

2015/16
£m

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

Saving
Forecast to
be Achieved

Progress Report

Saving
Variance

RAG
>90% =G
75-90% =A
<75% =R

1

Early Help - recommissioning of services

Children's Services

(1.300)

(1.300)

(1.300)

(1.300)

0.000

G

Delivering Existing Policy

2

Implementing new Funding Arrangements for Occupational
Therapy and Speech Language Therapy

Children's Services

(0.100)

(0.100)

(0.100)

(0.100)

0.000

G

3

Generate income through commercial waste

Environment and
Community Services

(0.500)

(1.000)

(1.000)

0

0.500

R

31

Delivering Existing Policy

Delivering Existing Policy

Delivering Existing Policy

4

Additional Procurement savings

Environment and
Community Services

(0.065)

(0.100)

(0.100)

0

0.065

R

(0.725)

(0.725)

(0.725)

(0.725)

0.000

G

Delivering Existing Policy

5

Route Efficiencies in Schools and College Transport

Environment and
Community Services

Delivering Existing Policy

6

Generating Additional Income from our Fleet Management
Service

Environment and
Community Services

(0.050)

(0.050)

(0.050)

(0.050)

0.000

G

Delivering Existing Policy

7

Introduction of variable lighting levels for street lighting

Environment and
Community Services

(0.035)

(0.070)

(0.070)

(0.035)

0.000

G

Delivering Existing Policy

8

Reducing the on-going costs of our Property Assets

Environment and
Community Services

(0.500)

(0.500)

(0.500)

(0.400)

0.100

A

Delivering Existing Policy

9

Checking before attending

Fire Service

(0.050)

(0.050)

(0.050)

(0.050)

0.000

G

Delivering Existing Policy

10

Promoting independence, managing demand through
assistive technologies

Health & Social Care
Services

(1.000)

(2.000)

(2.000)

(1.000)

0.000

G

Delivering Existing Policy

11

Promoting independence through the review of care needs

Health & Social Care
Services

(0.250)

(1.000)

(1.250)

(0.250)

0.000

G

Delivering Existing Policy

12

(0.175)

(0.175)

(0.100)

0.000

G

13

Health & Social Care
Services
Health & Social Care
Services

(0.100)

Delivering Existing Policy

Full Implementation of the Positive Attendance Policy in
Cumbria Care
Getting best value from Catering Expenditure within Cumbria
Care

(0.050)

(0.050)

(0.050)

(0.050)

0.000

G

(4.725)

(7.120)

(7.370)

(4.060)

0.665

Delivering Existing Policy Total
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

14

Treasury savings - assume delay in external borrowing,
using internal balances

Central

(1.067)

0

0

(1.067)

0.000

G

Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

15

Further Treasury Management Savings

Central

(1.000)

0

0

(1.000)

0.000

G

Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

16

Review and release of earmarked reserves (Sea fisheries/
equal pay provision)

Central

(2.800)

0

0

(2.800)

0.000

G

Progress to date

Actions still required

New contracts procured for 0-12
None
Early Help services and 11-19
services brought in house.
Revised funding arrangements for
None
the service
Linked to strategic options review.
No plan is currently in place
This saving is unlikely to be
achieved.This saving was agreed to
be removed for 2016/17 onwards by
Council on 18th Feb 2016.
£100k saving for ICT Mobile Phones
achieved by managing spend
against the existing contract. £318k
of the £350k increase to contract
management income achieved,
minimal concerns regarding the
remaining amount.
£150k Transport saving has been
achieved through a combination of
route efficiency and re-tender
savings. The saving is being retained
within the Transport service to offset
pressures.
Awaiting details of which budgets to
reduce for the outstanding amounts
i.e. £100k Highways & Property and
£25k NEPRO

The Procurement Service have
advised that this will be achieved in
full.
Work is continuing to identify budget
lines in other service areas to allow
for cash limit adjustments to be
made (£270k already actioned with a
further £155k planned).

Awaiting outcome of retender
No plan is currently in place (SEND)
process before it will be known if this
has been achieved, inherent
pressure in budget.
Not achieved
Need to develop options explore with
stakeholders and implement.
Local Committeeshave been
This has been progressed in
appraised of the policy. It has been conjunction with the LED
progressed.
replacement programme
Property and Utilities portions
Saving split between Swimming
expected to be achieved however 3 pools £250k, Property £125k and
pools that would close without the
utilities £125k.
grant are being given transitional
support to be phased out over 5
years - pressure £100k
Completed
None
The principle of promoting
Ongoing management of the
independence reviews is now fully
implemented process
implemented
Teams are prioritising high cost
Ongoing management of the
package reviews to improve
implemented process
independence
Cumbria Care absence levels
Continued focus on managing
reducing
absence
Meal times moved to reduce waste Ongoing monitoring of spend

Further Treasury Management
Savings above current budget are
already expected in 2015/16.
Further Treasury Management
Savings above current budget are
already expected in 2015/16.
Completed

None

None

None

Appendix 2 - Summary of Progress on 2015/16 Savings Propositions

Group
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing
Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

No

Title

Lead Directorate

2015/16
£m

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

Saving
Forecast to
be Achieved

Saving
Variance

RAG
>90% =G
75-90% =A
<75% =R

17

Further Reduction Inflation Provision

Central

(1.500)

0

0

(1.500)

0.000

G

18

Removal of Risks built into the original MTFP

Central

(1.500)

(3.000)

0

(1.500)

0.000

G

19

Reducing inflation provision (supplies and services)

Central

(1.200)

0

0

(1.200)

0.000

G

20

RSG top slice for one off Dilnott (Care Act New Burdens)
transition funding built into original MTFP not now expected

Central

(1.000)

(1.000)

(1.000)

(1.000)

0.000

G

Central

(1.000)

(1.000)

(1.000)

(1.000)

0.000

G

Central

(1.000)

(2.000)

(3.000)

(1.000)

0.000

G

Central

(0.800)

(2.200)

0

(0.800)

0.000

G

Central

(0.500)

(7.400)

(7.400)

(0.500)

0.000

G

Central

0

(0.840)

(0.840)

0

0.000

G

21
22
23
24
25

Business Rate growth to reflect 2014/15 estimates reflecting
growth in previous years
Increased Council Tax Base assumptions - reflecting 14/15
estimates
Early payment of 3 years LGPS deficit lump sum payment,
following 2013 Actuarial Valuation
Additional New Burdens Funding - Care Act (Assumption of
funding to meet costs 15/16 onwards)
Business Rate s31 grant - assume this continues into 16/17
and 17/18

Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

26

Review of Dedicated Schools Grant

Chief Executives

(0.400)

(0.400)

(0.400)

(0.203)

0.197

R

Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

27

Fire Service - Income Contribution from Sellafield Ltd

Fire Service

(0.050)

(0.050)

(0.050)

0

0.050

R

Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

28

Better Care Fund - Integrating Health and Social Care and
managing demand in key services

Health & Social Care
Services

(2.500)

0

0

(2.500)

0.000

G

Grant Assumptions and Risk Approach
to Financing

29

Ensure Health income reflects volume of services purchased Health & Social Care
- Cumbria Care
Services

(0.100)

(0.100)

(0.100)

0.000

0.100

R

(16.417)

(17.990)

(13.790)

(16.070)

0.347

(0.075)

(0.075)

(0.075)

(0.075)

0.000

Grant Assumptions and Risk
Approach to Financing Total
Internal reshaping of the Council

30

Reducing Local Committee Bureaucracy

Chief Executives

G

Internal reshaping of the Council

31

Further Management Reduction in Children's Services and
development of a District-Based Delivery Model

Children's Services

(0.380)

(0.630)

(0.930)

0.000

0.380

R

Internal reshaping of the Council

32

Staff reductions in Family Centres

Children's services

(0.120)

(0.120)

(0.120)

(0.120)

0.000

G

Internal reshaping of the Council

33

Further reduction in Management Costs across the Council

Cross Cutting
Management

(3.050)

(4.050)

(7.650)

(0.219)

2.831

R

34

Reshaping the Highways Strategic Asset Management Team

Environment and
Community Services

(0.505)

(0.505)

(0.505)

(0.505)

0.000

G

Internal reshaping of the Council

35

Reshaping Regulatory Services

Environment and
Community Services

(0.470)

(0.470)

(0.470)

(0.470)

0.000

G

Internal reshaping of the Council

36

Reshaping the Council's Economic Development function

Environment and
Community Services

(0.200)

(0.200)

(0.200)

(0.200)

0.000

G

Joined up Community Engagement

Environment and
Community Services

Internal reshaping of the Council

32
Internal reshaping of the Council

37

(0.150)

(0.150)

(0.150)

(0.150)

0.000

G

Progress to date

Actions still required

Completed

None

Completed

None

Completed

None

Completed

None

Completed

None

Council Tax Base increased for
2015/16
Early payment made in 2014/15.
Saving made.
New burden funding announced for
2015/16 onwards
Savings not expected until 2016/17

None
None
None
None

Impementation of outcomes from the A review of School payment
School Payment Processing Review. processing has identified £0.097m
efficiencies from Apr 2016.
Currently unlikely to be achieved
Options being explored as to how
this can be achieved by alternative
ways
Better Care Fund in place and
None
funding secured
CHC eligibility process to be
Review of CHC packages and
reviewed alongside wider integration process to maximise income
discussions

Completed

None

Review of management and
transition to district based model of
delivery. Capacity to deliver
efficiencies limited following
outcomes of Ofsted inspection.
Completed
The May VR window is expected to
deliver £0.244m of savings in year,
this has been allocated against
historical savings. This saving is not
forecast to be met in year through
the May VR process but Service
Reviews have been progressed and
a level of compensating savings
have been acheived through this
process.
Being progressed in line with a
Service Restructure. Concerns
around double counting of savings
due to budget transfers pending in
September 2015.
Being progressed in line with a
Service Restructure
75% achieved from AD post and
Invest in Cumbria, remainder being
progressed in restructure
There is a costed proposal with
specific posts identified, work being
done to ensure no double counting

None

None
Service reviews are ongoing. A
permanent pressure of £2.605m was
approved by Council in Feb 16.

Restructure underway and partly
achieved fthrough existing vacancies

Restrructure underway
Restrructure underway

This has been achieved through
vacancy management and VR in
Community services and Fire

Appendix 2 - Summary of Progress on 2015/16 Savings Propositions

Group

No

Title

38

Changes to Disclosure and Barring Service checking process

Internal reshaping of the Council

39

Business Support Review

Internal reshaping of the Council

40

Reshaping Resources

Internal reshaping of the Council

41

Change On-Call Payment arrangements in the Fire Service

Internal reshaping of the Council

42

Changes to Night Time Fire Service Crewing Arrangements

33

Internal reshaping of the Council

Internal reshaping of the Council

Internal reshaping of the Council

Lead Directorate

Environment and
Community Services

2015/16
£m

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

Saving
Forecast to
be Achieved

Saving
Variance

RAG
>90% =G
75-90% =A
<75% =R

(0.116)

(0.116)

(0.116)

0

0.116

R

(0.500)

(2.000)

(2.000)

(0.500)

0.000

G

0

(0.600)

(2.600)

0.000

0.000

G

Fire Service

(0.050)

(0.075)

(0.075)

(0.050)

0.000

G

Fire Service

0

(0.200)

(0.600)

0

0.000

G

Environment and
Community Services
Environment and
Community Services

43

Streamlining how we review your care needs

Health & Social Care
Services

44

Introducing technology to streamline Business Support in
home care

Health & Social Care
Services

Internal reshaping of the Council
Total

(1.000)

(3.250)

(4.000)

(0.300)

0.700

(0.100)

(0.100)

(0.100)

(0.025)

0.075

(6.716)

(12.541)

(19.591)

(2.614)

4.102

R

R

Reshaping Services

45

Focus on some of our key roads so that we can reduce the
amount of money we spend on repairs and routine
maintenance

Environment and
Community Services

(2.500)

(2.500)

(2.500)

(2.500)

0.000

G

Reshaping Services

46

Replace recycling credits payments to third parties and
introduce a community waste prevention fund

Environment and
Community Services

(0.150)

(0.150)

(0.150)

(0.150)

0.000

G

Reshaping Services

47

Reduction to grant to the Lake District National Park

Environment and
Community Services

(0.046)

(0.046)

(0.046)

(0.046)

0.000

G

48

Changing the way we support Tourism in the County and
removing grant funding to a range of specific organisations

Environment and
Community Services

49

Reshape the way waste services are managed throughout
the county by working with the District Councils

Environment and
Community Services

Reshaping Services

Reshaping Services

(0.039)

0

(0.069)

(1.000)

(0.099)

(2.000)

(0.039)

0.000

0.000

0.000

Progress to date
Delays in progressing the DBS
saving mean that a saving will not
start until at least Q4

Actions still required

Completed

There is a plan however in- year
progress is delayed in 15/16 and
includes the need for staff
consultation.
None

Completed

None

Completed

None

Savings not expected until 2016/17

None

VRs approved to date contribute
£0.3m to the target, the balance will
be achieved by holding vacancies in
lieu of the implementation of the
redesigned service.

The balance will be achieved by
holding vacancies in lieu of the
implementation of the redesigned
service.

Hand helds due to be rolled out
September

IT services to implement hand held
devices following which business
processes can be redesigned

Temporary saving in 14/15 was
implemented and made permanent
in 15/16
Service have a plan for delivery of
this - work being progressed to
implement prevention fund
Grants reduced in year, achieved

none

Grants reduced in year, achieved

None

Savings not expected until 2016/17

Not appliacle as no saving in 201516
Ongoing management of the
implemented process

None

G

G

Reshaping Services

50

Working with Health to improve the way we offer services
that support people's independence and well-being

Health & Social Care
Services

(0.375)

(1.000)

(1.500)

(0.375)

0.000

G

Reshaping Services

51

Help people to continue to live independently by developing
Extra Care Housing

Health & Social Care
Services

(0.250)

(0.500)

(0.500)

(0.250)

0.000

G

Reablement targets have been
established under the BCF and
monitoring arrangements established
alongside those for promoting
independence reviews.
Extra Care Schemes in progress
need completing to create capacity

Reshaping Services

52

Improve the support available to people who misuse drugs
and alcohol

Health & Social Care
Services

(1.100)

(2.000)

(2.000)

(1.100)

0.000

G

Services commissioned and full year Complete
effect will come in during 16/17

Reshaping Services

53

Bring together a number of services and contracts to better
support the health and wellbeing of Children in Cumbria

Health & Social Care
Services

(0.120)

(0.276)

(1.020)

(0.120)

0.000

G

Full year effect of school nursing
recommissioning from April 2016

Reshaping Services

54

Improve the way we commission sexual health services

Health & Social Care
Services

(0.100)

(0.200)

(0.200)

(0.100)

0.000

G

Services commissioned and full year Complete
effect will come in during 16/17

55

Reshape the commissioning of advocacy services to allows
us to refocus the money where we have the greatest
demand in the future.

Health & Social Care
Services

(0.020)

(0.089)

(0.089)

(0.020)

0.000

G

Full year effect to come in during
16/17

None

Reshaping Services

G

Reduction in support to sheltered
accommodation to come into effect
April 2016

None

Establish a new lifestyle and wellbeing service for Cumbria

Health & Social Care
Services

Additional Dividend built into 15/16
Budget and expected from Cumbria
Holdings Ltd at year end.

None

G

Reshaping Services

56

Reshaping Services Total
New Savings Target
Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

57

Additional Dividend from Cumbria Holdings Ltd

Central

0

(0.280)

(0.280)

0

0.000

(4.700)
(32.558)

(8.110)
(45.761)

(10.384)
(51.135)

(4.700)
(27.444)

0.000
5.114

(0.500)

(1.000)

(1.000)

(0.500)

0.000

Extra Care Schemes need to be
completed to create capacity

Complete

Appendix 2 - Summary of Progress on 2015/16 Savings Propositions

Group

No

Title

Lead Directorate

2015/16
£m

2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

Saving
Forecast to
be Achieved

Saving
Variance

RAG
>90% =G
75-90% =A
<75% =R

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

58

Efficiency savings in Children's services

Children's Services

(0.080)

(0.080)

(0.080)

0.000

0.080

R

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

59

Reducing and streamlining management

Cross Cutting
Management

(1.000)

(2.000)

(2.000)

(0.139)

0.861

R

(0.150)

(0.290)

(0.290)

(0.150)

0.000

G

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

60

Street lighting improvements

Environment and
Community Services

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

61

Grants reduction

Environment and
Community Services

(0.150)

(0.150)

(0.150)

0

0.150

R

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

62

Reshaping economic development

Environment and
Community Services

(0.125)

(0.125)

(0.125)

(0.125)

0.000

G

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

63

Investing in routes to school to make routes safe

Environment and
Community Services

(0.100)

(0.100)

(0.100)

0

0.100

R

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

64

Change to Transport Policies (Scheduled bus services and
Post 16)

Environment and
Community Services

(0.650)

(0.650)

(0.650)

(0.650)

0.000

G

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

65

Reshaping internal council business services

Environment and
Community Services

(0.610)

(0.610)

(0.610)

(0.610)

0.000

G

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

66

Trading Standards reducing non statutory functions

(0.070)

(0.070)

(0.070)

(0.070)

0.000

G

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

67

Integrating health and social care and managing demand in
key services

(5.000)

(10.000)

(10.000)

(5.000)

0.000

G

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups

68

Putting public health at the heart of the communities

(0.200)

(0.200)

(0.200)

(0.200)

0.000

G

1.310

1.310

1.310

1.310

(7.325)

(13.965)

(13.965)

(6.134)

1.191

(39.883)

(59.726)

(65.100)

(33.578)

6.305

Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups
Existing MTFP Saving Step-ups
Total
Grand Total

Technical Adjustments

Environment and
Community Services
Health & Social Care
Services
Health & Social Care
Services

Progress to date
Savings included in the review of
children's services.
Shortfall forecast following the May
VR window. See saving 33 for full
explanation.
Ongoing energy saving following
continued roll-out of more energy
efficient lanterns.
Continuing saving from 2014-15,
budget reduction relates to staff and
needs to be managed
Being progressed in line with a
Service Restructure
Concerns about delivery, due to
ability to improve certain routes.

Completed
Finance (£100k) & Corporate
Governance (£300k) have achieved
the savings in 2015/16
Delivered through uncommitted
budget within Resilience
Better Care Fund in place and
funding secured
Complete

Actions still required
None

Rollout is ongoing

This will be achieved through
vacancy management and VR
Restructure underway
Routes being assessed after which
approval for investment will be
required. Changes to Legal definition
of 'unsafe routes' has increased risk
to delivery.
None
The balance of savings required is
forecast to be achieved by the year
end.

None
Complete

34

Appendix 3 (8) – Additional Information
Accountable Bodies Budget Monitoring Report
At 31st December 2015
The Council acts as the Accountable Body for a number of organisations and
projects, the largest are Copeland Community Fund, Growing Places Fund and
Regional Growth Fund whose spend can be of both a capital and revenue nature.
These transactions are not included in either the Council’s single entity or the
group accounts as the Council acts as an agent for these transactions. For
completeness and to support the Council’s monitoring responsibilities as
Accountable Body they are included in the quarterly budget monitoring report.
The table below details the provisional outturn position of the revenue spend as
at 31st December, the capital spend of £12.623m is reported in the capital section
of the covering report and detailed in Appendix 4:NET EXPENDITURE

Balance Year to Year to Date
Forecast
Forecast Forecast
brought
Date Expenditure Incom e for Expenditure Balance
Forw ard Incom e
year
for Year
Carry
Forw ard
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000

Copeland Community Fund
LEP Core & Strategic Funding
LEP Growing Places Fund

(12,558)
(66)
0 (1,085)
(365)
(66)

2,009
336
0

(1,610)
(1,113)
(88)

2,044 (12,124)
867
(246)
10
(443)

LEP Rural Growth Network

(1,762)

0

444

0

712

(1,050)

LEP Regional Growth Fund 3

(1,912)

0

113

0

1,912

0

LEP Regional Growth Fund 4

(486)

0

200

0

486

0

0

(300)

73

(300)

300

0

(17,083) (1,517)

3,175

(3,111)

LEP Growth Fund Hub
Total

6,331 (13,863)

Copeland Community Fund
The Nuclear Decommissioning Agency (NDA) established the Copeland
Community Fund in January 2008 to recognise the unique role Copeland plays in
hosting a low level nuclear waste storage facility on behalf of the nation.
The cash balance of the fund at 31st March 2015 was £12.432m. Additionally,
there is one debtor of £0.126m giving a total balance of £12.558m. Income is
received from the NDA each year to top up the fund, and from the Council in
respect of interest due for funds invested.
For 2015/16 income of £1.610m is forecast and is made up from contributions
from the Nuclear Decommissioning Agency (NDA) of £1.5m, interest on the fund
balance and loan repayments. Expenditure is forecast as £2.044m and will be in
the form of grants or loans to organisations within the Copeland area covered by
the fund. This gives a forecast balance to carry forward of £12.124m.

31

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)
Core and Strategic Funding
Income is largely received from BIS with some match funding from other
authorities and 3rd parties and is forecast as £1.113m for 2015/16. Expenditure
is forecast as £0.867m and relates to the running costs of the LEP, leaving a
forecast balance to carry forward to 2016/17 of £0.246m.
Growing Places Fund (Cumbria Investment Fund – CIF)
The Growing Places Fund was announced by government in November 2011.
Renamed locally as the Cumbria Infrastructure Fund (CIF), the total allocation for
Cumbria was £6,667,772 split between Capital £6,162,467 and Revenue
£505,305.
The CIF is identified to help promote the delivery of infrastructure projects
needed to unlock developments that help to create jobs and homes in Cumbria.
The CIF is a revolving fund, when the development is completed, and a return
has been generated, the amount of money provided, should be as a minimum,
paid back to allow the fund to be recycled to help further developments.
Cumbria County Council holds the funding as the accountable body for the CIF
and the Cumbria LEP Board agree the fund priorities. As accountable body,
Cumbria County Council enters into formal agreements with the applicants (and if
required the relevant district councils) before the CIF is invested to ensure that
funding can be repaid within the agreed timescales or against agreed milestones.
A number of Business Development Loans have been agreed and issued, and
receipts received in 2015/16 relate to the interest (revenue) and principal (capital)
repayments received during the year from these loans.
The balance brought forward was £0.365m. Expenditure is forecast as £0.365m
and relates to issuing further loans to organisations within the LEP area.
Rural Growth Network
Initially a lump sum of £1.951m was received from DEFRA and is being used to
establish eleven rural growth hubs around the county, who will support their local
business communities through services such as networking, training, business
support and business facilities. The balance at the start of 2015/16 was £1.762m.
Expenditure to run the hubs is forecast to be £0.712m fore 2015/16 leaving a
balance to carry forward of £1.050m.
Regional Growth Fund 3 and 4
Regional Growth Funds 3 and 4 have been completed during 2015/16. The
balance of the funding will be repaid to BIS prior to the end of the year.
Growth Fund Hub
Income is in the form of a £0.300m grant from BIS. Expenditure is currently
forecast as £0.300m and will fund the establishment of new and development of
existing growth hubs.

32

Appendix 3 (9) – Additional Information
Flooding - Budget Monitoring Report
At 31st December 2015
In December 2015 Cumbria experienced a number of extensive flooding events, the
costs associated with this continue to be established. The initial estimate developed in
late December and presented at Council at its meeting in January 2016 was that the
overall cost for both response and recovery across Cumbria was estimated at £465m.
These estimates have continued to be revised as survey work and the extent of the
damage has been established. For some of the estimated initial costs funding has been
identified through either insurance, grants or excluded now that they have been
identified as private sector rather than public sector costs. Funding for the Community
and Business Recovery schemes has been confirmed with a latest estimate of £51m.
The revised estimate of flood Recovery costs linked to damaged infrastructure and
other County Council assets is £175m. This excludes £10m for the A591 replacement
scheme which Highways England will deliver. £37m of funding has been identified
(£27m of Dft grants, £8.069m of County Council capital resources and £2m of DEFRA
funding for Rights of Way). Conversations are continuing with Central Government to
request the additional £138m of funding required to fully deliver the recovery
programme of works.
Emergency Response Phase (Bellwin Scheme)
Over the period 3rd to 11th December 2015 several areas of Cumbria experienced
incidences of severe flooding during an extremely severe weather event known as
Storm Desmond. Since this weekend there have been further shorter periods of heavy
rain, which created an ongoing risk of further flooding. Central government has
activated the Bellwin Scheme for this incident. This scheme provides funding to
reimburse local authorities involved in an emergency or response phase of an
incident where the disaster involved destruction of or danger to life or property which
necessitated expenditure by the local authority on or in connection with the taking of
immediate action to safeguard life or property, or prevent suffering or severe
inconvenience in their area or among its inhabitants. The incident has been registered
and the Council is looking to ensure it is fully reimbursed for the costs of the immediate
response to the severe flooding, over and above the Bellwin threshold of £0.711m; the
previous guidance set the Bellwin Threshold for the Council at £0.738m, the final
guidance received on 2nd March confirmed the threshold at £0.711m.
The latest estimate of Flood related Revenue costs to 31st March 2016 is £4.180m, of
this the emergency or response costs is £2.221m and is set out in the table below. The
Bellwin scheme requires the Council to fund the first £0.711m and therefore the Bellwin
Grant is estimated to be £1.510m.

33

Estimated Emergency Response Expenditure
Directorate
Forecast
£000
Children’s Services
24
Health & Care Services
162
Environment & Community Services
1,933
Fire & Rescue Service
72
Chief Executive's
30
Total
2,221
It is intended that flood response costs incurred within Local Committees budgets will be
transferred to the highways budget in Environment & Community Services and will be
included in the Bellwin claim. DCLG issued the final Bellwin guidance on 2nd March and
there are a number of changes from the initial guidance; we are liaising with DCLG to
assess the implications. There is a risk that some of these costs will not be approved as
part of the claim.
The response costs could reduce further with an expectation that some of the costs
relating to home to schools transport and temporary classrooms which were initially
incurred by the Council may be recoverable from schools insurances.
Costs relating to County Council assets will be charged to the Councils self-insurance
provision, where applicable, if not applicable for Bellwin. The expenditure and balance
of the self-insurance provision and reserve will be reviewed accordingly as part of the
year end position and reported in the June report to cabinet.
Flood Recovery Spend
The revenue Flood costs that relate to recovery are estimated at £1.959m (£4.180m
total revenue flood costs less £2.221m). This is potentially the revenue cost that will be
incurred by the Council but work is ongoing to identify if any more of these costs can be
claimed from DfT or included within Bellwin. The current forecast costs for the recovery
phase is set out in the table below.
Estimated Recovery Expenditure
Directorate
Local Committees
Environment & Community Services
Environment & Community Services - surveys
Total

34

Forecast
£000
558
401
1,000
1,959

Sources of Funding
The estimated revenue Recovery costs are £1.959m. £1m of these costs relate to
survey costs for which a £1m grant has been received from Dft. A further grant of £1m
has also been announced for survey work and this is expected to be received in March
2016 to fund the ongoing survey work.
Of the remaining £0.959m of flood recovery costs £0.401m of the spend relates to
revenue recovery work on Bridges with the remaining £0.558m relating to highways
network recovery costs which are presently charged to Local Committees.
Taking the expected Bellwin grant into account £1.510m, DfT grant of £1m and the
charging of £0.558m to Local Committees the additional revenue costs incurred due to
the flooding incidents is £1.139m - £0.711m Bellwin threshold and £0.401m recovery
work on bridges.
The sources of funding are summarised in the table below:
Sources of Funding
Directorate
Council Reserves – Bellwin threshold
Bellwin Grant
DfT £1m
Local Committee Budgets
Council’s Reserves
Total

Forecast
£000
711
1,510
1,000
558
401
4,180

Work is ongoing to fully identify the flood activity and associated costs to the Council
(both revenue and capital). A full report will be provided for outturn report as at the 31st
March 2016.

35

This page is intentionally left blank

37

38

37

38

39

40

41

42

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
CABINET
Meeting date:
From:

24 March 2016

Chief Executive

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
QUARTER 3, 2015-16

MONITORING

REPORT –

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet with a progress update
on corporate performance, incorporating the following:



progress on the 2015/16 Council Plan delivery plan for the 9 month
period from 1st April 2015 to 31st December 2015.
progress on other key service performance indicators for the 9 month
period from ended 31st December 2015, with the exception of
Children’s Improvement Plan performance indicators which have been
updated to 31st January 2016, and were considered by the Children’s
Improvement Board on 2nd March 2016.

1.2

A detailed analysis of corporate performance is attached in the
Appendix to this report. It contains performance information grouped
under each of the Council’s Council Plan priorities, with particular
focus on the refreshed Council Plan delivery plan for 2015/16 which
was agreed by Cabinet on 30th April 2015.

1.3

Overall, latest performance figures are positive, with many of the
targets in the Council Plan delivery plan already delivered or on track
for delivery within planned timescales. Where performance indicators
have dipped below target or baseline, officers continue to identify and
deliver appropriate actions to improve performance and to bring
performance back on track. In these instances, remedial action is
highlighted in this report and in the detailed commentary in the
appendix.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

In February 2014, Full Council approved a new Council Plan and
priorities for 2014-2017, and these new priorities have been the focus
for Corporate Performance monitoring and review with effect from April
2014.

37

2.2

In April 2014, Cabinet approved a Delivery Plan for the new Council
Plan which set out, under 8 priorities, a number of commitments and
deliverables with associated targets and these were incorporated into
regular quarterly Corporate Performance reports for Cabinet for the
2014/15 year.

2.3

In April 2015, Cabinet approved a refreshed delivery plan for the 20142017 Council Plan. The deliverables and targets agreed will be included
in quarterly Corporate Performance reports for Cabinet throughout the
2015/16 year, and this arrangement is in line with the Council’s revised
Performance and Risk Management Framework agreed by Cabinet in
April 2014.

2.4

A full equality impact assessment of the Council Plan has been
completed.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That Cabinet note overall performance across the 8 Council Plan
priorities, including progress against the Council Plan delivery plan for
the period ended 31st December 2016.

3.2

That Cabinet note performance at 31st January 2016 across the
performance indicators that are used to track progress against the
Children’s Improvement Plan.

ADVICE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The following paragraphs describe headline performance under each of the
8 Council Plan priorities in Appendix 1:

4.2

To safeguard children, and ensure that Cumbria is a great place to be a
child and grow up – Work continues to deliver the Improvement Plan in
response to the recommendations in the Ofsted report and subsequent
Directions Notice. We are making progress and this has been demonstrated
in some positive feedback from Ofsted following their monthly visit in
January 16. We still have much to do but are moving in the right direction
and although progression will be expected at further visits, there is
increasing confidence leading up to our Department for Education review in
week commencing 14th March 16.
In regard to our investment in schools, Houghton primary school is now
included in the basic needs programme and a business case is in
development. For the Harraby Community Campus, the school is complete
and was occupied on 14 Dec 2015, and a completion date for the sports hall
is expected in March 2016. A feasibility study for the Sandside Lodge special
school in Ulverston is expected to be completed in February 2016, and the
next steps for completing a feasibility study for residential accommodation at
the James Rennie special school are expected February 2016.

38

A site has been purchased in Carlisle to provide edge of care
accommodation for children based on a similar provision at Sedbergh Drive,
Kendal, with the additional option to provide 2 self-contained flats. The
project is currently in the definition stage. The proposal is a new build option
which is within the capital budget approved for 2016/17. Approval of a full
business case is anticipated in September 2016, with construction starting
on site November 2016.
An in-house youth service has now been established, and now that a
contract has been issued and the service operating for careers information
and guidance (as part of early help provision), regular six month contract
monitoring is underway.
4.3

Children’s Services Improvement Plan Performance Indicators –

4.4

Cabinet is reminded that further to an assessment of tolerances previously
used by the Council to generate Red/Amber/Green performance alerts the
change of approach in Table1 below was adopted in the quarter 2 Corporate
Performance report presented to Cabinet in December 2015. This approach
has also been adopted by the Children’s Improvement Board and Cabinet is
reminded that the change has no impact on the performance figures
reported, and only affects the presentation of Red/Amber/Green alerts when
comparing latest performance with target.
Table 1
RAG
Old Tolerances
Alert
Red
More than 5% off target
Amber Within 5% of target
Green On or exceeding target

4.5

The purpose of the change was to prompt a more rounded and proportionate
view of performance that:





4.6

New Tolerances (used in this
report)
More than 10% off target
Within 5-10% off target
On, exceeding or within 5% of target

directs attention to those RED PIs that are further from target than under
the previous arrangement (i.e. PIs that are off target by more than 10%
instead of more than 5%).
directs some attention away from PIs that are currently flagged as RED
but are at an acceptable level or within an acceptable range. In future
these will be AMBER if within 5-10% of target.
enables a continuing focus on PIs that are not improving at the rate
expected or rate required over time.
enables a continuing focus on how the Council’s performance compares
with other peers or other comparator groups.

Cabinet is also reminded that this report focuses on the 20 ‘HERD’
Performance Indicators that are used to track improvement against the
Children’s Improvement Plan. ‘HERD’ is a term used to describe a set of
‘lead’ performance indicators that form part of a wider set of Performance
Indicators used by the Children’s Improvement Board (ChIB) to track
performance against the Children’s Improvement Plan.

39

4.7

The additional Performance Indicators used by the ChIB include for
example, findings from file audits, and indicators where health is the lead
(review health assessments, dental, immunisations, Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Services).

4.8

For the 20 ‘HERD’ Performance Indicators in Appendix 1, 13 are either on
target, exceeding target, or within 5% of target (Green), 4 are within 5-10%
of target (Amber), and 3 are more than 10% off target (Red).

4.8.1 The following 13 performance indicators are either on target, exceeding
target, or within 5% of target (Green):
4.8.2 Initial Child Protection Conferences within 15 working days – latest
figures show that 86% of initial child protection conferences (ICPC) in
January were completed within 15 working days. After a dip in performance
in December this figure is back above the target of 83.8%, although there is
considerable variance across the districts.
4.8.3 Health assessments for children looked after for 12 months or more –
Latest figures indicate an improving position, and performance remains
above the required standard. Latest performance stands at 87% compared
with target of 85%.
4.8.4 Average time between entering care and placement with adoptive
family - The average time between entering care and being placed with an
adoptive family for children who were adopted in the year to 31 January was
567.5 days with performance continuing to exceed the set target of 586 days
and is better than both statistical neighbour and national performance figures
for 14/15. The local target for 15/16 is 586 days.
4.8.5 Care leavers aged 19, 20 and 21 in suitable accommodation – 87.8% of
former relevant care leavers who had their 19th, 20th or 21st birthday in the
year ended 31 January 16 were living in accommodation considered to be
suitable at the time of that birthday. This is above target, national and
statistical neighbour figures.
4.8.6 Care leavers aged 19, 20 and 21 in education, employment and training
- 51.9% of former relevant care leavers who had their 19th, 20th or 21st
birthday in the year ended 31st January 2016 were in education,
employment or training at the time of that birthday. This is above target,
national and statistical neighbour figures.
4.8.7 Percentage of social work vacancies covered by agency staff – The
proportion of vacancies covered by agency staff has increased to 11% but
remains better than the target of 14%.
4.8.8 Children Looked After Review participation in latest review –
Performance on this measure remains consistently high and was 93.4% at
the end of January 2016 and above the target of 92%, however there are
some differences across district teams.

40

4.8.9 Early Help Assessment –This measured as a rate per 10,000 population
aged 0 -17. The number of EHAs initiated in December 2015 was 140 and
equivalent to 15.1 per 10,000 population aged 0-17. Performance continues
to improve and is well above target of 9 per 10,000 population aged 0-17.
4.8.10 Referrals within 12 months of a previous referral - The percentage of
referrals within 12 months of a previous referral was 23.9% this month and
was very slightly above target. Performance does fluctuate but remains
above latest national figures. The overall trend over the past year remains
one of improvement.
4.8.11 Children looked after statutory visits - 94.5% of looked after children had
an up to date statutory visit recorded at the end of January. This has
improved from December's figure of 92.7% but remains slightly below the
target of 96%.
4.8.12 Children Looked After living in the same placement for 2+ years – Long
term placement stability remained unchanged this month, with 68.8% of the
cohort having been in their placement for at least 2 years. Performance is
slightly below target of 70%.
4.8.13 Child Protection Reviews - latest review up to date - The latest figures for
up-to-date reviews was 93.7% which is within 5% of the 15/16 target (97%),
however latest performance has dipped compared with 99.1% achieved at
the end of 2104/15.
4.8.14 Children Looked After – latest review up to date – The latest review was
up to date in 93.8% of instances and remains above target of 90%. However
81.6% of looked after children had had all of their statutory reviews held
within the required timescale during the year ending 31 January. The figure
dropped this month after displaying consistent improvement for over a year
and the trajectory of improvement means that it is now unlikely that the
target of 90% will be achieved by March 2016.
4.8.15 The following 4 performance indicators are within 5-10% of target (Amber):
4.8.16 Children subject of repeat Child Protection plan within 2 years – 11% of
children who became subject to a child protection plan in the year ended 31
January 2016 had had a previous plan which had ended 2 years or less
before. This is outside the target banding of 5-10%, with a sustained rise in
numbers of repeat plans over recent months.
This will be given continuing focus on a case by case basis.
4.8.17 Initial health assessments (IHA)for children entering care – 78.3% of
children who entered care in December had an initial health assessment
within the required timescale. This is an improvement from the previous
month's figure of 70% but remains below target. Figures for this indicator are
reported one month in arrears.

41

The Cumbria Partnership Foundation Trust (CPFT) will develop an
escalation process to inform the County Council if there is a delayed
notification so consent is received in a timely manner to complete the IHA
within 28 days. Additionally, a case by case analysis has been requested
from County Council senior managers as to why 5 children did not receive
their IHAs in the appropriate timescale. This indicator will be the focus of
renewed attention and oversight from the Assistant Director in Children
Looked After meetings.
4.8.18 Children looked after – all reviews held in last year in timescale – 81.6%
of looked after children had had all of their statutory reviews held within the
required timescale during the year ending 31 January. The figure dropped
this month after displaying consistent improvement for over a year and the
trajectory of improvement means that it is now unlikely that the target of 90%
will be achieved by March 2016.
4.8.19 Children looked after – review participation for all reviews in the year –
latest figures show that 85.4% of looked after children participated in all
reviews for the year, compared with target of 92%. Performance on this
measure has improved compared with 2014/15 (80.4%).
The purchase of MOMO (an app which facilitates the participation of children
and opportunities for consultation) is being progressed.
Observations from conferences have identified a general lack of the use of
advocates and this will be discussed at team level to ensure all social
workers are aware of the availability of advocates. A new advocacy contract
is now in place.
4.8.20 The following 3 performance indicators are more than 10% off target (Red):
4.8.21 Children looked after - number and rate –The number of looked after
children at the end of January rose for the second successive month with a
month end figure of 650 which equates to a rate of 69.7/10,000. The rate
remains highest in Allerdale & Copeland at 88.3 with a much lower rate of
54.8 for Carlisle & Eden. Numbers in Allerdale & Copeland appear to be still
rising with this district the only one to display an increase in numbers over
the year, contrasting with the other 2 districts where numbers have either
remained static or fallen. The overall rate in 14/15 was 72.4 per 10,000.
This indicator is the focus of continual scrutiny via weekly CLA meetings
however it is looking unlikely that we will meet the target of 620 by March
2016. The introduction of a stable and permanent leadership team for the
area has afforded greater management oversight as well as identified drift
and delay and these matters are now being more proactively managed. This
indicator has 2 related indicators as follows:


Number of children entering care – the number entering care in
January was 18 against a target of 12. For the 10 month period April 15January 16 172 children entered care against a target of 120.

42



Number of children leaving care – the number leaving care was 14
against a target of 25. For the 10 month period April 15-January 16 200
children left care against a target of 250.

4.8.22 Average time between court authority and match with adoptive family For children who were adopted between April 2015 and January 2016 the
average time between the granting of the placement order and a match
being agreed with the adoptive family was 316.2 days which is significantly
greater than the target of 221 days, and for 2014/15 (246 days).
As work continues to move forward the cohort of children who have been
subject to some drift and delay this figure is likely to decline.
4.8.23 Child Protection Reviews – all reviews in last year in timescale – At the
end of January 85% of children with a child protection plan had had all of
their reviews within the previous year held within the required timescale.
This figure continues to fall. The target for 15/16 is 96.3% and performance
in 2014/15 was 95.5%.
Although the percentage of reviews held in timescale over the previous year
has declined as noted above, the actual number of conferences held in
timescale has increased by 12 conferences from 238 to 250. The Local
Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB) has asked for a report on increasing
numbers on plans.
4.9

Performance indicators for school attainment in summer 2015 have now
been confirmed. The following are areas of notable performance:

4.9.1 % of 5 year olds achieving at least the expected ‘Good Level of
Development’ in the Early Years Foundation Stage – There is continued
improvement in this new measure which was introduced 2013. Performance
is 62.9% which is above target of 52%. Performance is below the statistical
neighbour and national averages, but equal to North West average.
4.9.2 % 11 year olds achieving a combined Level 4 or above at Key Stage 2
in reading, writing and mathematics – There is continued improvement
compared with the previous 2 years. Performance is also equal to North
West and national averages and above the average for statistical
neighbours. Performance was 80.5% compared with a target of 75%.
4.9.3 Achievement gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers – Key
Stage 2 (Reading, writing and maths % Level 4+) – The gap of 16% has
narrowed compared to the previous year (17.2%) and remains below the
target gap of 19%.
4.9.4 The following attainment measures are off target and performance has
dipped compared with last year:
4.9.5 % of 16 year olds achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE (and
equivalent), including English & mathematics – There has been a very
slight decline in performance this year to 56.7% however this remains
broadly in line with North West, national and statistical neighbour averages.

43

The target of 63% is now considered to be unrealistic as this measure is now
made against first entry to examinations only.
4.9.6 Achievement gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers – Key
Stage 4 (GCSE 5+ A*-C (inc English & maths)) – The gap has widened to
33.5% compared to previous year (30.5%), and remains above target of
26.7%.
4.10

To enable communities to live safely and shape services locally – Since
the last report, good progress has been made in adopting an area planning
approach to service reviews and reshaping and further area planning
sessions have been scheduled during early 2016. The 3rd Sector Network is
supporting the area planning process and programme of activities to
underpin the reshaping of services.
It is expected that plans to deliver a new blue-light hub (fire, police and
ambulance station) incorporating new accommodation in Ulverston
will be accepted soon. Plans will then be going forward to Members in March
2016 for approval. A preferred contractor will be appointed in April 2016 and
it is expected that the first dig of the groundwork will take place May 2016.
The expected finish date for the main building is expected in December
2016.
In terms of implementing revised ‘Day Crewing Plus’ arrangements in the
Fire Service, dialogue is still taking place between the Council and the Fire
Brigades Union (FBU) regarding the implications of Working Time
Regulations and Pension reforms. The FBU’s position on Day Crewing Plus
(DCP) has changed nationally and it is clear that they oppose this style of
duty system.

4.10.1 The following performance indicators show notable performance for the
latest quarter:
4.10.2 Area plans and area delivery plans – Area Plans and Area Delivery Plans
for all 6 districts have been produced and agreed by the respective local
committees. This has now progressed further with Area Planning sessions
being held within areas on a regular basis.
4.10.3 The following performance indicators highlight areas for further focus and
improvement:
4.10.4 Number and rate of accidental dwelling fires – there have been 199
accidental dwelling fires in the 9 months to December 2015 (8.3 per 10,000
dwellings). Although this represents a decrease of 3 compared with the
same period last year, performance will need to improve in the last quarter to
achieve the target for 2015/16 of 250.
4.10.5 Health and Safety – overall rate of work related ill health and injury
(excl schools) – this is measured on a rolling 12 month period, and
although the rate has improved from 7,435 to 6,949 (per 100,000 fte
employees), performance remains below target of 5,150. The actual number
of cases for the period was 316 compared with 341 for the last quarter and

44

latest figures are higher than the Health and Safety Executive (HSE)
standard rate.
4.10.6 Health and Safety – overall rate of work related stress, anxiety and
depression (excl schools) – this is also measured on a rolling 12 month
period and the rate is declining. The actual number of cases for the period
was 129 compared with 127 reported last quarter. Latest figures are
significantly off target and higher than the HSE standard rate.
4.10.7 Health and Safety – overall reporting of injuries, diseases and
dangerous occurrences – there were 33 incidents reported for the 9
months to December 2015 and the anticipated full year figure is 44
compared with 48 reported last quarter. Although this is an improving
position, if a similar rate of reports is made in the remaining quarter of the
year, performance will be off target and higher than the HSE standard rate.
4.11

To promote health and well-being, and tackle poverty:
The Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) development remains in hand and
on track, and a HWBB Development Session took place in January to
explore the role of the Board in the emerging new models of care.
Health and wellbeing campaigns for the 'Workplace challenge', 'Dry January'
and 'Smokefree' were communicated to staff in January 2016.
Advocacy documents have been produced and procurement has
commenced regarding the reshaping of Independent Mental Health Act
Advocacy, Independent Advocacy, and Healthwatch services by April 2016.
In regard to the imminent letting of social services contracts, Cabinet have
approved Ethical Care Charter and all tenders encourage bidders to meet
Living Wage as defined by Living Wage Foundation.

4.11.1 The following performance indicators show notable performance for the
latest quarter:
4.11.2 Successful completion of drug treatment & non representation - opiate
users – Latest performance (14%) continues to better than for 2014/15
(12%) and is above the latest all England level.
4.11.3 Successful completion of drug treatment & non representation - non
opiate users – Latest performance (54%) continues to better than for
2014/15 (48%) and is above the latest all England level.
4.11.4 Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and
their peers – Key Stage 2 (Reading, writing and maths % Level 4+) –
Final figures for summer 2015 have now been released and the gap has
narrowed compared to previous year and at 16% is ahead of target (19%).
4.11.5 Number of those not in education, employment or training (NEET) –
Performance has consistently remained better than target of 5.1%. Latest
data, relating to Quarter 3, shows that performance has improved to 4.16%
compared with 4.7% reported last quarter.

45

4.11.6 17 and 18 year olds in education, employment or training – For 17 year
olds, performance for Quarter 3 (Oct-Dec 15 average) has continued to
improve and has increased to 97% from 84.4%, although there is seasonal
variation. This is below the aspirational target of 100%. For 18 year olds,
performance for Quarter 3 (Oct-Dec 15 average) has continued to improve
and has increased to 93.8% from 63.6%, although there is seasonal
variation. This is below the aspirational target of 100%.
4.11.7 The following performance indicators highlight areas for further focus and
improvement:
4.11.8 NHS Health Checks – offered and uptake – The rate of uptake has
increased to 45% of health checks offered compared with 44% reported last
quarter, however this remains well below the target of 65% for 2015/16. The
percentage of the eligible population receiving an offer of a health check did
not meet the 5% target for quarter 3.
4.11.9 Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and
their peers – Key Stage 4 (GCSE 5+ A*-C (inc English & maths) – Final
figures for summer 2015 (33.5%) indicate that the gap has widened
compared to previous year. This remains off target (26.7%) in 2015/16.
4.11.10 The proportion/number of adults (aged 16 and over) participating in
at least four sessions, of at least 30 minutes, of (the) sport in the last 28
days. - Although the overall percentage drop since the last survey results is
around 2.3%, these results show that an additional 0.7% of the adult
population are playing sport once a week compared to when the survey
started back in 2005/06. Since the last survey significant reductions in
participation in Carlisle and Allerdale have been recorded, whilst there have
been a significant increase in the Barrow-in-Furness area.
4.12

To protect and enhance Cumbria’s world class environment:
The Project Board formed with the objective of considering the outcomes of
the strategic review of the primary waste contract have made good progress
in developing an implementation plan for the way forward and discussions
are ongoing with the primary contractor.
To secure funding for waste minimisation initiatives for community groups by
March 2016, a Community Waste Prevention Fund was approved by
Cabinet and will be managed through the six Local Committees.
The work of the Cumbria Floods Partnerships will need to be considered as
part of the review of the Climate Local Action Plan, however the Floods Plan
is expected to be published in August 2016.
To help reduce our carbon footprint, and exploring the benefits of renewable
energy, preparatory works have been commissioned for roof repairs at
Lillyhall Depot and Inglewood Older People’s Home. Planned development
at Parkhouse is delayed until clarification of issues with the Kingmoor Park
Landlord is in place.

46

4.12.1 The following performance indicators show notable performance for the
latest quarter:
4.12.2 Amount household waste per household & waste recycling rates –
latest information for quarter ended 30th September 2015 (latest available
information) shows that for both measures the Council is expected to exceed
target in 2015/16. Closure of one Mechanical and Biological Treatment
(MBT) plant for much of Quarter 1 resulted in a reduction in recycled
materials from the MBTs. Data for Quarter 2 shows an increase in total
recycling and composting from districts and HWRCs compared to Quarter 2
last year.
4.12.3 The following performance indicators highlight areas for further focus and
improvement:
4.12.4 Reduce the total tonnage of household waste sent to landfill - Closure
of one MBT plant during Quarter 1 resulted in waste being diverted to landfill
for nearly 3 months. The target may be exceeded, although above-target
levels of landfill diversion have been maintained since. Figures do not yet
reflect additional tonnages to landfill as a result of the flooding in December
2015.
4.12.5 To provide safe and well maintained roads and an effective transport
network: the timeline for establishing a Highways Improvement Board to
ensure the highways service is efficient and effective has slipped beyond
June 2015 and a Cabinet report was considered in November 2015. A Board
meeting took place in January 2016 to progress implementation of the
Highways Strategy.
Highways and Transport maintenance programmes for 2015/16 have been
agreed by each Local Committee and were on track for delivery at the point
of the severe weather events late in quarter 3. It is considered likely that the
programmes will be delivered in full however the full consequences of
December’s weather are not fully known.
The Department for Transport incentive fund action plan has progressed in
readiness for submission for a revised date of January 2016, and service
standards are being developed for implementation as part of a revised
Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) in April 2016.
In regard to the West Coast Main Line refranchise, consultation is expected
in the summer of 2016, with expression of interest with bids submitted by the
end of 2016. The Northern/Trans Pennine Express refranchise has been
awarded to Arriva and the Trans-Pennine Express franchise has been
awarded to the First Group.
4.12.6 The following performance indicators show notable performance for the
latest quarter:
4.12.7 % of road defects put right first time – baseline performance for this
measure was 94% in 2013/14, and latest figures for the quarter to December
2015 show performance of 96%. This remains well above target of 85% for

47

2015/16, however performance dropped slightly compared with last quarter
(98%).
4.12.8 Highways repairs, end to end times – latest performance (18 days)
represents an improvement compared with last quarter (25 days) and
continues to be within acceptable tolerance. Performance is better than the
2013/14 baseline (33 days), and remains with the target range for 2015/16
(10 – 30 days).
4.12.9 Improved network condition – latest performance figures indicate that this
measure is on target and remains at a sustained level compared with
2014/15.
4.13

To promote sustainable economic growth, and create jobs: For Phase
1 of the superfast broadband programme a contractual ‘force majeure’ event
was accepted in December because of the floods. Fibre infrastructure was
provided to 114,760 premises against a target of 115,782 premises,
however the shortfall is expected to be made up in January 2015. For Phase
2, the LEP approved an expression of interest and a detailed application is
being developed to be submitted by mid-February 2016. Design consultants
have been appointed to develop the scheme.
Confirmation has been received from Government confirming that all
'Enhanced Growth Deal' projects have now been approved. Progress
continues to be made on the delivery of projects in 15/16 and projects are on
track to deliver the £9.1m of spend with some adjustments being made to
the spend profile.

4.13.1 The following performance indicators show notable performance for the
latest quarter:
4.13.2 % of planning applications determined within the statutory timeframe
(13 weeks), to ensure effective delivery of sustainable development –
this measure is calculated on a 2 year rolling period and covers all minerals
and waste applications. The baseline for the period April 2012 to March
2014 is 68.5%, and performance for the 2 year period to December 2015
was 89%, which comfortably exceeds target. This represents a slight dip in
performance compared to last quarter (92%).
4.13.3 % of properties with superfast broadband – At the end of December 2015
fibre infrastructure was provided to 114,760 premises compared with a
target of 115,782. Delays occurred due to the December 15 weather event
and the difference will be made up in January 16.
4.14

To support older and vulnerable people to live independent and healthy
lives: Consultation on the Adults Commissioning Strategy is underway
alongside engagement with stakeholder partners, users and carers. A
Business Plan for Cumbria Care originally planned for September 2015 has
slipped. Due to the alignment of the business plan with the Adults
Commissioning Strategy, the timescales have been realigned and the
business plan will be complete by April 2016 following the Commissioning
Strategy discussions at Cabinet in February 2016.

48

For the redesign of pathways to the reablement service and to improve
reablement service outcomes, due to complexity in the development of the
reablement pathway, timescales have been realigned. The full
implementation will be complete by April 2016 with Trades Union
engagement in January 2016.
In order to redesign teams and workflow to deliver savings of £1 million by
April 2016, and £3.25 million by April 2017, workshops have been held with
over 100 employees to define requirements. A draft business case was
considered by Senior Managers in January 16.
The timescale for a new transition protocol for service users transitioning
from Children’s to Adult services was expected by September 2015. The
work on transitions is strategically linked to reviews across health and care
services and savings proposals being considered by Cabinet. The transitions
protocol will be finalised in March 2016.
The extra care strategy is complete and is currently out for consultation.
4.14.1 The following performance indicators show notable performance for the
latest quarter:
4.14.2 Number of people using assistive technology - At the end of December
2015 there were 2,249 users across the County which is well above the
original target to maintain 2,000 users in 2015/16. Of the total, 859 (38%)
receive the service as part of a long term care plan, and 1,390 (62%) on a
short term preventative basis. The number of long term users is decreasing
and the number of short term users is increasing in line with plan.
4.14.3 Permanent admissions of older people (aged 65 and over) to residential
and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population – The latest annual 12
month figure to December 2015 shows a reduction in the rate per 100,000 of
permanent residential admissions. The annual figure for Q2 2015/16 was
605.3 and for Q3 2015/16 is 522.4. The actual numbers of placements were
701 and 605 for 12 months to the end of Q2 and Q3 respectively. This
indicator is therefore exceeding target of 600.1 per 100,000 population.
4.14.4 Reablement (increase effectiveness of) - discharge from hospital 65+ effectiveness is measured by the proportion of service users who remain at
home for 91 days or more following discharge from hospital. The 2015/16
target is 91.1% and latest performance figures indicate a rate of 89.2%. The
number of new eligible people for the service this year is 1,399 and this has
already exceeded target.
4.14.5 The following performance measures indicate areas for improvement
compared with last quarter:
4.14.6 % of Community Based Service Users in receipt of a Direct Payment –
For quarter 3 there were 5,462 service users receiving community based
services. Of those, 1,448 (26%) were in receipt of a direct payment.
Although based on customer choice, practitioners are continuing a drive to

49

increase take-up [alongside an increase in take-up from the Independent
Service Fund (ISF)], training is being provided for Social Workers, and
managers are challenging the take up at regular resource management
meetings.
4.14.7 Waiting time from new referral to completion of first assessment –This
is a measure from the point of referral through to the first assessment and 28
days is recognised nationally as a 'good practice' target and latest
performance is 35 days. Referrals are being prioritised and allocations to
teams are being managed. A redesign of workflow is underway to increase
productivity. Single Point of Access (SPA) teams are signposting to other
appropriate services to manage demand for assessments and quality checks
by team managers of the assessments are being made to achieve timely
sign-off.
4.14.8 % of Service users not reviewed/reassessed in last 12 months – this is a
measure of the number of service users who have received a review or
reassessment over the last 12 months against service users who have or
have had an active support plan in the last 12 months. This measure has
declined significantly from 28% in 2013/14 to the current figure of 41%. An
independent Social Work company is currently working alongside teams to
address the backlog of reviews. Within the current redesign of adults
services, priority will be to target assessments and reviews, including
carrying out reviews in different ways.
4.15

To be a modern and efficient council: Implementation of the competency
framework (part of the delivery of a workforce plan) is underway through the
service review programme with core competencies forming part of new Role
Profiles.
For the Member Development Strategy, the Member development group has
agreed to use the LGA Political Skills framework as the basis for the
Member development strategy. The Organisation Learning & Development
Manager has met with Area Managers to seek their input on behalf of the
Local Committees to the Member development strategy, and the Member
development group now has a Member ‘champion’ from each Local
Committee.
The Digital Strategy Action Plan is being progressed with a detailed
programme plan in place, a range of functions have now been transitioned
into the Service Centre, and market engagement is taking place to inform
the development of a customer portal.
Turning to the better places for work (BP4W) programme, the Carlisle
rationalisation programme is on track with the delivery of the new build in
Carlisle on track for a revised delivery date in autumn 2016. In terms of the
strategy for West Cumbria, the Council is waiting on detail of HMRC
requirements at West Cumbria house which could lead to the building being
vacant, however the transfer of West Cumbria House is still continuing with
the aim for completion before the end of the financial year. For the Kendal
strategy, a first report has been completed demonstrating site capabilities
and the Council is working with partners to develop options.

50

A total of £3.6m of capital receipts have been realised by the end of
December 2015 with a further £1.9m expected by the end of March 2016.
An outline business case has been submitted to the LEP Investment Panel
for development of the Courts complex in Carlisle in partnership with Carlisle
City Council, and a Community Infrastructure Fund application was prepared
for submission in January 2016 for development of Portland Square in
Carlisle.
As part of the continued review and restructure of Council services, the
overall status of the programme has improved since last quarter as a result
of successful progress made in over 25 Service Reviews since the lower
than planned take up of Voluntary Redundancy in May 2015. The service
review programme is progressing to planned timescales and will deliver over
£9m of staffing cost reduction from the 2016/17 base budget.
Trade Union relationships remain constructive with TU colleagues working
closely with the project team to support the programme planning, assist with
staff engagement, consultation and communications.
4.15.1 The following performance indicators show notable performance for the
latest quarter:
4.15.2 % variance from revised revenue budget outturn – The revenue outturn
position of a £0.944m pressure on the net revenue budget for the Council at
the end of December 15/16 is set out in the report to be submitted to the
Cabinet meeting on 24 March 2016. This represents a 0.23% variance
against budget of £406.141m.
The estimated outturn position includes flood related costs of £4.180m of
which £1.139m is expected to require to be funded from General fund
Balances. Excluding flooding the estimated outturn position is a £0.195m
underspend. The Directorate pressures are in Children’s Services
(£2.719m), Health & Care Services (£0.620m) and Cross Cutting
Streamlining Management Savings (£3.689m). This is offset by a forecast
underspend on Chief Executives Office (£0.826m), Environment &
Community Services (£0.267m) and Fire & Rescue Services (£0.048m).
Combined these Directorate pressures and underspend give a net
Directorate pressure of £5.888m.
The Directorate net pressures are offset by savings of £6.083m on other
items budgets made up of £3.473m of treasury management savings,
inflation savings of £1.681m and creditors that are no longer required
£0.672m.
4.15.3 % variance on capital programme – The forecast outturn for the Council
Capital Programme is £114.218m against the budget of £123.858m giving a
variance of £7.140m (5.7%). Slippage on the Capital Programme of £8.861m
represents 7.2% of the revised programme value of £123.858m.

51

4.15.4 Number and proportion of local suppliers winning Council contracts –
Of the tender processes actioned during the quarter (predominantly
Transport), 84% were awarded to local suppliers. This exceeds the target of
75%.
4.15.5 % of Corporate complaints dealt with at informal stage – figures for the 9
month period from April – December 2015 confirm that 90% of complaints
were dealt with satisfactorily without the need for escalation to a formal
process. This is on target of 90% for 2015/16.
4.15.6 Satisfaction with CCC Website-SOCTIM-% of users ok, satisfied or very
satisfied with website – latest response rate stands at 60% which is
marginally higher than quarters 1 and 2 and above target of 53%.
4.15.7 Achieve at least £2.5m per annum of capital receipts – in the 9 months to
December 2015 a total of £3.6m of capital receipts were realised with a
further £1.9m expected by the end of March 2016.
4.15.8 Number of full time equivalent employees – at the end of December 2015
the number of full time equivalent employees fell to 4,454 (exc Schools). The
number is reducing in line with plan.
4.15.9 The following performance indicators highlight areas for further focus and
improvement:
4.15.10
% of Freedom of Information (FOI) and Environmental
Information Regulations (EIR) Requests dealt with within statutory
timescale –Although combined performance for the 9 months to December
(75%) remains above the level achieved in 2014/15, there has been a dip in
the numbers of requests dealt with within the statutory 20 day period
compared with quarters 1 and 2. Performance remains below target of 90%
for the 1,127 requests received. The response rate for Environmental
Information requests is 93% and for Freedom of Information 72%, and so the
focus for improvement in the remainder of the year will continue to be on
improving the response rate for FOI requests.
4.15.11 Staff attendance – A Corporate target of 8 has been set by 2017/18, with
target for this financial year of 10.5. It remains unlikely that we will achieve
the performance target for this financial year due to current trends and
anticipated winter related sickness absence. The absence figures remain
relatively stable at 11.6 days compared with 11.5 days lost per fte reported
last quarter.
5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members are asked to note the contents of the report.

52

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Council’s Corporate Performance Monitoring Report includes key
financial indicators covering budget monitoring, value for money and
progress in relation to the large value savings items contained in the Medium
Term Financial Plan. Effective resource management is a critical component
in ensuring the Council is able to deliver the Council Plan and its key
objectives.

6.2

The Council Plan sets out the Council’s priorities and aspirations until 2017.
The resource and value for money implications are considered as part of the
annual budget process and in the papers considered by Council in February
each year.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

This is a report for noting and there are no specific legal implications.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

In line with the progress update considered by Cabinet in December 2015
indications at the end of quarter 3 are that good progress continues to be
made in delivering the projects and programmes in the Council Plan delivery
plan. Compared with quarter 2, we are making progress in terms of the
Children’s Improvement Plan, demonstrated by positive feedback from
OfSTED following the latest visit, and although there is still much to do to
achieve an improved inspection judgement, we are moving in the right
direction. Also, since quarter 2 we have recovered a considerable amount of
ground in terms of savings delivered from our service review programme,
with £9m of staff savings expected from the 2016/17 base budget.

8.2

Of the 20 Performance Indicators used to track the delivery of the Children’s
Improvement Plan, 13 are either on target, exceeding target, or within 5% of
target, 4 are within 5-10% of target, and 3 are more than 10% off target.

Diane Wood
Chief Executive
8th March 2016.
APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Corporate Performance Report Quarter 3 2015-16.
Electoral Division(s):

All
* Please remove whichever option is not applicable

Executive Decision

Yes*

Key Decision

No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?

53

N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

No*

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A*

*

No*

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A*

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A*

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and the Corporate Director has obtained the
necessary approvals.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER
Stewart Young – Leader of the Council
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact:

Duncan McQueen Senior Manager – Performance & Intelligence.
226293. duncan.mcqueen@cumbriacc.gov.uk

54

Appendix 1 for 24-03-2016 Cabinet Report:
COUNCIL PLAN DELIVERY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT DECEMBER 2015.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT
INCORPORATING PROGRESS AGAINST COUNCIL
PLAN DELIVERY PLAN
55

Progress to 31st December 2015
AND CHILDREN’S IMPROVEMENT PLAN PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Progress to 31st January 2016
RAG Alert

Progress against plan

Performance

RED

Has missed or is expected to miss a key milestone date in the current
plan

Off target by greater than 10% (urgent action required to improve performance)

AMBER

In jeopardy of missing a key milestone date but recovery plan in place

Off target but within target by 5-10% (some action required to improve
performance)

GREEN

On schedule or key milestone date met

On target, exceeding target, or within 5% of target (action may be required to
achieve further improvement)

Direction of Travel arrows indicates whether performance has become
better

worse

stayed the same

since the last quarter

Page 1

Priority: To safeguard children, and ensure
that Cumbria is a great place to be a child
and grow up
We will improve our safeguarding
practice and services to ensure all
children and young people in
Cumbria are safe

We will maximise capital
investment opportunities for our
schools, focusing on those in
greatest need







Target value or date

Progress to December 2015

Deliver the council’s improvement plan Secure at least a ‘Requires
Improvement’ OFSTED inspection
for children’s social care
judgement (unannounced
inspection) and look to achieve a
judgement of ‘Good’ in the longer
term

We are making progress, demonstrated in some positive feedback
from Ofsted following their monthly visit in January, they are seeing
progression between their visits. We still have much to do but are
moving in the right direction. Decrease in CLA numbers continues
but we are still high compared to statistical neighbours - again, we
are moving in the right direction. We are increasingly more
Safely reduce numbers of Looked sophisticated at targeting support at the right places to gain
After Children, in line with statistical maximum impact. We have increasing confidence leading up to our
neighbours
DfE review in March.

Deliver investment in schools

56
We will support schools to improve 
where necessary as identified by
OFSTED

↑

Prioritised maintenance programme On programme. A significant acceleration of the programme has
delivered by March 2016
been possible.

→

Complete investment in Ulverston
High School by September 2015

Complete.

→

▲

Complete investment in Rockcliffe Complete.
Primary School by September 2015

→

▲

Commence investment in Houghton Project approved for inclusion in Basic Need Programme by
Primary School in order to be
Cabinet. Business Case under development.
completed by September 2016
Complete investment in the Harraby School complete and occupied on 14 Dec 2015. Sports Hall
Community Campus including a
completion date March 2016.
new school (Pennine Way) and
Community Centre by September
2015
To facilitate the reconfiguration of
Deliver temporary accommodation Complete.
secondary school education in
on the Stainburn school site to
Workington and Whitehaven, including facilitate co-location of Stainburn
and Southfield schools by
securing the necessary investment.
September 2015
Following the successful application
for priority schools funding,
continue to support the new build
programme in Workington



Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

Secure funding for the Whitehaven
Campus project by Summer 2015
Deliver SEN Basic Needs Programme Commence delivery of investment A feasibilty study is to be complete by Feb 2016.
in new buildings for Sandside
Lodge Special School Ulverston - to
be completed by 2017
Commence delivery of investment Following star chamber sessions there is a clear direction of travel.
in residential accommodation for
The next steps for completing feasibility study expected February
James Rennie Special School - to 2016. Capital spend has be re-profiled as per the February
be completed in 2016
Cabinet paper.
Commission specialist support for
To secure improvement to
Activity Complete
maintained schools identified as
maintained Schools causing
concern by August 2015
needing improvement

↑
→

→

▲

↓
↑
→

▲
Page 2

Priority: To safeguard children, and ensure
that Cumbria is a great place to be a child
and grow up


We will work with our partners
focusing on early intervention and
developing the role of children’s
centres in delivering early help



Target value or date

Work with the Cumbria Alliance of
To secure improvement in overall
System Leaders (CASL) to establish a standards by August 2015
mutual support mechanism for schools
to maintain and improve standards

Progress to December 2015

Awaiting 2015 outcomes.

→

Review and re-design early help
Implement new contractual and
New contracts in place
provision including Sure Start
service delivery arrangements for
Children’s Centres, youth services, and the provision of Early Help services
focus family services to prevent
from April 2015
escalation need for children and
families.
Commission school age nursing
services



Commission careers information and Implement new contractual and
Contract issued and service operating. Six month contract
guidance services as part of early help service delivery arrangements from monitoring underway.
April 2015
provision

57



New contract in place by October
2015



Agree a new model for integrated 0-19 By April 2016
public health services



Establish an in-house youth service

By October 2015

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

All activity now complete.

Exploring options for integrating Public Health with Early Help 0-12
Services
Activity Complete

→

▲

→

▲

→

▲

→
↑

Page 3

Priority: To safeguard children, and ensure that Cumbria is a great place to be a child and grow up: Children’s Improvement

Target 15/16

Cumbria 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

SN 14/15

National 14/15

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Voice of the child

Good performance is

CS0.1

Description

Rate/Percentage
January 2016

Indicator

Plan Measures at January 2016.

High

85%

74.2%

68.2%

N/a

N/a

High

80%

68.7%

61.0%

N/a

N/a

Commentary

Due to changes in audit arrangements comparative
data are not available for January
CS0.6

Management oversight

Referrals within 12 months of a previous referral

23.9%

G

Improving

2.1%

Low

23.4%

33.3%

28.6%

21.6%

24.0%

CS2.1

Initial Child Protection Conferences within 15 working days

86.0%

G

Declining

+

High

83.8%

78.7%

63.8%

85.4%

74.7%

58

CS1.0

Current position
The percentage of referrals within 12 months of a previous referral fell again
this month to 23.9%%. The volume of referrals and rereferrals continues to
fluctuate, whilst at a district level performance is extremely variable with a
continuing trend of unexplained peaks and troughs.
Service Commentary
In general terms this figure has stabilised since its decline in Dec 2015 and is
now reporting as green overall. However a number of factors need to be
explored to establish why performance is so variable. Current hypothesis
include changes in the organisation of the safeguarding hub although these
could only account for variances in the last two months and the effectiveness
of step down arrangements. The latter would accord with a recent mapping
exercise which evidenced that Carlisle and Eden have a greater level of Early
Help resources than Barrow and South Lakeland which appears to have fewer
resources. This can be tested by reviewing a small sample of re-referrals. Each
area is required to carry out this exercise in time to influence March
performance figures.
Current position
86% of initial child protection conferences in January were completed within
15 working days. After a dip in performance in December this figure is back
above the target of 83.8%, although there is considerable variance across the
districts. In Carlisle & Eden all ICPCs were completed within the required
timescale, but performance in Allerdale & Copeland was below target at
76.2%.
Service commentary
The December performance figure was adversely affected by flooding
principally in the Carlisle and Eden area and to a lesser extent in the Barrow
and South lakes area. Both of these areas have seen an improvement in
January 2016 with performance at 86% above the target of 83.8%. The reason
for Allerdale and Copeland's low performance (76.2%, 16 of 21 conferences
held in time) is affected by conferences being stepped down where reports
are not produced in a timely manner. If a conference cannot be rearranged
swiftly, and this is more difficult for initial conferences because of the 15 day
timescale, the conference goes out of time. Senior managers recently
reviewed this situation and concluded that the 2 day deadline for reports and
the stepping down of conferences if they are not provided should remain in
place because of the need for complete clarity of message. Although this
indicator relates solely to social work reports the timescale needs to be
promoted in partner agencies to ensure consistency from all agencies working
to protect children.

Page 4

CS2.5

Children subject of repeat CP plan within 2 years

CS3.0

Number/rate of looked after children

CS3.4

CS3.6

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Rate/Percentage
January 2016

Indicator

Description

Target

5%-10%

6.7%

9.1%

N/a

N/a

16.2%

Low

60.0

72.4

71

52.1

60.0

Declining

1.6%

High

96%

97.3%

96.1%

N/a

N/a

Declining

1.7%

High

70%

67.4%

62.0%

68.6%
(13/14)

67.0%
(13/14)

A

Declining

69.7

R

Improving

CLA Statutory Visits

94.5%

G

CLA living in the same placement for 2+ years

68.8%

G

59

11.0%

Commentary

Current position
11% of children who became subject to a child protection plan in the year
ended 31 January 2016 had had a previous plan which had ended 2 years or
less before. This remains slightly above the target banding of 5 -10% with a
sustained rise in numbers over recent months. There is a marked contrast
between Carlisle & Eden with a current figure of 18.7% and Barrow & South
Lakeland where only 5.2% of plans were repeat.
Service commentary
Performance is virtually unchanged since December 2015. The overall rating
of amber would be significantly worse if the figure for Allerdale & Copeland
and Barrow & South Lakeland had not been at the more acceptable levels of
10.2% and 5.2% respectively. Carlisle & Eden have previously considered
performance against this indicator in some detail and there were no apparent
themes. This will need continuing focus on a case by case basis.
Current position
The number of looked after children at the end of January rose for the second
successive month with a month end figure of 650 which equates to a rate of
69.7/10,000. The rate remains highest in Allerdale & Copeland at 88.3 with a
much lower rate of 54.8 for Carlisle & Eden. Numbers in Allerdale & Copeland
appear to be still rising with this district the only one to display an increase in
numbers over the year, contrasting with the other 2 districts where numbers
have either remained static or fallen.
Service commentary
This indicator is the focus of continual scrutiny via the weekly CLA meetings.
However, it is looking unlikely that we will meet the target of 620 by March
2016. Performance varies widely across the areas and therefore a
proportionate response is required. Carlisle and Eden's figure is 54.8/10,000
which is below target and therefore there is little room to drive down this
figure further. The performance in Barrow and South Lakes is at 65.5/10,000
but in Allerdale and Copeland it is 88.3/10,000. The current hypothesis is that
the introduction of a stable and permanent leadership team for the area has
afforded greater management oversight as well as identified drift and delay.
These matters are now being more proactively managed hence the rise in the
numbers of CLA. The numbers of children leaving care in January is lower
than at any time since May 2015. The hypothesis is that this figure is adversely
affected by the number of children who are placed for adoption with their
forever families or where their foster carers are ready to apply for special
guardianship orders but court dates have not been available as swiftly as
needed.
Current position
94.5% of looked after children had an up to date statutory visit recorded at
the end of January. This has improved from December's figure of 92.7% but
remains below the target of 96%, At a district level Carlisle & Eden continue to
report the highest performance at 97.6%, with the other 2 district below
target at 94.1% for Barrow & South Lakeland and 92.8% in Allerdale &
Copeland
Service commentary
Performance needs to continue to improve until it is routinely 100% across
the service. Both Barrow & South Lakeland and Allerdale and Copeland have
had significant issues with changes of allocated workers and poorly
performing agency workers. The recruitment and retention of capable social
workers whether permanent or agency remains a challenge, Workforce issues
are being addressed via the workforce strategy.
Current position
Long term placement stability remained unchanged this month, with 68.8% of
the cohort having been in their placement for at least 2 years. At a district
level Barrow & South Lakeland has the highest proportion of children in stable
placements at 73.7 whilst figures are lower in Carlisle & Eden at 61.1%
although this has improved over recent months.
Service commentary
The Permanence Policy was launched in October 2015 and permanence

Page 5

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Rate/Percentage
January 2016

Indicator

Description

Commentary

panels have been in place since Jan 2016. 'Permanence thinking' is not yet
embedded in practice and more workshops are being rolled out to support
performance against this indicator.

CS3.12

Initial health assessments for children entering care

78.3%

A

Improving

7.9%

High

85%

54.7%

25.1%

N/a

N/a

CS3.15

Health assessments for children looked after for 12 months or more

87.0%

G

Improving

+

High

85%

89.2%

77.8%

86.0%
(13/14)

88.4%
(13/14)

60

CS3.20

Average time between entering care and placement with adoptive family

568

G

Declining

+

Low

586

520

525

586
(11-14)

628
(11-14)

CS3.21

Average time between court authority and match with adoptive family

316

R

Declining

43.1%

Low

221

246

164

221
(11-14)

217
(11-14)

CS4.0

Care leavers aged 19, 20 and 21 in suitable accommodation

87.8%

G

Sustained

+

High

83%

91.5%

83.1%

79.1%

81.0%

CS4.1

Care leavers aged 19, 20 and 21 in education, employment and training

51.9%

G

Improving

+

High

49%

51.8%

39.0%

48.1%

48.0%

CS5.0

Percentage of social work vacancies covered by agency staff

11.0%

G

Declining

+

Low

14%

9.5%

9.7%

N/a

N/a

Current position
78.3% of children who entered care in December had an initial health
assessment within the required timescale. This is an improvement from the
previous month's figure of 70% but remains below target and rated as Amber.
Figures for this indicator are reported one month in arrear.
Service commentary
A case by case analysis has been requested from senior managers as to why 5
children did not receive their IHAs in the appropriate timescale. It is
concerning that this indicator remains flexible and will be the focus of
renewed attention and oversight from the AD in CLA meetings.
Current position
87.0% of children who had been looked after for 12 months or more at the
end of January had up to date health assessments.

Current position
The average time between entering care and being placed with an adoptive
family for children who were adopted in the year to 31 January was 567.5
days with performance continuing to exceed the set target of 586 days.
Service commentary
Current practice is acceptable but as work continues to move forward the
cohort of children who have been subject to some drift and delay this figure is
likely to decline. However overall plan for this cohort is the correct one.
Current position
For children who were adopted between April 2015 and January 2016 the
average time between the granting of the placement order and a match being
agreed with the adoptive family was 316.2 days which is significantly worse
than the target of 221 days.
Service commentary
See previous commentary
Current position
87.8% of former relevant care leavers who had their 19th, 20th or 21st
birthday in the year ended 31 January were living in accommodation
considered to be suitable at the time of that birthday. This is relatively
unchanged from the previous month and remains above target , national and
statistical neighbour figures
Service commentary
The performance of the Leaving Care Service will come under additional
scrutiny in the next month as a deep dive is taking place to inform future
service developments. This will be reported to the board as appropriate.
Current position
51.9% of former relevant care leavers who had their 19th, 20th or 21st
birthday in the year ended 31 January were in education, employment or
training at the time of that birthday. This figure remains above the target of
49%, although performance for Allerdale & Copeland is slightly below this.
Service commentary
See previous commentary
Current position
The proportion of vacancies covered by agency staff has increased to 11% but
remains better than the target of 14%.

Page 6

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Rate/Percentage
January 2016

Indicator

Description

CP Reviews - all reviews in last year held in timescale

85.0%

R

Declining

11.7%

High

96.3%

95.5%

94.5%

96.9%

94.0%

CS6.1

CP Reviews - latest review up to date

93.7%

G

Declining

3.4%

High

97%

99.1%

N/a

N/a

N/a

CS6.2

CLA Reviews - all reviews in last year held in timescale

81.6%

A

Improving

9.3%

High

90%

67.2%

67.9%

N/a

N/a

CS6.3

CLA Reviews - latest review up to date

93.8%

G

Improving

+

High

90%

90.8%

N/a

N/a

N/a

61

CS6.0

CS6.4

CLA review participation for all reviews in year

85.4%

A

Improving

7.2%

High

92%

80.4%

79.2%

N/a

N/a

CS6.5

Participation in latest CLA review

93.4%

G

Improving

+

High

92%

90%

N/a

N/a

N/a

CS7-0

Early Help Assessments

15.1

G

Improving

+

High

9

11.1

3.8

N/a

N/a

Commentary

Current position
At the end of January 85% of children with a child protection plan had had all
of their reviews within the previous year held within the required timescale.
This figure continues to fall and despite more lenient tolerances remains RAG
rated as red. There is a significant difference at district level, with 97.1% of
children in Carlisle & Eden having had timely reviews, compared to 74.5% in
Barrow & South Lakeland.
Service commentary
Although the percentage of reviews held in timescale over the previous year
has declined as noted above the actual number of conferences held in
timescale has increased by 12 conferences from 238 to 250. The increase in
the number of children subject to Child Protection Plans in Allerdale and
Copeland and Barrow and South Lakeland is having a direct effect on capacity
in the social work teams in conjunction with staff turnover in both areas. The
LSCB has asked for a report on increasing numbers on plans
Current position
81.6% of looked after children had had all of their statutory reviews held
within the required timescale during the year ending 31 January. The figure
dropped this month after displaying consistent improvement for over a year
and the trajectory of improvement means that it is now unlikely that the
target of 90% will be achieved by March 2016. There is a variation across the
districts with a figure of 88.9% in Carlisle & Eden, compared to 77.8% in
Allerdale & Copeland.
Service commentary
All areas need to improve performance against this indicator.
Current position
There was a slight decline in this measure with 85.4% of looked after children
having participated in all of their statutory reviews during the previous year
compared to 86.5% at the end of December. At 78.5% performance is lowest
in Carlisle & Eden whilst Barrow & South Lakeland remains above target with
performance at 92.8%.
Service commentary
This figure is generally improving incrementally month on month. The
decision to purchase MOMO is being progressed - this is an app which
facilitates the participation of children and opportunities for consultation.
Observations of conferences have identified a general lack of the use of lack
of use of advocates. This needs to be discussed at team level to ensure all
social workers are away of the availability of advocates. A new advocacy
contract in now in place.
Current position
The number of Early Help Assessments initiated in December was 140, which
is equivalent to a rate of 15.1/10,000 population aged 0-17.

Page 7

√

% of 5 year olds achieving at least the expected ‘Good Level of
Development’ in the Early Years Foundation Stage

√

% 11 year olds achieving a combined Level 4 or above at Key Stage 2 in
reading, writing and mathematics

√

% of 16 year olds achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE (and
equivalent), including English & mathematics

√

Achievement gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers – Key
Stage 2 (Reading, writing and maths % Level 4+)

√

Achievement gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers – Key
Stage 4 (GCSE 5+ A*-C (inc English & maths))

62.9%

80.5%

56.7%

16.0%

33.5%

G

G

R

G

R

Improving

Improving

Declining

Improving

Declining

High

High

High

Low

Low

52%

75%

63%

19%

26.7%

58.60%

78.8%

56.8%

17.2%

30.5%

49.70%

77%

56.50%

19%

33.50%

67.3%

78.4%

55.8%

N/A

N/A

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Priority: To safeguard children, and ensure that Cumbria is a great place to be a child and grow up: Attainment Measures

66.3%

80%

56.1%

N/A

N/A

Commentary

Continued improvement in this new measure introduced 2013 - below the
statistical neighbour and national averages, but equal to North West average
years.
Continued improvement from previous 2 years, equal to North West and
national averages and above the average for statistical neighbours.

Slight decline in performance, broadly in line with North West, national and
statistical neighbour averages. The target is now unrealistic, as this measure
is now made against first entry to examinations only.
Gap has narrowed compared to previous year. NB: The new Disadvantaged
indicator has replaced the Free School Meals indicator.

Gap has widened compared to previous year. NB: The Disadvantaged
indicator has replaced the Free School Meals indicator.

62
Page 8

Priority: To enable communities to live
safely and shape services locally
We will develop locality based

service hubs in key service centres,
to enable access to a range of core
council services such as library

services, local links and community
development centres

Target value or date

Progress to December 2015

Implement new model for community
learning and skills

By September 2015

CMT paper on Phase 2 reshaping tabled for 9th December 2015.

Further develop area planning and
design services in localities with
communities

Implement by September 2015

Good progress has been made in adopting an area planning
approach to service reviews and reshaping.
Further area planning sessions have been scheduled during early
2016.
rd

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

→

→

3 Sector Network is supporting the area planning process and
programme of activities to underpin the reshaping of services.


63

We will ensure an effective fire and 
rescue service, targeted at
vulnerable people and areas of
highest risk





We will work with communities and 
the third sector to enable them to
create local solutions and shape
local services for the future

Streamline decision making process for By March 2016
Local Committees

Complete but further reviews will be undertaken to ensure the
decision making process is as efficient and streamlined as possible.

Explore and determine collaborative
opportunities and arrangements with
other fire and rescue services

To deliver management and service Having carefully considered the consultation responses, the
efficiencies by March 2016
Government intends to legislate to:
• introduce a high level duty to collaborate on all three
emergency services, to improve efficiency or effectiveness;
• enable Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) to take on the
functions of fire and rescue authorities (FRAs), where a local case
is made.
Deliver new blue-light hub (fire, police By September 2016
It is expected that the new plans will be accepted soon. The plans
and ambulance station) incorporating
will then be going forward to the ‘Development Committee’ in March
2016 for approval. A preferred contractor will be appointed in April
new CCC accommodation in Ulverston
2016. Expected first dig of the groundwork will take place May
2016. Expected finish in December 2016. However, this would be
the main building only.
Deliver new firefighter accommodation Initiate project for delivery in
in two locations to enable revised Day Carlisle by April 2017
Crewing Plus arrangements to be
Initiate project for delivery in West
implemented
Cumbria by April 2017

Dialogue still taking place between CFRS and FBU re the
implications of Working Time Regulations and Pension reforms.

Bring together the council’s community By March 2016
development and engagement
functions to deliver a co-ordinated
approach within each of the six Local
Committee areas

All 6 Public Health Managers have been appointed and sit within
the community services teams.

The FBU’s position on Day Crewing Plus (DCP) has changed
nationally and it is clear that they oppose this style of duty system
for the 2 main reasons above.

→

▲

→

→

↓

→

▲

Page 9

√

Number of accidental dwelling fires - no.

199

A

Sustained

Low

250

281

270

√

Number of accidental dwelling fires - per 10,000

8.3

A

Sustained

Low

10.8

11.7

12.2

√

Overall rate of work related ill health and injury (Corporate only)

√

Overall rate of work related stress, anxiety and depression (Corporate
only)

√

Overall RIDDOR (reporting of Injuries, Diseases & Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations) rate to employees (Corporate and schools)

√

Area Plans & Area Delivery Plans completed

6949

2837

537

Green

R

R

R

G

Improving

Declining

Improving

Sustained

Low

Low

Low

Plan

5150

2146

305

Sep-15

5722

2384

296

Green

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Priority: To enable communities to live safely and shape services locally: Performance Measures

Commentary

At Q3, we have 199 Accidental Dwelling Fires. This is a decrease of 3 in
comparison to the same time period last year. There are still a few
incomplete records that the Service is working on which may impact on the
accuracy of this figure.
At Q3, we have 199 Accidental Dwelling Fires. This is a decrease of 3 in
comparison to the same time period last year. There are still a few
incomplete records that the Service is working on which may impact on the
accuracy of this figure.

N/a

Target is 10% reduction on baseline. The rate reflects 316 actual number of
cases.
Health and Safety Executive (HSE) Rate is 3940
Rate is improving.

N/a

Target is 10% reduction on baseline. The rate reflects 129 actual number of
cases.
Health and Safety Executive (HSE) Rate is 1450.
Rate is increasing.

445

N/a

The rate reflects 33 (44 projected for year) actual number of cases. Rate will
exceed previous year and target figure even if no further RIDDOR cases.
Health and Safety Executive (HSE) rate is the target figure.
Area Plans and Area Delivery Plans for all 6 districts have been produced
and agreed by the respective local committees. This has now progressed
further with Area Planning sessions being held within areas on a regular
basis.

64
Page 10

Priority: To promote health and well-being,
and tackle poverty
We will drive forward joint work on 
health and wellbeing through the
Health and Wellbeing Board





65
We will integrate public health into 
all aspects of the council’s business
and put health and well-being at the
heart of our work with communities

Deliver, with partners, the Cumbria
Health and Well-being Strategy

Target value or date

Progress to December 2015

Design and begin to roll out a new Service model design being formulated.
Health and Social Wellbeing
Service by April 2016

Support the ongoing development of
Forums actively leading on service Forums now all have action plans and are reporting to the Public
Locality Health and Wellbeing Forums development at local level by April Health Alliance (PHA). Locality Public Health leads appointed.
2016
These posts will be the focal point for Forum activity.

Provide effective support for the Health Support to the Health and
Wellbeing Board provided in line
and Wellbeing Board
with the Board’s new terms of
reference

Embed public health across the full
range of the council’s activities

Initiate a strategic programme of
public campaigns aimed at
supporting behaviour change by
October 2015

A HWBB Development Session is planned for 18th January which
will explore the role of the Board in the emerging new models of
care.
Communications have been agreed and health and wellbeing
campaigns for the 'Workplace challenge', 'Dry January' and
'Smokefree' are due to be communicated to staff week commencing
4 January 2016

Integrate key public health
All Locality Public Health Managers now appointed.
programmes into the area planning
agenda by October 2015

We will introduce a ‘living wage’
within the council and encourage
other employers to do the same
through our procurement



Reshape advocacy, substance misuse, Commission reshaped advocacy
and Independent Mental Capacity
and sexual health services
Advocacy services by August 201
5

Encourage other employers to
implement the living wage

→
→

Contracts extended to March 16 to align with other advisory
services. Commissioning project for all advocacy services
underway. Advocacy contract now submitted to chest.

→
→
→
→
→

Commission reshaped substance All activity now complete.
misuse and sexual health services
by October 2015

→

Commission reshaped Independent Continues to be on track. Advocacy documents produced and
Mental Health Act Advocacy,
procurement has commenced.
Independent Advocacy, and
Healthwatch services by April 2016

→

Further develop existing actions to
build added social value into our
tenders and contracts through
promoting good employment
practices by our suppliers including
the payment of a living wage

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

The Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) development remains in
hand and on track.

Roll out “health chat” type training Training options being developed and costed. Health advocate
to more front-line staff by April 2016 training will form part of a Workplace Wellbeing offer from
November 2015



Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Transition arrangements and communication plan in place. New
contracts to take effect from February 2016 as per project plan.
Cabinet have approved Ethical Care Charter. All tenders encourage
bidders to meet Living Wage as defined by Living Wage Foundation

▲

→
Page 11

Priority: To promote health and well-being,
and tackle poverty
We will keep council tax increases 
as low as possible but in any event,
at no more than the rate of inflation

We will support people facing

financial challenges through a
range of services such as money
advice, credit unions, our ways to
welfare service and school uniform
grants and support the work of an
independent commission on welfare
reform



Target value or date

Implement the council’s medium-term Deliver budget savings for 2015/16
financial strategy and plan 2014 – 2017
Develop options to deliver a further
£33 million of savings by 2017/18
by October 2015

Progress to December 2015
On 22nd October 2015 Cabinet approved the budget public
consultation document; this set out the proposed budget savings to
deliver a balanced budget for 2016/17. Cabinet will consider the
results of the Public Consultation at its meeting on the 4th February
2016 and recommend a budget to Council on the 18th February
2016.

Ensure support is available for people To have in place by April 2016 an Service Model implemented.
integrated single point of contact for
facing financial challenges
vulnerable people
By April 2016 to have developed a Service Model implemented.
support system offering advice,
signposting and direct support to
enhance health & wellbeing and
address financial challenges
Develop close working links with
Links have developed across the county between the Ways to
Department of Work & Pensions
Welfare team, the DWP and Job Centre Plus, ongoing
and Job Centre Plus to support
communications will continue at an operational level.
vulnerable customers by July 2015
Deliver year 2 of the Council’s Anti- On track.
Deliver the Anti-Poverty Strategy
Poverty Strategy Delivery Plan

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

→
→

▲

→

▲

→

▲

→

66
Page 12

RAG (against target)

Trend over last year

Good performance is

Target 15/16

Cumbria 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

NHS health check - offered

4%

R

Declining

High

20%

6%

24%

√

NHS Health check- uptake

45%

R

Improving

High

65%

45%

46%

√

Successful completion of drug treatment & non representation - opiate users

14%

G

Improving

High

12%

6%

√

Successful completion of drug treatment & non representation - non opiate
users

54%

G

Improving

High

48%

25%

67

√

The proportion/number of adults (aged 16 and over) participating in at least four
sessions, of at least 30 minutes, of (the) sport in the last 28 days.

32.1%

R

Declining

High

35%

34%

34%

National 14/15

Rate/Percentage

√

SN 14/15

Description

Variance from target

Indicator

Priority: To promote health and well-being, and tackle poverty: Performance Measures

Commentary

The percentage of the eligible population receiving an offer of a health
check did not meet the 5% target for quarter 3.
The uptake has increased slightly but still below the national target of 65%.
Successful completion has increased: remains higher than England.
Successful completion has increased: remains higher than England.
Although the overall percentage drop since the last survey results is around
2.3%, these results show that an additional 0.7% of the adult population are
playing sport once a week compared to when the survey started back in
2005/06. Since the last survey (APS8), significant reductions in participation
in Carlisle and Allerdale have been recorded, whilst there have been a
significant increase in the Barrow-in-Furness area.

Page 13

√

√

√

17 year olds in education, employment or training

18 year olds in education, employment or training

Number of those not in education, employment or training (NEET)

33.5%

97.0%

93.8%

4.16%

G

R

A

R

G

Low

Improving

Low

Declining

High

Improving

High

Improving

Low

Improving

19%

26.7%

100%

100%

5.1%

17.2%

30.5%

95.1%

92.9%

4.4%

19%

33.50%

5.30%

N/a

N/a

Rural Growth Fund programme is in 2 tranches (RGF 3 and 4) and target is
split. RGF3 has target of 267 jobs, currently achieving 188.5, RGF4 has
target of 100, and currently achieving 39.

55

G

Improving

High

60

28+43

N/a

√

Social Enterprises support via Cumbria Social Enterprise Partnership (New starts
+ assists)

67 + 51

G

Improving

High

45+19

53+34

N/a

√

Increase in families accessing free school meals and uniform grants

7070

7620

68

√

A

High

Improving

Check

367

163

Performance has consistently remained below the target of 5.1%. Latest
data, relating to Quarter 3, shows that performance has improved from
4.7% to 4.16%.
856 Jobs Created reported as Q3 performance is actually a Programme to
Date performance. The programme is now being managed out to financial
closure with performance monitoring to continue to year end 2016/17.

Cumbria Infrastructure Fund (CIF) - £6 million investment unlocking in excess of
200 homes and 200 jobs (Homes + jobs)

227

381

National 14/15

N/a

√

300

Gap has widened compared to previous year. NB: The Disadvantaged
indicator has replaced the FSM indicator.

Performance for Quarter 3 (Oct-Dec 15 average) has continued to improve
and has increased to 93.8% from 63.6%, although there is seasonal
variation. This is below the aspirational target of 100%.

Regional Growth Fund - £9m investment & 367 jobs created or safeguarded by
2017

High

Improving

Gap has narrowed compared to previous year. NB: The new Disadvantaged
indicator has replaced the FSM indicator.

89%

Rural Growth Network - 900 Jobs created by 2016

G

Commentary

Performance for Quarter 3 (Oct-Dec 15 average) has continued to improve
and has increased to 97% from 84.4%, although there is seasonal variation.
This is below the aspirational target of 100%.

√

856

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

√

Achievement gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers – Key Stage 4
(GCSE 5+ A*-C (inc English & maths))

16.%

Trend over last year

√

Achievement gap between disadvantaged pupils and their peers – Key Stage 2
(Reading, writing and maths % Level 4+)

RAG (against target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Corporate Measures for this Priority (Anti-Poverty Strategy):

Data not available yet.
CIF is monitored on an Annual Basis.
The figure of 55 jobs created is a Programme to Date figure verified through
programme monitoring
The target has been exceeded.
Programme Closed at end of Q2 2015/16
Data for this indicator will be available in January 2016.

Page 14

Priority: To protect and enhance Cumbria’s
world class environment
Review and develop strategic
opportunities available from our
primary waste management contract
and facilities



Work collaboratively with internal and
external partners to deliver mutually
beneficial waste minimisation and
recycling activities

69

We will develop further

opportunities from our waste
services and facilities for
households, communities and
commercial operators to participate
more fully in waste minimisation
and recycling

Target value or date
Carry out a strategic review and
agree implementation plan for way
forward by March 2016



We will, as Lead Flood Authority, 
work with partners and others in the
community to ensure that Cumbria
is as prepared as possible to deal
with flooding

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

Project Board are continuing to meet and have made good
progress in developing an implementation plan for the way
forward.

→
Discussions are ongoing with the primary waste management
contractor.
Develop a programme of waste
minimisation and recycling activities
and projects by June 2015
Implement a ‘Resourceful
Communities’ pilot programme by
August 2015

We will develop opportunities to

use resources more efficiently and
effectively and to lessen the impact
of our activities on communities and
the environment

Progress to December 2015

The Resourceful Communities project is now well established with
further sessions planned for 2016.

Secure funding for waste
The Community Waste Prevention Fund was approved by Cabinet
minimisation initiatives for community and will be managed through the six Local Committees.
groups by March 2016
Develop an action plan to support
Complete the Climate Local Action The work from the Cumbria Floods Partnerships will need to be
delivery of the ‘Climate Local’
Plan by May 2015
considered as part of the review of the Climate Local Action Plan.
commitment as a framework to identify
The Floods Plan is expected to be published in August 2016.
energy opportunities and build climate
resilient communities
Climate Local Action Plan to be reviewed before May 2016 – New
Plan developed through the summer with a view to publishing a
new Plan in September/October.

Explore ways to reduce our carbon
footprint

Reduce the carbon output from
corporate properties in line with the
Carbon Reduction Commitment by
March 2016

Explore potential benefits from
renewable energy sources such as
solar power and biomass by March
2016
Investigate relevant risk of
Secure funding by June 2015 and
flooding/flood events and undertake
implement the agreed funded
studies or works as agreed through the programme
Environment Agency’s Medium Term
plan
Adopt and embed the draft Surface
Water Management Strategy by
March 2016

Future of Climate Local still under review by Local Government
Association but likely to form key part of Climate UK future activity.
Preparatory works commissioned for roof repairs at Lillyhall Depot
and Inglewood Older People’s Home. Parkhouse delayed until
clarification of issues with Kingmoor Park Landlord. Tenders
issued for Solar PV installation (tenders return date 15.01.16).
Installation of PVs projected completion March 2016.

→

▲
(All except waste
minimisation
initiatives)

→

↓

Flood Investigations on programme and reports complete.

Confirmation of funding from DEFRA received for 2015/16 to be
included in Capital Programme. Schemes now being included in
county Capital Programme.

→

▲
(Funded programme
only)

Good progress made on the Surface Water Management Strategy

Page 15

√

Reduce total household waste produced (measured in kg per person) –
old BVPI 84a

√

Increase the proportion of household waste recycled (measured as a
%age of total household waste re-used, recycled or composted) – old
NI192

√

Reduce the total tonnage of household waste sent to landfill (measured
in tonnes) – old BVPI 82d

√

Reduce the proportion of household waste sent to landfill (measured as
a %age of total household waste landfilled) – old BVPI 82d

All Emergency plans and Business Continuity plans are current in
accordance with regulations

To Q2
2015/16
261.7 kg
(263.5 kg
Q2
2014/15).
To Q2
2015/16
49.0%
(53.4% Q2
2014/15)
To Q2
2015/16
28,235
tonnes
(18,694
tonnes Q2
2014/15)
To Q2
2015/16
21.6% (14.3
% Q2
2014/15)

N/A

G

G

R

Low

Improving

High

Improving

Low

Declining

483.70

49%

35000

377.24

49.4%

36070

483.7

49%

45824

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last quarter

RAG (against target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Priority: To protect and enhance Cumbria’s world class environment: Performance Measures

Commentary

Data is from provisional figures to the end of Q2 as reported to Waste
Dataflow. Reporting on waste data is always a quarter in arrears.
Compared to Quarter 2 last year tonnages for recycling have increased.

Closure of one MBT plant for much of Quarter 1 resulted in a reduction in
recycled materials from the MBTs. Data for Quarter 2 shows an increase in
total recycling and composting from districts and HWRCs compared to
Quarter 2 last year.
Closure of one MBT plant during Quarter 1 resulted in waste being
diverted to landfill for nearly 3 months. The target may be exceeded,
although above-target levels of landfill diversion have been maintained
since. Figures do not yet reflect additional tonnages to landfill as a result
of the flooding in December.
As above.

R

A

Improving

Sustained

84.0%

Low

High

15%

100%

14.97%

100%

19.45%

N/a

The BAE plan was published in accordance to the regulations in
September 2015 and the Sellafield plan is still on track to be delivered on
the 1st December 2015. This is with in regulations, but until fully delivered
the rating should remain Amber.

70
Page 16

Priority: To provide safe and well
maintained roads and an effective transport
network
We will provide a well maintained
highways and transport network
and maximise new investment



Develop and implement a Highways
Strategy

Target value or date

Implement a Highways Board to
ensure the Highways service is
efficient and effective by June 2015

Progress to December 2015

Next Highways Improvement Board meeting scheduled for 28th
January 2016 to progress implementation of the Highways
Strategy.

Deliver the Highways and Transport The programmes were on track for delivery at the point of the
maintenance programme on time
severe weather event. At this point in time it is considered likely
and in budget
that the programmes will be delivered in full but the full
consequences of December's weather are not fully known.

71

Continue to secure additional funding DfT incentive fund action plan progressing in readiness for
where possible, and implement
submission for a revised date of 31st January 2016. Service
funded schemes by March 2016 in standards being developed for implementation as part of a revised
line with Council’s strategic approach Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) in April 2016.

We will work to ensure that we
retain and improve Cumbria’s rail
services, infrastructure and
connectivity through active
engagement in the national
refranchising and investment
programmes



We will work with communities and 
the third sector to develop
sustainable community transport
solutions

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

↑

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

▲
(Highways Board)

→
↑

Maximise opportunities to influence rail Seek to secure service and
West Coast Main Line (WCML) refranchise consultation now
infrastructure improvements to the
expected 2016 - Summer Expression of Interest with bids
and transport infrastructure
West Coast Main Line by responding submitted by end of 2016.
to the franchise by summer 2015
Through our membership of Rail
North Ltd seek to continue to
Northern line franchise has been awarded to Arriva. The TPE
influence and engage with the Trans franchise has been awarded to First.
Pennine Express and Northern
franchise process by Franchise
Award date in December 2015, and
by Franchise start date in April 2016
Work with transport providers, both
Increase the available pool of
Target achieved. 376 volunteers participating in local schemes.
commercial and voluntary sector and volunteers to 345, to drive, cocommunities to provide local transport ordinate and deliver local schemes
by March 2016
solutions
Increase accessibility to and county- Still seeking to identify opportunities in Barrow and Copeland.
wide availability of Community
Wheels by March 2016
Publish post 16 transport policy
statement by end of May 2015

↑

→

▲
(All except Community
Wheels)

Target achieved.

Page 17

RAG (against target)

Trend over last year

Good performance is

Target 15/16

Cumbria 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Right First Time

96%

G

Declining

High

85%

94.0%

94%

√

End to End Time

18

G

Improving

Low

10-30

27

33

√

Improved network condition (PRN/NPRN)

6%

G

Sustained

High

6%

6%

5%

√

Maintenance (Local Committee) programme of works completed

100%

G

Sustained

Plan

100%

99.0%

N/a

National 14/15

Rate/Percentage

√

SN 14/15

Description

Variance from target

Indicator

Priority: To provide safe and well maintained roads and an effective transport network: Performance Measures

Commentary

Performance is better than target and an improvement on 13/14 and
14/15, however performance has dipped from 98% last quarter.
Performance is an improvement on the baseline and within the green
parameter. Performance has also improved this quarter to 18 days,
compared with 25 days at Quarter 2 to September 2015.
Annual measure

Local Committee programmes are being delivered on time and on budget
at this point in the year.

72
Page 18

Priority: To promote sustainable economic
growth, and create jobs


We will seek to ensure that
broadband is rolled out across the
county in a timely manner



Ensure a positive working relationship
on major nuclear related developments
through the Planning Performance
Agreements with NuGen, National Grid
and Sellafield

Oversee delivery of superfast
broadband phase 1

73

We will create a positive working
relationship with government and
the nuclear industry to ensure the
best outcomes for Cumbria,
particularly in the areas of safety,
waste management, investment
and employment



We will work as strategic planning 
authority with our partners to ensure
that we are more effective in
delivering sustainable development
to meet the needs of our
communities and ensure that we

maintain the quality of Cumbria’s
world class environment

Seek to obtain funding for, and then
extend, delivery of superfast
broadband phase 2

Undertake the key public consultation
stages in the development of the
Cumbria Minerals and Waste Local
Plan (CWMLP)

Target value or date
Respond to Stage 1 NuGen
consultation by July 2015

Progress to December 2015

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

Response to Stage 1 NuGen consultation completed.

Respond to the first stage of formal Work underway to identify the legacy priorities for CCC.
consultation under the Planning Act
2008 for the North West Coastal
Connections Project by May 2016
Continue to lobby for funding to
address the cumulative impacts and
opportunities of the major nuclear
related developments to maximise
growth, investment and employment
Achieve target of 93% coverage by A contractual Force Majeure event was accepted in December
December 2015
because of the floods. Fibre infrastructure was provided to
114,760 premises against a target of 115,782. The shortfall will be
made up in January.
Funding agreed and contract in place LEP approved expression of interest and detailed application
by May 2015
being developed for the LEP to be submitted by 16 Feb 2016.
Design consultants appointed to develop the scheme.
Achieve target of 95% coverage by
December 2017
Submission of Minerals and Waste Submission was delayed by Supplementary Sites consultation.
Local Plan for Examination by
Cabinet will be asked to approve the pre-submission consultation
November 2015
draft of the Cumbria Minerals and Waste Local Plan in March
2016. The plan will be submitted for examination in June

Liaise with local planning authorities,
developers and partners to ensure
local development and infrastructure
plans are aligned with corporate
priorities, Area plans and the Strategic
Economic Plan (SEP), and to secure
funding where possible

Seek to enter into Statement of Intent As of December 2015, Statement of Intent entered into with SLDC,
with the local planning authorities in Barrow, Eden, Copeland, Carlisle (Allerdale signed the statement
order to identify, prioritise and fund of intent in January 2016).
the infrastructure necessary to
support development proposed in
Joint work is underway on infrastructure planning for Eden and
local plans.
Carlisle Local Plans.

We will work with partners to help 
people acquire the skills and
qualifications they need to meet the
future needs of the economy

Contribute to the work of the Local
Enterprise Partnership Employment
and Skills Commission to develop
opportunities at all skills levels

Cumbria Skills Plan to be reviewed
by the LEP in July 2015

We will work with the Local

Enterprise Partnership to create a
growth strategy for Cumbria that will
secure investment and create more
and better jobs by making Cumbria
a place where businesses can
thrive

Work with the LEP to oversee and
progress the delivery of the Cumbria
Growth Deal Programme

£47.7 million of Cumbria Growth
Letter received from Government confirming that all 'Enhanced
Deal funding allocated between 2015 Growth Deal' projects have now been approved. Progress
and 2021.
continues to be made on the delivery of projects in 15/16. On
track to deliver the £9.1m of spend with some adjustments being
£9.1m of investment from the
made to the spend profile.
Cumbria Growth Deal by March 2016

Evidence base for the Skills Plan has been prepared.
Consultations on the draft skills plan to be undertaken in January.

→

▲
(Response to NuGen
consultation only)

→
→
→

→

→
↑

Page 19

√

√

Number of Planning Applications determined within the statutory timeframe (13 weeks), to
ensure effective delivery of sustainable development. Figure derived from 2-year rolling basis.

89%

G

Declining

High

50%

85%

68.5%

93% of properties in the county have superfast broadband

88%

A

Improving

High

93%

70.0%

65%

Rural Growth Network - 900 Jobs created by 2016

210

G

Improving

High

300

381

N/a

Regional Growth Fund - £9m investment & 368 jobs (was 600) created or safeguarded by 2017

45

G

Improving

High

150

163

N/a

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Priority: To promote sustainable economic growth, and create jobs: Performance Measures

Commentary

Performance continues to exceed government and local targets, however
performance has dipped to 89% this quarter compared with 92% last
quarter.

A contractual Force Majeure event was accepted in December because of
the floods. Fibre infrastructure was provided to 114,760 premises against
a target of 115,782. The shortfall was made up in January. It should be
noted that the county percentage coverage is subject to factors outside of
the control of the council including the success of commercial deployment
programmes and development of new properties. The current countywide fibre coverage is 88%.
Rural Growth Network still on track to be achieved.

Contract size has been reduced and therefore the number of jobs to be
created or safeguarded has also been reduced accordingly. New target is
368 jobs (over all years). Still on course to achieve this.
Annual monitoring is yet to be completed. Data not available yet.

Cumbria Infrastructure Fund - £6 million investment unlocking in excess of 200 homes and 200
jobs (Homes + jobs)

High

60

28+43

N/a

High

45+19

53+34

N/a

The target has been exceeded.
Social Enterprises support via Cumbria Social Enterprise Partnership (New starts + assists)

67 + 51

G

Improving

74
Page 20

Priority: To support older and vulnerable
people to live independent and healthy lives
We will ensure adults at risk are
free from harm and abuse in their
home and community



We will explore the creation of a
single commissioning body – in
order to improve services and
reduce costs





75



We will focus on prevention and

proactive support for excluded and
vulnerable adults through the
coordination of a range of key
services including our
Neighbourhood Care Independence 
programme and investment in
support for carers






Implement new ways of working to
improve practice in operational teams
building on the introduction of
safeguarding passports, learning from
audits and ensure we comply with the
requirements of the Care Act
Develop and deliver a commissioning
strategy for adult social care.

Target value or date
Embed systems to monitor the
quality of care in care homes jointly
with the NHS by April 2016

Work continues in this area with a Safeguarding Adults Manager
in mental health to support safeguarding.

Deliver Adults Commissioning
Strategy Year 1 Action Plan by
March 2016

Commissioning strategy consultation underway. Specific
engagement with stakeholder partners, users and carers also
underway.

Develop and deliver a business plan for Plan agreed by September 2015
Cumbria Care

Develop plans for integration of
commissioning with the NHS for key
service areas

Extended joint specialist mental
health and learning disability
commissioning arrangements in
place by September 2015

Appoint to a new Assistant Director
role to lead in integrating our
commissioning and improving health
and care outcomes for vulnerable
people
Minimise the need for other care
Redesign of pathways to reablement
services through use of technology and and improve reablement service
outcomes by September 2015
other interventions
Implement an Assistive Technology
strategy by April 2016
Review services that support excluded By July 2015
and vulnerable adults to ensure that
they are fit for purpose and sustainable
Develop proposals for prevention
services that support the whole
population to improve health and
wellbeing and prevent deterioration
Deliver an improved information and
advice service for the whole population
to comply with the requirements of the
Care Act

Progress to December 2015

By September 2015

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

→

Due to the alignment of the business plan with the strategy the
timescales have been realigned the business plan will be
complete by April 2016 following the commissioning strategy
discussions at Cabinet in February 2016
North East and Cumbria Transforming Care Fast Track has
produced a draft Transforming Care plan. The national
programme requires the 'first cut' of such plans to be available by
8 Feb 2016. A local/Cumbria plan will be necessary to add detail
to the regional version. The information for social care element
has been drawn together to be combined with NHS input to make
joint plan.

Due to complexity in the development of the reablement pathway,
timescales have been realigned. The full implementation will be
complete by April 2016 with union engagement in January 2016
On track and new procurement specification drafted to align with
strategy,
New operating model in development and being considered by
DMT in January for implementation. Review will be completed bt
April 2016 with a detailed implementation plan

→
↑

→

→
→
→

Service Model Development being formulated.

→

Include self-serve and incorporate
Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) is due to be discussed at
other council services and partner
the reformed Care Act meetings in Health and Care Services
agencies into baseline offer by
week commencing 11/01/16.
December 2015
Redesign teams and workflow to
Further workshops held to define requirements with more than 100
deliver savings of £1 million by April staff, business case in draft and being considered by DMT in
2016, and £3.25 million by April 2017 January 16.
Ensure compliance with new legal
Compliance with Care Act
Controcc remains on track to be implemented in March prior to
year-end account changes.
requirements as set out in the Care Act responsibilities required by April
2016
Transformed care pathway in place
and all IT solutions in place for
testing by December 2015, and
implemented by April 2016

→
↑

→

Page 21

Priority: To support older and vulnerable
people to live independent and healthy lives




Target value or date

Transform the care pathway so that the Introduce self-assessment systems
Act is implemented within a lean
by April 2016
systems design – a core component of
which is a change in emphasis towards
self/supported-assessment and selfservice

Progress to December 2015
This remains on track, further workshops held to define digital
requirements with more than 100 staff, final report and
specification to be presented to DMT for consideration in January
16.

Improve the experience of young
Implement new transition protocol by Timescale realigned. The work on transitions is strategically linked
people transitioning from Children’s to September 2015
to reviews across health and care services and savings proposals
being considered by Cabinet. The transitions protocol will be
Adult services
finalised in March 2016.

We will invest in extra care housing 
to enable people to live
independently for as long as
possible

Facilitate the delivery of extra care
housing across the county

We will work with our partners in

the health sector to bring services,
particularly for adults with combined
health and social care needs,
together

Progress the countywide integration of Deliver in line with the targets in the
health and social care services through Better Care Fund plan by April 2016
delivery of plans set out in the Better
Care Fund plan

Initiate a programme of new extra
Extra care strategy is complete and out for consultation. District
care schemes to facilitate completion lead meeting have been planned.
or in development by 2017

Q2 Better Care Fund (BCF) return submitted. Requirement
highlighted to better co-ordinate the range of programmes and
information-gathering for the BCF from the two whole economy
programmes: Better Care Together and Success Regime.
Discussion at joint commissioning board has resulted in a
proposal to improve/simplify governance arrangements around
major transformation programmes in the BCF especially regarding
performance.

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

↑
↑
→

→

76
Page 22

CSC 1

77

CSC 2

Number of people who have assistive
technology/telecare.

Ratio of safeguarding referrals to alerts

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last year

RAG (against target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Priority: To support older and vulnerable people to live independent and healthy lives: Performance Measures

Commentary

Current figures show that target has been exceeded and performance
is IMPROVING. This is a measure of the number of people with
assistive technology packages with an assumption that this could assist
a reduction in cost of care packages.
2249

G

mproving

High

2000

2043

1405

n/a

n/a
Of the total, 859 (38%) receive the service as part of a long term care
plan, and 1,390 (62%) on a short term preventative basis. The number
of long term users is decreasing and the number of short term users is
increasing.
The figure has been sustained around the 1/3 to 1/4 position, and at
Quarter 3 15/16 is 26.4%.

1/4

G

Sustained

Smaller

1/3

1/4

n/a

n/a

n/a

CSC 3

% of Community based service users in
receipt of a Direct Payment

26.0%

R

Improving

High

tbc

17.1%

15.0%

CSC 4

Permanent admissions of older people (65+)
to residential and nursing care homes per
100,000 population

522.4

G

Improving

low

600.1

588.8

579.9

CSC 5

Reablement (increase effectiveness of) discharge from hospital 65+

89.2%

G

Sustained

High

91.1%

89.7%

CSC 6

New Eligible People Receiving Reablement
18+ (BCF 5)

1399
New
people

G

Improving

High

2657
(14/15
Baseline + 623
new people)

2034

n/a

n/a

n/a

CSC 7

Waiting time from new referral to
completion of first assessment

35
days

R

Declining

Low

28

30

30

n/a

n/a

Performance was expected to improve in Quarter 3 due to the
implementation of the ‘Support at Home’ framework however, due to
the retendering of the homecare contract there have been
approximately 300 Direct Payment requests county wide which are
currently being processed. The effect of this will be shown in Quarter
4 figures. Work is underway to compare performance with other
authorities to inform target setting, however current performance is
perceived to be low at 26%, although this has increased compared
with 14/15.
For quarter 3 there were 5,462 service users receiving community
based services. Of those, 1,448 were in receipt of a direct payment.
Although based on customer choice, practitioners are continuing a
drive to increase take-up (alongside an increase in take-up from the
Independent Service Fund (ISF), training is being provided for Social
Workers, and managers are challenging the take up of DP ate regular
resource management meetings.
The latest annual 12 month figure to December 2015 shows a
substantial decrease in the rate per 100,000 of permanent residential
admissions. This was expected as the current trend of number of
permanent admits has continued to decline during Quarter 3. The
actual number of placements for older adults was 605 for the 12
months ending December 2015 and for the same period ending
September 2015 the number of placements was 701.
This data is from a number of sources in health - due to its nature
there is a delay in obtaining it. Data provided is one quarter behind. i.e.
Q2 data becomes available towards end of Q3.
The baseline for people receiving reablement services in 14/15 was
2034. The target of number of new eligible people in 15/16 is 623,
which makes the resultant cumulative target 2657.
st
The number of new eligible people at 31 December was 1,399 which
far exceeds the target for 15/16
This is not a national measure so benchmarking comparison is not
available.
This is a measure from the point of referral through to the first
assessment. The declining figure may be due to practitioners having
the ability to pause assessments. 28 days is recognised nationally as a
'good practice' target. Referrals are being prioritised and allocations to
teams are being managed. A redesign of workflow is underway to
increase productivity. Single Point of Access teams are signposting to
other appropriate services to manage demand for assessments.
Quality checks by team managers in place to achieve timely sign-off.

Page 23

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance
is

Variance from
target

Trend over last
year

RAG (against
target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Priority: To support older and vulnerable people to live independent and healthy lives: Performance Measures

CSC 8

% of Service users not reviewed/reassessed
in last 12 months

41.0%

R

Declining

Low

0%

28.0%

28.0%

n/a

n/a

CSC 9

Proportion of carers with evidence of direct
support

16.4%

A

Sustained

High

tbc

17.2%

n/a

40.0%

31.0%

Commentary

This measure looks at number of service users who have received a
review or reassessment over the last 12 months against service users
who have or have had an active support plan in the last 12 months.
This measure has declined significantly from 28% in 2013/14 to the
currently figure of 41%.
An independent Social Work company is currently working alongside
teams to address the backlog of reviews. Within the redesign of
services priority will be to target assessments and reviews, including
carrying out reviews in different ways.
This measure demonstrates the shift from jointly provided support
with the ‘Cared For’ to support which can be directly evidenced as
provided to the Carer. Cumbria has persistently been an outlier with
regard to joint support working and this practice currently continues to
be evidenced.
Team Managers are currently considering carers assessments carried
out by carer’s organisations. These are now being dealt with in a more
timely manner, enabling more timely access to the carers budget.

78
Page 24

Priority: To be a modern and efficient
council
We will change the culture of the

organisation and support our
members and employees as we go
through change



79
We will commission and procure
services in a more efficient way,
reducing duplication, improving
services and meeting the wider
aims of the council

We will make our internal support
services much more efficient







Deliver the workforce plan

Target value or date
By March 2017

Leadership and management
development programmes complete
by May 2015
Behaviours and competency
framework fully in operation by
August 2017
Develop and deliver a Member
Strategy developed by December
Development Strategy, linking to Local 2015
Committees

Continue to consolidate and embed the Deliver options appraisal/business
centralisation of procurement, and the cases and tendering programme as
directed by Cabinet Procurement
corporate procurement strategy
Working Group, including award of
Home Care and Support
Frameworks by December 2015

Complete ICT infrastructure
programme

Review and improve business
management systems across the
organisation, and invest in core
information technology systems and
projects to drive efficiency

Release Learning and Development
efficiency savings of £300,000 by
March 2016
Implement range of new
technologies by March 2016,
including MS Lync, completion of
Windows 7, upgrading video
conferencing facilities and the
introduction of tablet and new mobile
devices
Develop a Digital Strategy by July
2015, and implement actions in the
Strategy to improve customer
interaction – including systems and
processes in readiness for the Care
Act by December 2015
Develop a business case and
implementation plan for
establishment of a service centre
model for transactional activities by
December 2015
Reshape the communications
function by June 2015

Progress to December 2015
The Service Review programme is underway and reflects and
supports delivery of the Workforce Plan. The competency
framework is progressing and being embedded into this process.
Refreshed Workforce Plan being developed and will be presented
to Cabinet in March 2016
Completed.

Implementation of the competency framework is underway
through the Service Review Programme with core competencies
forming part of new Role Profiles.
The Member development group has agreed to use the LGA
Political Skills framework as the basis for the Member
development strategy. The Organisation Learning & Development
Manager has met with Area Managers to seek their input on
behalf of the Local Committees to the Member development
strategy, and the Member development group now has a Member
‘champion’ from each Local Committee.
Cabinet Procurement Working Group is providing political direction
and oversight on range of procurement and contract management
issues. Service Review of procurement commenced in November
and will deliver £585k reduction to the staffing budget as well as
centralisation of the transport contracts activities.

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

→
→

▲

↑
→

→

Service Review of Learning and Development on track
MS Lync being roll-out across key sites and being well received.
Roll-out of tablets to elected members and ELT. New smart
phones being rolled out to members prior to full council
implementation.

→

Digital Strategy Action Plan being progressed with a detailed
programme plan in place.

A range of functions now being transitioned into the Service
Centre. Market engagement taking place to inform development
of a customer portal

→

▲

Communications reshape complete.

Page 25

Priority: To be a modern and efficient
council


We will pursue opportunities for

more efficient service delivery by
closer working with the other tiers of
local government

We will rationalise our property and 
improve our office accommodation



80
We will reshape the organisation by 
reviewing management structures
and reducing management costs


Review and embed the council’s
revised governance arrangements to
improve the efficiency of the Council

Target value or date

Deliver a programme of awareness- On track. Constitution was approved by Council in September.
raising and support to embed the
Information sessions provided for Members in the summer.
council’s revised constitution into
Elements of a Training programme currently being delivered.
how the council operates
On track. LGPS and Fire Scheme Boards established in July 15.
Implement Local Pensions Boards by
July 2015
On track. The Council’s Audit Plan will be completed as planned
Deliver the Council’s Audit Plan by and in time to deliver an annual audit opinion to Audit and
March 2016
Assurance committee on 24 June 2016

Identify and progress opportunities for Establish formal service level
shared and closer working with district agreements for provision of
procurement services to 2 District
councils and other partners
Councils from April 2015

Continue to deliver the Better Places
for Work Programme

Progress to December 2015

Agree collaborative ICT work
programme with health in order to
optimise resource allocation and
improve access to systems and
information
Work proactively with the Cumbria
Association of Local Councils
(CALC) on service delivery
opportunities
Continue the process of rationalising
to 2 buildings in the Carlisle area,
including the delivery of a new
council building by March 2016
Agree an office property strategy for
West Cumbria by June 2015

Reshape the Council’s Extended

→

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

▲
(Local Pensions
Boards only)

Service Level Agreements (SLA's) continue for provision of
procurement with District Councils.

Progress is being made on collaboration on ICT and Workforce
Planning with health with the Information Governance Toolkit
submission being successful and work being undertaken on the
provision of a digital roadmap with health.
Work continues to liaise with District Councils, partners and CALC
to explore opportunities for shared and closer working.

→

→

On track with continued flexibility using BP4W Programme

Awaiting details of HMRC requirements at West Cumbria house
which could lead to the building being vacant. Transfer of West
Cumbria House still continuing with the aim for completion before
the end of the financial year.
Agree an office property strategy for First report completed to demonstrate site capabilities. Continue
Kendal by September 2015
to work with partners on options.
Review and deliver the Strategic Asset Deliver capital receipts of £2.5 million £3.6m completed sales by end December with anticipated sales of
£1.9m to complete by end March 2016.
by end of March 2016
Management Plan
Seek opportunities for transfer of
Nine Community Asset Transfers under consideration; seven
property assets for use by
transfers approved by Cabinet awaiting legal completion.
community groups by March 2016
Review of the Strategic Asset
Draft still being finalised for Cabinet consideration June 2016.
Management Plan complete by
March 2016
Working in partnership with Carlisle LEP Outline Business Cases have been submitted to LEP
City Council to bring forward
Investment Panel working in Partnership with Carlisle City Council
proposals for development of Courts
complex
Deliver the planned development of Community Infrastructure Fund application for funding being
Portland Square in Carlisle
prepared for submission in January.
Implement Business Support Review

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliver first phase of review,
Remaining step-up savings for 2016-17 to be delivered via
releasing £500,000 savings by March Directorates taking locality basis
2016
By May 2015
The Service Review programme is underway following
consultation with members and trade unions. The first phase of

→
↓
↑
→
→
→
↑
↑
↓
→
Page 26

Priority: To be a modern and efficient
council

Target value or date

Leadership Team



Review and restructure Council
services

Systematic programme of service
reviews to commence from May
2015

Progress to December 2015

Direction of Travel
(Sep to Dec)

Deliverable
Achieved/
Completed (▲)

Service Reviews have been complete and are progressing to
implementation. The timescale of a small number of service
reviews have been impacted by the floods but overall the
programme is on track.
Overall status has improved from red to amber as a result of
successful progress made in over 25 Service Reviews since the
lower than planned take up of VR in May.
The service review programme is progressing to planned
timescales and will deliver over £9m of staffing cost reduction from
the 2016/17 base budget.

↑

81

Trade Union relationships remain constructive with TU colleagues
working closely with the project team to support the programme
planning, assist with staff engagement, consultation and
communications.

Page 27

% variance from revised revenue budget outturn

% variance on capital programme

Net pressure of £0.944m
against a net revenue
budget of £406.141m is
forecast (0.23%).

Variance of £7.140m =
5.7% (£123.858m revised
programme compared
with £114.218m
forecast)

G

G

Sustained

Improving

Plan

Plan

0%

20%

0.0%

15.7%

0%

43.80%

Slippage of £8.861m on a
revised programme of
£123.858m (7.2%).

G

Improving

Plan

20%

11.5%

42.50%

Efficiency savings in MTFP

It is estimated that
savings of £33.578m will
be made against the
budgeted savings of
£39.883m (84.2%), a
shortfall of £6.305m
(15.8%) in 2015/16

A

Improving

Plan

100%

93.0%

80%

82

Amount of slippage on capital programme

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good performance is

Variance from target

Trend over last quarter

RAG (against target)

Description

Rate/Percentage

Indicator

Priority: To be a modern and efficient council: Performance Measures

Commentary

The revenue outturn position of a £0.944m pressure on the net revenue
budget for the Council at the end of December 15/16 is set out in the
report to be submitted to the Cabinet meeting on 24 March 2016.
The estimated outturn position includes flood related costs of £4.180m of
which £1.139m is expected to require to be funded from General fund
Balances. Excluding flooding the estimated outturn position is a £0.195m
underspend. The Directorate pressures are in Children’s Services
(£2.719m), Health & Care Services (£0.620m) and Cross Cutting
Streamlining Management Savings (£3.689m). This is offset by a forecast
underspend on Chief Executives Office (£0.826m), Environment &
Community Services (£0.267m) and Fire & Rescue Services (£0.048m).
Combined these Directorate pressures and underspend give a net
Directorate pressure of £5.888m.
The Directorate net pressures are offset by savings of £6.083m on other
items budgets made up of £3.473m of treasury management savings,
inflation savings of £1.681m and creditors that are no longer required
£0.672m.
The forecast outturn for the Council Capital Programme is £114.218m
against the budget of £123.858m giving a variance of £7.140m.

There is slippage of £8.861m against the Council's Capital Programme of
£123.858m. The significant areas of slippage are highlighted below:
• £0.555m of slippage for Extra Care Housing / Accommodation with Care
and Support as the Brampton scheme is now expected to be completed in
2016/17.
• £1.131m of slippage in Highways Block Funding due to delays to various
schemes largely down to the impact of the December floods.
• £0.308m CNDR Land Purchase / Ancillary schemes mainly as payments
for land purchases are slower than expected.
• £0.937m of slippage for Local Lead Flood Authority Delivery, the
programme is now agreed with the Environment Agency and more
schemes are to be delivered in 2016/17 than originally expected.
• £1.170m of slippage in Corporate Maintenance schemes. Slippage is due
to in part to December floods (£0.460m) and also to strategic decisions on
the corporate portfolio (£0.710m).
• £1.175m of slippage in the Strategic Acquisition Fund.
• £1.400m of slippage in ICT and EDRMS. Delivery of a number of parts of
the schemes is now to be delivered in 2016/17 – ICT development
£0.800m and EDRMS £0.600m.
• £0.750m of slippage in Fire Vehicle Replacement, current discussions
within the NW region re new firefighting technology means that the
specification for the 6 new fire appliances will not be finalised until late
this calendar year. Procurement will follow but it is unlikely to result in
spend this financial year due to the timescales involved so slippage of full
2015/16 budget projected.
• £1.435m of slippage in various other schemes
The planned 2015/16 savings target of £39.883m; this is made up of
£32.558m new savings identified in the 2015/16 – 2017/18 MTFP and
£7.325m of existing savings identified in previous years MTFPs.
Directorate budget forecasts include the forecast delivery of £27.444m
against the new savings target, this is an increase from Q2 of £0.055m and
£6.134m against the existing savings target, this is unchanged since Q2; a
total of £33.523m (84.2%) of the total savings target. The shortfall in the
delivery of savings targets is being partially offset set by other mitigating
actions within Directorates and savings against corporate budgets.

Page 28

% of FOI and EIR requests dealt with within statutory timescale

75%

R

Declining

High

90%

72.0%

83%

√

% of corporate complaints dealt with satisfactorily at informal stage

90%

G

Sustained

High

90%

93.0%

88%

√

Satisfaction with CCC Website-SOCTIM-% users ok, satisfied or very satisfied with website

60%

Improving

High

53%

52.0%

51%

Improve number and proportion of local suppliers winning CCC contracts

84%

G

Declining

Plan

75%

87%

N/a

83

√

G

√

Develop and implement a disposals programme to achieve at least £2.5M p.a. capital receipts
for the next 3 years

£3.6m

G

Improving

High

5.0

5.8

4.4

√

Full Time Equivalents

4454

G

Improving

Plan

4779

4629

4779

National 14/15

SN 14/15

Cumbria 13/14

Cumbria 14/15

Target 15/16

Good
performance is

Variance from
target

Trend over last
quarter

RAG (against
target)

Description

Rate/Percenta
ge

Indicator

Priority: To be a modern and efficient council: Performance Measures

Commentary

Performance for the 9 months to September 2012 has dipped again this
quarter (75%). Performance remains below target for 2015/16 (90%),
however it remains above rate achieved in 2014/15 (72%). The
combined number of requests received in the 9 months to 31st
December 2015 was 1,127. Of those, 193 were under the EIR
regulations and 93% of those were responded to within the 20 day
statutory period, and so the focus for improvement continues to be the
handling of FOI requests.
Performance for the 9 month period April to December 2015 was 90%
and on target (90%). There were 197 complaints received and 178 were
dealt with satisfactorily at informal stage. This represents a good level of
achievement and sustained performance over the first 3 quarters of
2015/16.
Performance was recorded at 60% for the months Oct-Dec 15 and
includes all OK, Satisfied or Very Satisfied responses.

In the 9 months to December 2015 a total of £3.6m of capital
receipts were realised with a further £1.9m expected by the end of
March 2016.
FTE numbers are reducing in line with plan.

√

Staff Attendance

11.6

R

Declining

Low

10.5

12.5

13.8

√

% of managers on or completed leadership and management programmes

19%

R

Sustained

High

95%

38.0%

0%

Corporate target of 8 has been set by 2017/18, with target for this
financial year of 10.5, whilst it is unlikely that we will achieve the
performance target for this financial year, due to current trends and
anticipated winter related sickness absence, the absence figures have
dipped slightly this quarter to 11.6 days compared with 11.5 days lat
quarter.
The current cohorts of Senior Managers Leadership 2 day programme
MDP 3 day programme have concluded further dates for early 2016 will
be scheduled and planned. Work has commenced for the pilot 'Team
Leader' Programme which will be rolled out across the council in early
2016.

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
CABINET
Meeting date:
From:

24 March 2016

Corporate Director – Environment &
Community Services

WORKFORCE PLAN 2016 - 2019
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents for approval the draft Workforce Plan 2016-19.
The Workforce Plan sets out how we intend to develop our workforce
to be flexible and agile, with the appropriate skills, to meet the future
needs of the local communities we serve, whilst operating within
reduced means.

1.2

The Council Plan outlines the vision for the council and the priorities
we will focus on to achieve our vision. Our Medium Term Financial Plan
outlines the funding that we receive and how we plan to use it across
our directorates. The Workforce Plan provides a framework to
efficiently and effectively utilise our workforce to deliver our council
priorities.

1.3

The organisation’s Council Plan, Medium Term Financial Plan, and
Workforce Plan, when read together describe the priorities which the
council will pursue, the resources that will be available to achieve
these, and the shape, culture and processes which the council’s
workforce will adopt to meet the challenges of the future.

1.4

The Council’s Workforce Plan will be reviewed and refreshed annually,
taking into account regular progress on the achievement of the actions
outlined within the Workforce Plan Delivery Plan.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The Workforce Plan has been developed from the priorities outlined
within the Council Plan and focuses upon five key themes which
illustrate how we intend to develop our workforce to be flexible and
agile, with the appropriate skills, to meet the future needs of the local
communities we serve, whilst operating within reduced means.

2.2

An Equality Impact Assessment was developed alongside the Council
Plan, and will be considered by Cabinet members on 24th March 2016.

2.3

The Assessment highlighted the implications for the workforce around
reshaping the organisation and changing service delivery as a
consideration for the Council.

85

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That Cabinet approves the draft Workforce Plan as attached as
Appendix 1.

ADVICE OF CORPORATE
COMMUNITY SERVICES

DIRECTOR

–

ENVIRONMENT

&

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Council Plan is the key policy document for all Council activity. The
Council Plan provides a clear message to the public and our partners about
the priorities for the Council over the next 3 years, and where the Council will
focus its resources and activity.

4.2

The scale of challenge within Cumbria continues and the significant cuts to
funding means that it is vitally important that the Council is clear about the
activity it is going to undertake to deliver on the commitments set out in the
Council Plan and the workforce it needs to deliver those priorities in order to
meet the needs of the communities it serves.

4.3

The Council Plan outlines the need to balance the limited resources
available to meet the complex range of requirements that exist now and in
the future. To do this the council has to be flexible and be able to innovate,
providing services that work best for each area whilst maximising economies
of scale.

4.4

The Council Plan identifies the need to change the way we operate as a
Council; utilising ICT and modern technology more effectively, simplifying
our staffing structures, processes and systems, working in a more agile way
across the county and communicating in a clear and consistent way.

4.5

Furthermore the Workforce Plan is a critical part in the delivery of the Public
Health Strategy, with the preposition that a healthy and happy workforce are
a more productive workforce providing great services to the people of
Cumbria. The draft Workforce Plan has been developed from all these
priorities to provide a clear framework for how we will develop the attributes
and capabilities of our future workforce.

4.6

The draft Workforce Plan (attached as Appendix 1) has been developed
from the Council Plan ensuring there is a clear communication of the
workforce priorities, which have been categorised into five key themes;






4.7

Reshape the Council
Flexible and agile workforce
Leadership and Management Development
Health & Wellbeing
Engagement

Within the Workforce Plan each of the five key themes identifies the work we
have already done, together with a set of “what we will do” commitments.
These commitments translate into key programmes of work outlined within
the draft Workforce Plan Delivery Plan (Appendix 2).

86

4.8

Scrutiny Management Board have been engaged in the development of the
draft Workforce Plan and Workforce Delivery Plan.

4.9

The Delivery Plan will be published alongside the Workforce Plan. The
Delivery Plan will be reviewed and refreshed annually to ensure it reflects
progress made.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Cabinet may wish to approve the draft Workforce Plan as presented in
Appendix 1.

5.2

Cabinet may wish to approve the draft Workforce Plan subject to
amendments being made.

5.3

Cabinet may wish not to approve the draft Workforce Plan.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Council Plan provides the basis through which resource allocation is
managed. The allocation of resources is determined by Council annually
when it agrees the Council Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan. The
Workforce Plan sets out how the human resources element will be managed
and developed to deliver the Council Plan and Medium, Term Financial Plan.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
7.1

There are no legal implications arising from this report.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

The development and publication of a Workforce Plan will enable the Council
to clearly communicate the key programmes of work being undertaken to
develop an agile and flexible workforce, suitably skilled to deliver the
priorities set out in the Council Plan.

Dominic Donnini
Corporate Director Environment & Community Services
22 February 2016

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Draft Workforce Plan
Appendix 2: Draft Workforce Plan Delivery Plan
Electoral Division(s): ALL
* Please remove whichever option is not applicable

87

Executive Decision

Yes*

Key Decision

Yes*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?

Yes*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

No*

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A*

Yes*

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

No*

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No*

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny
BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER
Barry Doughty, Cabinet Member for Business Services
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Luci Robb, Senior Manager – People Management
Luci.robb@cumbria.gov.uk.

88

Cumbria County Council
APPENDIX 1

2016-19
Workforce
Plan

Serving the people of Cumbria

89

cumbria.gov.uk

2014-17 - Workforce Plan

Cumbria County Council

Welcome to the Council’s Workforce Plan. This
plan provides an essential framework to help
efficiently and effectively utilise our workforce to
help us deliver our Council Plan.
The Council Plan 2016-2019
Council
Cumbria County

Council
Plan
2016-19
Securing
your future

le of
Serving the peop

Cumbria

cumbria.gov.uk

Our Council Plan outlines the vision for the council and the priorities
we will focus on to achieve our vision. These priorities are then further
developed in directorate and service plans to set the focus for each area
within the council. These strategies help us understand and plan for the
opportunities and challenges ahead.
Supporting our Council Plan is our Medium Term Financial Plan. It
outlines the funding we receive and how we plan to use it across our
directorates. The Medium Term Financial Plan also includes the
staffing budget.
When read together the Council Plan, the Medium Term Financial
Plan and our Workforce Plan describe how we will deliver and achieve
our vision. Together they describe the priorities the council will pursue,
the resources available to achieve these, and the shape, culture
and processes which the council’s workforce will adopt to meet the
challenges of the future.

Our vision for
Cumbria County
Council:
To be an effective and
efficient organisation
that delivers the best
possible services for
the people of Cumbria
within its available
resources, protects
the vulnerable, and
works with others in the
community to shape
services and help find
solutions for the future.

Our Council priorities

90

Children

Adults

Communities

Infrastructure

Efficiency

It’s a council priority

It’s a council priority

It’s a council priority

It’s a council priority

It’s a council priority

To safeguard children
and support families
and schools so that
all children in Cumbria
can grow up in a safe
environment, and can
fulfil their potential.

To support older,
disabled and
vulnerable people to
live independent
and healthy lives.

To enable communities
to help shape their
local services, promote
health and wellbeing
and support those
in poverty.

To provide a safe
and well managed
highways network,
secure infrastructure
improvements and
support local
economic growth.

Be a modern and
efficient council.

Council
plan

Medium
term
financial
plan

2

Workforce
plan

3

Cumbria County Council

2014-17 - Workforce Plan

The role of Cumbria
County Council
We are responsible for many of the key services
that are important to local communities such
as – education (schools, both primary and
secondary), libraries and youth services, social
services, highways maintenance, waste disposal,
emergency planning, consumer protection and
the Fire and Rescue Service.
We will reshape the council and change the
way we operate to meet the needs of the people
of Cumbria. The council:

91

Arranges and delivers home care for
more than 5,600 older people
Looks after more than 600 children
Supports over 300 schools
Funds 28 Children’s Centres
Provides access to almost 730,000
library books, publications and public
access computers
Carries out more than 16,200 fire and
home safety checks
Maintains approximately 5,000 miles
of road, 4,000 miles of public rights of
way and 44,368 streetlights.
Registers almost 4,700 births
Recycles 50 per cent of 230,000
tonnes of household waste generated
in Cumbria.
Commissions all school nurses and
health visitors for Cumbrian schools.

Where are we now?

How the future will look

Cumbria residents have a wide range of income,
needs and expectations. The county council
must balance the limited resources available to
meet the complex range of requirements that
exist now and in the future. To do this the council
has to be flexible and able to innovate, providing
services that work best for each area whilst
maximising economies of scale.
Our customers include a wide range of people
and organisations including: residents, service
users, families, children, young people, parents,
colleagues, members, schools, the voluntary
sector, health, the police and other districts and
statutory agencies.
We deliver a wide range of statutory,
regulatory and discretionary services for our
customers. These include libraries, highways,
transport, social care and waste management.
These services are provided in many different
ways; online, through social media, by phone
and face to face through public meetings.

Given the context we have outlined in particular
our reducing budgets we will need to focus our
resources and work in different ways.
Three key principles for change will shape this
transformation:

4

Promoting self-help and independence
Reshaping and efficiency
Area based working and shaping services
locally
Through the process to develop this Workforce
Plan we know the attributes and capabilities
our future workforce needs to have to meet the
challenges and opportunities ahead.
The Workforce Plan sets out how we intend
to develop our workforce to be flexible, agile,
committed and healthy, with the appropriate skills
to meet the future needs of local communities we
serve, whilst operating within reduced means.

Our
workforce

The overall size of our
workforce has reduced within
the last two years from:

7213 employees
in March 2014 to

6410 employees
in March 2016.
This trend is expected
to continue. This reflects
the changing nature of the
services, reductions in
Council budgets and the
need to achieve efficiencies
in our delivery.

64% of our employees
work part time.

73% are female
27% are male
17% of our workforce are
over 55 years and
10% of our workforce are
under 30 years.
Many of our key frontline
services operate
24 hours a day,
365 days a year
and there is a drive to
ensure all services are
delivered when people wish
to access them. We have
a wide variety of jobs at
the county council ranging
from frontline care workers
to solicitors.

The challenges
The county council has already seen its spending reduced and over
the last five years has made savings of £153m. Our current financial
predictions show we will need to make a further £80m of savings
between 2016/17 and 2018/19. This means that since 2011 the
Council will have made a total of £233m of savings, but even then it
is expected that further savings beyond this period will be required.
At the same time, the role and statutory duties of local government
are changing with, for example, new responsibilities in a range of
areas including public health. Customer demand and expectations
are adding to this changing environment with demographic and
other factors placing additional pressure on our reducing resources.
Reshaping the council
We have already been reducing our costs by reviewing and
reorganising the way we work, reducing discretionary activity to
focus on those services we have a legal obligation to provide, this
trend towards ‘statutory only’ provision will continue.
Making digital our customers first choice
The council is moving rapidly to provide more and more information
and services on-line. Our aim is for digital to be residents’ preferred
method of interaction with us, significantly reducing the cost of
running the council and of providing services and information in a way
that meets the public’s expectations while and increasing access.
Working together with our partners
There are opportunities for the council to work more closely with
other public and third sector organisations, making sure we are
not working in isolation and maximise the opportunities there are
to work together to tackle issues and cut costs. Key development
areas include health and social care which represent significant
opportunities for partnership working to improve the health and
wellbeing for the people of Cumbria.
Working together to utilise resources effectively, enable shared
learning and creating local services for the future will benefit our
communities and help target those most in need of public services.
Labour market pressures
Due to our rurality and competition from other major employers
in the County, we experience challenges recruiting and retaining
certain skill sets, in areas such as civil engineering, programme
and project management, ict, health and care, some types of social
work and approved mental health professionals. We anticipate
further resourcing pressures as a result of the numerous major
infrastructure developments across the county which whilst
providing employment opportunities for the people of Cumbria, will
potentially attract hard to resource skills within our own workforce.
Promoting a healthy and committed workforce
The Public Health strategy sets out the first steps on the journey
of this council becoming the first public health council in England,
a journey that will result in better health and wellbeing for all the
people and communities of Cumbria. A key focus within the Public
Health strategy is to put staff health and wellbeing at the heart of
our workforce planning, recognising that a healthy and committed
workforce is central to achieving all of the Council’s strategic
objectives.
5

Cumbria County Council

2014-17 - Workforce Plan

Our
workforce
vision:
Our
Council in
the future

Our council plan says...

We will change the way we operate as a council
and become more efficient. We will:

92

Use technology to improve council services for all our
customers and reduce costs.
Continue to simplify our policies, systems and processes.
Support the council’s workforce to ensure it has the right skills
to drive the council’s transformation.
Work more closely with our partners, businesses and
communities to deliver services differently.
Work flexibly and effectively across the county from modern
fit-for-purpose buildings.
To make this change happen we will:
Utilise and develop the skills and talents of all elected
members.
Develop our workforce skills and competencies to build the
workforce of the future.
Develop young people through our apprenticeship schemes.
Celebrate our success.
Put staff health and wellbeing at the heart of our workforce
planning.
Be more innovative; balancing risks and opportunities.

Our workforce plan sets out how we’ll
make this happen...

6

We will develop
a healthy and
committed
workforce that
is flexible, agile
and suitably
skilled, working
as one team
to meet the
future needs
of the local
communities
we serve.

By adopting our
new behaviours
we will develop
our culture which
will help us deliver
our workforce
vision and council
priorities.

The themes
This Workforce Plan reflects and supports the council plan by setting out five themes which are
explored in more detail over the following pages.
Many actions are now underway to help us achieve these aims. A delivery plan which includes the
key pieces of work which contribute to the achievement of the Workforce Plan has been produced as
a separate document and is available on intouch.

Reshape
the council

We will continue to reshape
the council and change the way
we operate to meet the needs of
the people of Cumbria, whilst
operating within reduced
levels of resources.

Flexible and
agile workforce

We will develop and support
our staff to work agilely and
flexibly across the county working
effectively with communities
and the third sector.

Leadership
and management
development

We will develop the skills of our
leaders and managers to face
the challenges ahead.

Our
behaviours
Take
responsibility
for our actions.
Demonstrate a
positive, flexible
attitude.
Act with honesty
and respect
for others.
Communicate in
a clear and
constructive way
Be committed to
‘One Team’.

Engagement

We will create an environment
which increases employee
engagement, encouraging employees
to develop to their full potential and
be able to respond to the needs of
the local communities.

Health and
wellbeing

We will promote
workforce health and wellbeing,
recognising that a healthy,
committed workforce is also a
productive workforce.

7

Cumbria County Council

2014-17 - Workforce Plan

Reshape the council

Flexible and agile workforce

93

WWe will continue to reshape the council and change the way we operate
to meet the needs of the people of Cumbria, whilst operating within
reduced levels of resources.

We will develop and support our staff to work agilely and flexibly across the
county working effectively with communities and the third sector.

To meet the scale of the challenge, we will undergo
significant change over the coming years. This
journey has already started and we will look, act
and feel like a different organisation.
We want a bright future for Cumbria, but we
need to be realistic about the role the council can
play given the reductions in our funding. For our
workforce this means continuing to think different,
and innovatively, about how we provide services.
We will improve the way that we deliver more
accessible and efficient services to the people of
Cumbria, utilising technology more effectively to
improve our services and simplify our processes.
We will change the way we operate as a
council by simplify our staffing structures, having
lean management layers and empowering staff
to make decisions.
A more business-like approach will be part and
parcel of the way we go about deploying our
resources to deliver the best outcomes for people.
We will shape services and help find solutions
for the future by working with others in the
community.

Serving a population with such a variety of
needs requires a workforce that is flexible and
adaptable to change and can be scaled and
shaped to meet local requirements.
We will develop our employees’ skills and
knowledge to meet service requirement,
enhance their performance and increase
organisational mobility.
There are opportunities for the council to work
more closely with other public and third sector
organisations, so that people receive a seamless
service.
We are committed to providing the best
possible services for the people of Cumbria
within our available resources and believe that by
working together with others we can strengthen
our resilience and increase productivity, helping
to create local services for the future.

We have already:
Reshaped our extended leadership
team, reducing the overall number of
corporate and assistant directors.
Allocated dedicated resources to support
the council’s transformation programme.
Commenced a wide ranging Service
Review programme which sees the
introduction of simplified staffing
structures with less management aimed
at reducing costs and empowering our
staff to make decisions.
Implemented a new behaviours
framework, which employees helped us
to develop.
Revised the Council’s Constitution to
improve and simplify corporate
governance and support effective
decision making.

What we will do:
Embed our new competency framework,
outlining the key skills, knowledge and
behaviours needed for the council of
the future.
Continue to improve and simplify systems
and processes that will enable new ways
of working to improve service delivery.
Develop further manager self-serve
to increase manager capability and
accountability of managers.
Undertake workforce planning through
a corporate framework to meet forecast
demand at a local level.
Work in partnership with other
organisations to optimise our use of
resources.

8

We have already:
Reviewed the job families framework to
reflect the reshaping of the council.
Developed apprenticeship pathways
into the council and small medium
employers.
Commenced a ‘Social Work Academy’
to support the development of key social
worker skills within Children’s services.
We have introduced trade union learning
representatives to support the council’s
approach to workforce development.
Delivered a service-led training
programme (over 2,000 days in the last
12 months) to ensure that employees
have access to the training to provide
the necessary skills to deliver effective
services.
Worked with the Cumbria Alliance of
System Leaders (CASL) to provide
support and development for Cumbrian
schools. Created a safeguarding hub with
key partners within health and the police.
Engaged in partnership with health and
other key partners to support the delivery
of Vanguard, Success Regime and
Better Together health programmes
across the county.

What we will do:
Utilise a succession planning framework
to best develop employees to meet the
future service needs and provide career
development.
Develop the skills and knowledge of our
employees to meet the changing needs
of the council and the communities
we serve.
Continue to provide opportunities for the
development of young people, via our
apprenticeship programme.
Embed our competency framework
to support all stages of the employee
lifecycle.
Review our employee appraisal to
enhance performance management and
support career development.
Develop a strategy to identify what
partnership collaborative working and
partnering will look like in the future.
Work with key partners to develop ‘brand’
Cumbria to support in the attraction and
retention of talent within the county.
Work with the Cumbria Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) in the development of
the skills plan to identify funding for the
Cumbrian workforce.
Develop opportunities for the successful
redeployment of armed services
personnel within the Council.
Continue to explore future partnership
delivery models for the operation of key
emergency services.
Work alongside Health partners to
develop collaborative approaches to
service delivery across the health and
care sector.
Identify opportunities to develop the
volunteer workforce.
Introduce a Graduate scheme.

9

Cumbria County Council

2014-17 - Workforce Plan

Develop our leaders and managers

Health and Wellbeing

We will develop the skills of our leaders and managers to face the
challenges ahead.

We will promote the health and wellbeing of all our employees to support a
flexible workforce able to respond to the needs of the local communities.

Effective leaders and managers are never more
critical than in times of austerity and significant
change. Developing the skills of our leaders and
managers to respond to the rapidly changing
environment is essential to our success.
We use public money to fund our services
and we are accountable for every penny we
spend. This is very important to us and we want
to improve our ability to respond to the changing
needs of our residents and communities we serve.
To do this we will develop our business
awareness and knowledge so we make the best
use of our resources and funding.
We will strengthen leadership capability,
utilising the skills and talents of elected members
and ensure that leaders and managers have the
skills to develop and motivate high performing
teams and individuals.
We will empower managers at all levels by
developing a clear accountability framework,
enabling them to become risk aware rather than
risk averse.

We recognise that healthy and committed
employees are also productive employees who
deliver great services and therefore we will make
the promotion of health and wellbeing a key
objective of the People Management service.
We will ensure that employees are treated
fairly and with respect both through Council policy
and procedures, and through management
structures.
We will develop and equip our managers with
the information and skills to help them recognise
the issues facing the workforce and understand
how to address them in an effective and timely way.
We will constantly review our workplace
systems and environment to ensure provide a
safe and healthy place to work and ensure we
have support in place to keep employees healthy
and improve their wellbeing.
We will put workforce health and wellbeing at
the heart of our Workforce Plan, not just through
promotion campaigns but within the way we design
jobs and recruit, support and manage employees.

We will develop the ability of our managers
to engage and communicate more effectively
with their teams and colleagues, working
collaboratively to identify innovative solutions
to the challenges we face.

We have already:
Progressed over 250 managers through
the council’s leadership & management
Development framework.
Implemented the Extended Leadership
Development programme.
Developed approaches to supporting
leaders and managers in managing
and implementing change within their
services.
Implemented 6 monthly Leadership
Events to support leadership
development.
Developed our core competencies
to underpin our people management
practices and in support of our
behaviours framework.
Implemented the Management
Development Programme.
Implemented an aspiring managers
programme in Children’s Services.
Piloted a team leading programme.

94

What we will do:

10

Continue to embed the leadership and
management development framework,
with a key focus upon the ‘expectations
of being a manager’ within the council.
Create a framework to identify and
develop future senior management.
Develop coaching and mentoring skills
within our leaders and managers, and
across the wider workforce.
Effectively manage the council’s use of
agency, consultancy and interim workers,
recognising the continuing need to buy in
key skills not readily available within the
council, whilst developing initiatives to
‘grow our own’ skilled workforce.
Develop and embed an aspiring
managers programme.
Embed the team leading programme.

What we will do:
Implement a new in-house Employee
Wellbeing service.
Continue our commitment to pay a living
wage and work towards reducing the
number of zero hour contracts.
Seek to achieve the Better Health At
Work Award.
Introduce the Ethical Care Charter setting
out broad and aspirational principles and
standards for employers operating within
the care sector.
Use employee communications and
incentive schemes to promote health
lifestyles and other opportunities to
improve health and wellbeing.
Where possible design jobs to offer high
levels of job control.

We have already:
Introduced a Public Health Strategy, with
workforce health and wellbeing as a
key priority.
Developed an Employee Information
Website providing advice and support
to the workforce.
Introduced the living wage across
the council.
Allocated specialist public health capacity
to support workforce wellbeing.
Developed a range of policies on
wellbeing issues, including; flexible
working, alcohol and substance abuse,
harassment and positive attendance.

11

Cumbria County Council

2014-17 - Workforce Plan

Engagement

We will create an environment which increases employee involvement
and encourages employees to develop to their full potential and be able to
respond to the needs of the local communities.

95

We recognise that when employees are engaged
and motivated in the work they do, productivity,
together with the experience and outcomes for
Cumbria’s residents also improves.
Through improved employee engagement
and a focus upon workforce development we will
ensure that we better understand their needs and
help them to feel valued at work.
We will encourage a culture where employees
understand and feel able to deliver the priorities
set by elected members. We will create an
environment where employees are motivated to
connect with their work and feel proud to work for
the council.
We will work to make employees feel valued.
We will listen to the views of our employees and
trade unions and build upon our commitment to
our priorities by communicating in a clear and
consistent way.

We have already:
Increased the number of channels
to provide information to employees
including Diane’s blog, newsroom,
‘Heads up’ and ‘in a nutshell’ briefings
and staff visits
Encouraged cross organisational
working to share knowledge and
expertise within different services across
the council
Developed an Employee Information
Website providing advice and support to
the workforce
Introduced a Trade Union Recognition
Agreement.

What we will do:
Create an engagement framework to
encourage employees to be more
involved and enthusiastic about their work.
Continue to celebrate our success.
Implement a new in-house Employee
Wellbeing service.
Seek to achieve the Workforce Wellbeing
Charter.
Develop a reward and recognition
strategy to recognise great ideas and
contribution from employees at all levels.
Introduce the Ethical Care Charter
setting out broad and aspirational
principles and standards for employers
operating within the care sector.
Foster an environment which promotes
a culture of trust and creative thinking
to develop, through effective line
management.
Encourage more innovation: balancing
risks and opportunities.

12

13

Cumbria County Council

2014-17 - Workforce Plan

96
14

15

97

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2:
Workforce Deliver Plan 2016-19
We will develop a healthy and committed workforce that is flexible, agile and suitably skilled, working as one team to meet the future needs of the local communities we serve.
Theme: Reshape the Council
We will reshape the Council and change the way we operate to meet the needs of the people of Cumbria.
 Implement a programme of service reviews and delayering of management
 We will simplify our staffing structures with a
structures
reduction in management positions,
empowering our staff to make decisions.
 Continue to develop and implement tools and applications to support managers
and employees during and following the reshaping programme


99



We will continue to move towards
centralisation of core services and working in
partnership
We will identify opportunities for
improvements in digital technology to improve
information and access to services online.

Target value or date
Ongoing completion scheduled for
March 2017
Ongoing completion scheduled for
March 2017



Integration and centralisation of core services

Ongoing completion scheduled for
March 2017



Implementation and delivery of the Digital and Service Centre programmes



Development and implementation of Service Now, improving online self-service
capability for managers and employees and service users

Scope of programmes agreed by
March 2016
Implementation 2016-2018
Implemented by September 2016



We will embed our competency and
behavioural framework, outlining the key
values, beliefs and behaviours needed for the
Council of the future.



Continue to embed the Council’s competencies and behaviours into core Council
procedures and practices

Ongoing completion scheduled for
March 2018



We will undertake workforce planning through
a corporate framework to meet forecast
demand a local level.




Implementation of a Service Workforce Skills Framework to include:
Talent and succession planning process linked to competency & behaviours
framework
Internal mobility process

Ongoing to March 2019



Review the impact in pay awards and changes in legislation upon our current pay
and grading structure

Ongoing 2016-18



Continue to proactively manage the use and costs of Externally Provided
Workforce (EPW)

Ongoing 2016-18



Theme: Flexible and agile workforce
We will support our staff to work in an agile and flexible way across the county working effectively with communities, partners and the third sector.
 Scoping and agreement of a workforce skills framework, identifying the key skills
 We will develop the knowledge and skills of
and knowledge for the workforce of the future (in line with learning and skills
our employees to help them work more
strategy and overarching Service Workforce Plans)
effectively within communities, partners and
the third sector and enable them to create
local solutions and share local services for the
 Work with the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) in the development of
future.
the skills plan to identify funding for the Cumbrian workforce.

100





We will identify and nurture opportunities to
attract and retain employees, as an employer
of choice

We will continue to provide opportunities for
the development of young people, via our
apprenticeship programme.

Target value or date
By Sept 2016

By April 2017



Implement a Workforce skills framework including key skills in ICT, communication
and customer services

By April 2017



Review the introduction of ‘Learning Loans’ to support employee development

By Oct 2016



Introduce a Graduate scheme

Pilot programme by Sept 2017



Scope and agree the L&D delivery plans for technical and professional skills
development, including the development of a digital platform

By September 2016



Work with key partners to develop ‘brand’ Cumbria to support in the attraction
and retention of talent within the county.

Scope of opportunities to be
developed during 2016/17



Identify and develop innovative resourcing solutions for the workforce of the
future.

By Sept 2016



Grow and widen the scope of the children’s ‘social work academy’.

Scope of programme by June 2016



Develop opportunities for the successful redeployment of armed services
personnel within the council.

Initial event March 2016



Develop a strategic plan to respond to the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy
for large employer (introduced April 2017)

By July 2016



Continue to develop the range and level of apprenticeships in line with the new
Public Sector targets (introduced September 2016)

Numbers to be determined



Review the introduction of ‘traineeship’ programme targeting 16-24 year olds

Pilot and roll out September 2017

from the NEET group


We will continue to explore and identify future
models for working together with key partners.



Work alongside Health partners to develop collaborative approaches to service
delivery across the health and care sector.

Ongoing



Explore future partnership delivery models for the operation of key emergency
services
Identify opportunities to develop the volunteer workforce

Ongoing



Initial scope by Oct 2016

101

Theme: Leadership and Management Development
We will develop the skills of our leaders and managers to face the challenges ahead


We will embed our leadership and
management development framework, with
the continued key focus upon the ‘expectations
of being a manager’ within the Council.

Target value or date



Further development of the Leadership and Management Development
programme (Phase 2), including key modules on:
- raising political awareness
- project/programme management
- communication & engagement skills
- report writing

Programme modules developed by
May 2016
Initial tranche delivered from July
2016



Scope and implement Phase 2 Extended Leadership Development programme

Developed by April 2016



Develop and embed the ‘Team Leading’ development programme



Develop and embed an ‘Aspiring Manager’ development programme

102



We will utilise and develop the skills and
talents of all elected members



Create and implement a framework for Member development



We will create a framework to identify and
develop leadership talent within the
organisation.



Scoping and agreement to Leadership Skills framework

Initial tranche delivered from June
2016
Initial tranche delivered from
September 2016
Framework developed by
September 2016
Programme agreed by Members
Development Group
April – Sept 2017



Implement Leadership Skills framework

By Spring 2017

We will develop coaching and mentoring skills
across our leaders and managers.



Develop a coaching and mentoring programme

Developed during 2016/17
Initial programme delivered by
2017/18



Theme: Health and Wellbeing
We will promote workforce health and wellbeing, recognising that a healthy, committed workforce is also a productive workforce




We will embed a new Employee
Wellbeing service to ensure we are
effectively supporting employee health
and wellbeing and improving
attendance
We will actively support and promote
workforce wellbeing within the Council

103


We will develop training and support
for managers and employees to ensure
they are better equipped to prevent
stressful situations occurring and
provide effective support

Target value or date



Transition of new in-house Wellbeing (Occupational Health) Service



Implement revised Occupational Health and employee wellbeing arrangements

Transition of service by 1st April
2016
July 2016



Work towards the achievement of the Better Health at Work Award

During 2016/17



Introduce the Ethical Care Charter setting out broad and aspirational principles
and standards for employers operating within the care sector.

Approved by Cabinet in Dec 2015
and ongoing



Use employee communications and incentive schemes to promote health
lifestyles and other opportunities to improve health and wellbeing.

Annual programme of events



Introduce ‘Health Advocates’- workforce volunteers to support and signpost
colleagues to health and welfare promotion.

2016/17



Introduction of Mental Health First Aid training for managers

March 2016 ongoing



Review of Positive Attendance Procedure

April 2016



Undertake annual review of sickness absence to review targets, trends and
measures to improve attendance

Annual report May 2016



Develop technology to improve absence management functionality, recording and
reporting

By September 2016

Theme: Engagement
We will create an environment which increases employee engagement, encouraging employees to develop to their full potential and be able
to respond to the needs of the local communities


We will embed the engagement
framework to encourage employees to
be more involved and enthusiastic
about their work

Target value or date



Develop and introduce an employee engagement framework

Ongoing



Increase visibility of Council leaders via regular informal ‘drop-ins’/walking the
floor etc.

Annual programme of events by
June 2016



Create a ‘tool kit’ or Total Reward Package which clearly reflects the benefits of
working for the Council and supports the attraction and retention of employees

Created and Adopted by
September 2017

104



We will develop the engagement and
communication skills of our staff so that
they can better involve members,
partners and residents in their work



Development of a Workforce Skills framework

Ongoing



We will foster an environment which
promotes a culture of trust and creative
thinking to develop, through effective
line management



Further development of the Management Development programme, including
‘team leader’ skills

June 2016



We will communicate key messages in a
clear and consistent way ensuring that
employees understand their
contribution to our priorities



Communication of Council Plan priorities

April 2016



Appraisal process linked to Council Plan priorities, competencies and behaviours

April 2016

We will continue to enhance
opportunities for employee
engagement through our Trade Union
Recognition and Consultation &
Negotiation frameworks



Ongoing development of constructive employee relations

Ongoing



Review the implications of the Trade Union Bill 16/17

2016/17 and ongoing

We will continue to celebrate our
success, recognising great ideas and
contribution from employees at all
levels



Continue the success of the Excellence Awards

Annual event





105

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
CABINET
Meeting date:
From:

24 March 2016

Corporate Director – Environment and
Community Services

DRAFT CUMBRIA MINERALS & WASTE LOCAL PLAN
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet’s agreement and
recommendation to the Council that the draft Cumbria Minerals and
Waste Local Plan be published for public consultation (Regulation 19
consultation), and then for it to be submitted to the Secretary of State.

1.2

Appendix 1 provides a summary of the responses received during the
previous consultation, undertaken during 2015. A draft of the Local Plan
policies without the supporting text is provided in Appendix 2.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The preparation of the Minerals and Waste Local Plan (the Local Plan) is
a statutory requirement. The Local Plan is directly relevant to two of the
Council Plan’s (2014-17) priorities: to promote sustainable economic
growth and create jobs; and to protect and enhance Cumbria’s world
class environment.

2.2

In particular, the Local Plan should help deliver the policies and sites
that are needed for new waste management facilities, including those
that are essential for the commercial and industrial sector, and those
needed to increase recycling rates. The regeneration and development
initiatives in the county will be dependent on adequate supplies of
aggregates for construction purposes, as will remediation work
following the recent flooding.

2.3

Also, one of the Local Plan’s main objectives is to minimise the impacts
of minerals and waste management developments on climate change
and safeguard environmental quality.

2.4

An initial Equality Impact Assessment formed part of the Statement of
Community Involvement (SCI) and another was carried out jointly for the
Minerals and Waste Development Framework Core Strategy and Generic
Development Control Policies.
No negative equality issues were
identified and this conclusion is considered still relevant to the Local
Plan.

107

3.0

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Cabinet agrees and recommends to the Council:-

3.1

That the draft Minerals & Waste Local Plan be published for public
consultation and then for it to be submitted to the Secretary of State, in
accordance with Regulations 19 and 22 of the Town and Country
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012; and

3.2

That delegated authority be given to the Corporate Director Environment
and Community Services in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Environment, to undertake any additional editing that may be required
prior to submission.

ADVICE OF CORPORATE
COMMUNITY SERVICES

DIRECTOR

-

ENVIRONMENT

AND

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

In February 2015, Cabinet agreed to undertake a Regulation 18 (Preferred
Options) consultation on the Local Plan. The consultation was held between
March and May 2015. Representations were received from 71 external
organisations; there were also five internal comments. The main issues
arising from the consultation related to minerals, radioactive waste, site
allocations and environment policy. The majority of the responses to the
consultation required technical amendments to the content of the Local Plan.

4.2

In addition to the concerns and technical amendments, there were responses
received that included the introduction of additional sites for consideration.
Cabinet agreed in September 2015, that an additional four week consultation,
also under Regulation 18, should be undertaken in respect of these sites.
This Supplementary Sites consultation was subsequently undertaken in
October/November.

4.3

Officers considered the additionally proposed sites against strategic policy,
and concluded that the preferred approach would be to recommend three site
allocations. These are Roosecote Quarry (Preferred Area for sand and gravel
extraction); Kirkhouse Quarry (Preferred Area for sand and gravel extraction);
and Kingmoor Road Recycling Centre (boundary change to waste
management/treatment area).

4.4

The Supplementary Sites consultation received 21 responses. Again, the
majority of the responses to the consultation required technical amendments
to the content of the Local Plan. The comments generally upheld the
Council’s preferred approach. The main issue arising was an objection
submitted on behalf of the landowner of the Roosecote Quarry site, in regard
to the proposed allocation. This issue is currently the subject of discussion
between the landowner and site operator, which delayed progress with the
preparation of the Publication Version (see below) of the Plan.

108

4.5

The comments received in respect of both consultations have been used in
order to inform a revised draft of the Plan, which in the view of officers meets
the tests of soundness and legal compliance required by legislation. This
version – the ‘Publication Version’ – of the Plan must be consulted upon for a
six week period, in accordance with Regulation 19 of the Town and Country
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.
Following the
consultation period, any responses received will be assessed, and a proposed
Table of Minor Modifications will be prepared. The Publication Version of the
Plan and Table of Modifications will then be submitted to the Secretary of
State, in accordance with Regulation 22 of the above noted legislation.

4.6

Appendix 1 provides a summary of the responses received to the Regulation
18 consultation. Appendix 2 shows the proposed changes to policies.

4.7

Set out below is a revised timeline for the subsequent stages of work to be
completed to enable submission of the Local Plan to the Secretary of State:
Task
Approval of publication version for consultation by
Cabinet
Approval of publication version for consultation by
Council
Publish version to be submitted to the Planning
Inspectorate, for 6-week consultation
Assess responses and prepare proposed Table of
Minor Modifications
Submit Local Plan to Secretary of State
Examination of Local Plan by Secretary of State
Receive Inspector’s Report
Adoption of Local Plan

Date
March 2016
April 2016
May - June 2016
June 2016
July/August 2016
November 2016
Dec 16/Jan 17
April 2017

4.8

Following submission of the Local Plan, the timetable is taken out of the
Council’s hands, as it is up to Planning Inspectorate to make available an
Inspector to examine the Local Plan and schedule Hearing sessions. In
general, a Hearing is likely to be scheduled around 10 weeks after
submission. The anticipated date for adoption of the Local Plan can,
therefore, only be a target date and may not be achieved.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

The Cabinet has two options to consider, as set out below:

5.2

Option 1: To recommend to the Council that the revised draft policies set out
in Appendix 2 be agreed and the draft Minerals & Waste Local Plan be
published for public consultation and then for it to be submitted to the
Secretary of State, in accordance with Regulations 19 and 22 of the Town and
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

5.3

Option 2: To recommend to the Council that no further work is undertaken on
the draft Local Plan. This is not the recommended option, as the Council
would be failing in statutory duties to progress the Local Plan.

109

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The purpose of this report is to seek a recommendation from Cabinet to
Council to proceed with the recommended Option 1 - that the revised policies
set out in Appendix 2 be agreed and that the draft Minerals & Waste Local
Plan be published for public consultation, in accordance with Regulation 18 of
the Town and Country Planning (local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012;
and then for it to be submitted to the Secretary of State, in accordance with
Regulations 19 and 22 of the Town and Country Planning (local Planning)
(England) Regulations 2012.

6.2

The preparation of the plan is a statutory responsibility and will have been
prepared using existing resources; as such there are no direct resource and
value for money implications arising from this report.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
7.1

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
sets out the procedure for the production of local development documents.
Part 6 of the 2012 Regulations specifically deals with Local Plans, Regulations
18 and 19 deal with the preparation and publication requirements of the Local
Plan before being submitted to the Secretary of State and Regulation 22 deals
with the submission of the Local Plan to the Secretary of State.

7.2

The preparation and adoption of development plan documents, i.e. the Local
Plan and any Supplementary Planning Documents, will form part of the Policy
Framework and, therefore, will require Cabinet's recommendation to Full
Council.

7.3

Following publication of the draft plan and subsequent submission to the
Secretary of State, an Inspector will be appointed to examine the plan and
consider whether the County Council has complied with the duty to co-operate
and to consider the whole document for legal compliance and soundness.
Local planning authorities are advised to rigorously assess a plan before it is
published.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

Preparing the Local Plan is a statutory responsibility for the Council as the
mineral and waste planning authority. Four rounds of consultation regarding
the content of the Minerals and Waste Local Plan have been completed and
the comments received have been taken into account. Changes arising from
legislation, national policy and a more robust evidence base have been
incorporated into the latest draft Plan. It is now important for the Council to
consult on this new version, with its changes, before submission to the
Secretary of State.

Dominic Donnini
Corporate Director – Environment and Community Services
March 2016

110

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Summary of responses raised in regard to 2015 consultation
Appendix 2: Draft Plan policies
Electoral Division(s):

All

Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?

Yes

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

N/A

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

Yes

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

Yes

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
The Minerals and Waste Development Framework Core Strategy and Generic
Development Control Policies were adopted by Full Council on 23 April 2009
(Minute 126)
The Minerals and Waste Development Framework Site Allocations Policies and
Proposals Map were adopted by Full Council on 20 January 2011 (Minute 87).
These documents were subsequently quashed by the High Court following a
legal challenge by Barrow Borough Council.
The Minerals and Waste Development Framework resubmitted Site Allocations
Policies and Proposals Map were withdrawn from their Examination by the
Planning Inspectorate by Full Council on 21 June 2012 (Minute 39)
The Cumbria Minerals and Waste Local Plan was recommended for public
consultation by Cabinet on 7 February 2013 (Minute 175)
The Minerals and Waste Development Scheme was approved by Cabinet at its
meeting on 15 May 2014 (Minute 15)
The Cumbria Minerals and Waste Local Plan was recommended for public
consultation by Cabinet on 5 February 2015 (Minute 144)
An additional period of consultation was recommended by Cabinet in regard to
additional sites proposed on 24 September 2015 (Minute 59)

111

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny
BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER
Janet Willis, Cabinet Member for Environment
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact:

Sue Brett Senior Minerals & Waste Policy Officer
Tel 01539 713409 Email Sue.Brett@cumbria.gov.uk

112

Appendix 1
Summary of Responses Received During the 2015 Consultations
Two periods of Regulation 18 consultation were undertaken in 2015. During March
to May, consultation was undertaken on the entire Plan. In October and November,
further consultation was undertaken on the allocation of a number of additional sites
that had been put forward during the first round of consultation. Copies of the
consultation responses can be provided on request.
1.

March – May Consultation

Responses were received from 71 external organisations and individuals, together
with five internal responses.
The substantive comments can be considered under four main headings:





Minerals
Radioactive Waste
Environmental Policies
Site Allocations

The text below focuses upon where changes are to be made as a result of comments
received, and/or new evidence or guidance being published.
Minerals
Comments were primarily received from quarry operators and the Mineral Products
Association. The following text and/or policy amendments have been incorporated:










text amended to clarify regulations in regard to Review of Old Minerals
Permissions;
text amended to acknowledge that any conditions imposed under s96
applications will reflect the high standards of current Plan policy;
text clarified with regard to peat not being defined as an industrial mineral in
PPG;
text amended to acknowledge that the detail of restoration schemes should be
proportionate to the scale of development;
text strengthened with regard to Holmescales Quarry’s strategic importance as
a provider of high specification roadstone;
text clarified on the approach to be taken towards non-minerals development
proposed in Minerals Safeguarding Areas, and policy DC15 expanded to
include the mechanism by which Districts will consult with the County Council;
exclusion of urban areas from Minerals Safeguarding Areas;
consideration given to the implications of Government’s long term plan for
national road improvements, and associated demand for high specification
aggregate;
policy DC19 amended to acknowledge that the sequential approach to the
selection of sites, based upon assessed flood risk, is not fully applicable to
minerals developments, and that a bespoke approach should be taken.

113

Radioactive Waste
Comments were received from the nuclear industry, local planning authorities, the
Environment Agency and relevant bodies such as NuLeAF. Many of these related to
technical amendments to be made to the Plan text. Major points include the
following:







policy SP6 amended to ensure that it allows for an appropriate level of
flexibility with regard to higher activity radioactive wastes;
text amended to acknowledge that low activity low level waste may be
disposed of at the LLWR;
text clarified that policies SP2 and SP3 do not apply to radioactive waste;
text clarified on how the proximity principle will be applied with regard to
radioactive waste;
policy SP4 amended to cover all optioneering techniques, not just BAT;
text clarified on the role of the NDA, in light of recent strategies and progress.

A meeting was held between the Minerals and Waste Planning Policy Team, the Low
Level Waste Repository, the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority and Sellafield Ltd in
September 2015. The radioactive waste chapter of the draft Local Plan was
discussed and technical or factual amendments made in response. This updated
chapter was circulated back to the industry representatives and was also discussed
at a meeting with Copeland Borough Council in February; very few further changes
were recommended.
Environmental Policies
Comments were received from a number of organisations, including the National
Trust, Friends of the Lake District, Friends of the Earth and the LDNPA. Key
amendments are as follows:





text added to policy SP14, referencing World Heritage Sites;
text added to policy SP14, referencing Heritage Coast;
text clarified that sustainable development requires a balanced approach to
environmental, economic and social factors, rating all equally;
text added on flood risk, to ensure that the most recent PPG advice is
reflected.

Site Allocations
Comments were submitted by a number of organisations, including the LDNPA,
Friends of the Lake District and Carlisle City Council. These comments will be added
to the site assessments:




site M15 Peel Place Quarry – potential landscape and visual implications for
the LDNP;
site CA30 Kingmoor Road Recycling Centre – may need to incorporate a
buffer zone to the adjacent Local Nature Reserve;
Kirkby Thore/Long Marton strategic area for new minerals development –
potential landscape and visual implications for the North Pennines AONB;

114





2.

Kirkby Slate Quarry strategic area for new minerals development – potential
impact upon SSSI and landscape and visual implications for the LDNP;
Roan Edge Quarry strategic area for new minerals development – potential
landscape and visual implications for the YDNP;
Roosecote Quarry strategic area for new minerals development – potential
conflict with the adjacent gas terminal and its health and safety procedures;
a number of additional sites put forward – see below.
October - November Consultation

As a result of additional sites being put forward in the spring consultation, a four
week period of consultation was undertaken in October/November concerning further
proposed allocations. Twenty one responses were received. Following the
consultation, the preferred option is to allocate the following additional sites:


Roosecote Quarry: Preferred Area for sand and gravel extraction - to provide
further certainty about ongoing supplies in the south west of the county.



Kirkhouse Quarry: Area of Search for sand and gravel extraction - to provide
additional certainty about ongoing supplies in the county beyond the Plan
period.



Kingmoor Road Recycling Centre: boundary change to waste
management/treatment area – to increase available area, but also to provide a
bigger buffer to sensitive receptors.

115

Appendix 2
Draft Plan policies
POLICY SP1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development
When considering development proposals, the Council will take a positive approach that
reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National
Planning Policy Framework. It will always work proactively with applicants to find solutions
that mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure development
that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions in the area.
Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan (and, where relevant,
with policies in Neighbourhood Plans) will be approved without delay, unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date at
the time of making the decision, then the Council will grant permission unless material
considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether:




any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework taken as a whole; or
specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted.

No change
POLICY SP2 Provision for waste
Provision will be made for the management of all of Cumbria's wastes within the county,
with the acceptance of limited cross boundary movements (net self-sufficiency). This will
be achieved by allocating sufficient sites to meet objectively identified needs for additional
facilities.
Any proposals to manage significant volumes of wastes from outside the county would
have to demonstrate that the local, social, environmental and economic benefits outweigh
other sustainability criteria.
These other criteria include the impacts of the additional "waste miles" and the principles
of managing waste as close as possible to its source, with each community taking
responsibility for its own wastes and taking account of the nearest appropriate facility.
POLICY SP3 Waste capacity
Waste management facilities
In order to provide an integrated network and to meet any waste capacity gaps that are
predicted to arise during the Plan period, the Plan identifies:




8 sites of between 2 and 4ha for additional waste recycling and treatment facilities
(these could provide for commercial and industrial waste or municipal waste);
Broad Areas where any of a number of sites may be suitable for waste management;
alternative sites for those Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC) that are
required to be replaced.

Proposals on unallocated sites, where opportunities arise that were not anticipated, will be
considered if they conform to the other policies in this Plan.

116

Preference will be given to sites that contribute to an integrated network of waste facilities
by accommodating several types of facility, or by being well located in relation to the
sources, or to the destination of, the waste stream being managed.
Proposals on unallocated sites, where opportunities arise that were not anticipated, will be
considered if they conform to the other policies in this Plan and would meet an identified
need in a timely manner.
The need for provision for construction and demolition, or excavation, waste arising from
major infrastructure projects will be kept under review and proposals considered against
relevant policies in this Plan.
Landfill
Proposals for additional inert or non-inert landfill capacity will be considered if they are
necessary to meet a capacity need identified in this Plan; or if it can be demonstrated that
there is a need for the development and that it would not undermine the waste hierarchy.
Time extensions for existing non-inert landfill facilities will be considered if they are
necessary:




to meet the a capacity need identified in this Plan; or
to achieve acceptable restoration contours; or
to maintain an integrated network of a range of appropriate and necessary waste
management facilities across the county.

Proposals for additional inert or non-inert landfill capacity would need to demonstrate that
there is a need for the development and that it would not undermine the waste hierarchy.
Policy SP4 Use of Best Available Technique Transparent decision making
Proposals for additional radioactive waste facilities, which utilise the Best Available
Technique review process, will need to demonstrate how the development complies with:





the principles of sustainable development;
the waste hierarchy;
the precautionary principle; and
the proximity principle.

Policy SP5 Development criteria for low level radioactive waste sites
Any proposal for new facilities for the treatment, management, storage and/or disposal of
low level radioactive waste, must demonstrate that:









it conforms to UK Government policies and strategies for LLW;
it conforms to the other relevant policies of this Local Plan;
it represents the most appropriate option;
it is in line with the principle that communities take more responsibility for their own
waste, enabling the waste to be managed in the nearest appropriate installations to
its point of arising, the preference being on existing nuclear licensed sites;
it complies with national guidance and the principles of sustainable waste
management - in doing so, it should identify the intended catchment area;
any adverse impacts can be mitigated to an acceptable level;
a feasible strategy is in place in relation to the long-term integrity of the site;
it will not prejudice the existing use where the proposal involves co-location on an
operational waste disposal site.

117

Policy SP6

Higher activity and Intermediate level radioactive wastes treatment,
management and storage

Sellafield is the only site in the county where dDevelopment proposals for the treatment,
management and storage of higher activity radioactive waste arising within the county will
be permitted.
Such proposal will need to demonstrate:




compliance with national and international standards and best practice for
environment, safety and security;
the reasons why possible alternative methods (for dealing with the waste) have been
rejected; and
that any adverse impacts have been adequately mitigated or compensated for.

Development proposals at Sellafield for the treatment, management and/or storage of
waste that arises from outside Cumbria, will need to demonstrate that:




for Intermediate Level Waste, alternative locations, at or closer to where these wastes
arise, have only been rejected following rigorous assessment;
all practicable measures are taken to minimise the adverse effects of development
and associated infrastructure;
acceptable measures are in place to secure decommissioning and site restoration.

Policy SP7 Minerals provision and safeguarding
Provision for potential further mineral working will be made by identifying Preferred Areas
and/or Areas of Search:

to enable a landbank at the Local Aggregates Assessment level of at least seven
years sales at the Local Aggregates Assessment level for sand and gravel and at
least ten years for crushed rock to be maintained throughout the Plan period;



for continued quarrying of nationally important very high specification roadstone
and regionally important high specification roadstone;



for continued quarrying of brickmaking mudstones;



for continued quarrying of slate; and



for continued extraction of gypsum.

Mineral resources will be safeguarded from being unnecessarily sterilised by other
developments by identifying:

Mineral Safeguarding Areas for the indicative sand and gravel and hard rock
resources (including high specification aggregates) and shallow coal resources
identified by the British Geological Survey in its report “Mineral Resource information
for Development Plans – Cumbria and the Lake District: Resources and Constraints”
(BGS Technical Report reference WF/01/02);



Mineral Safeguarding Areas for the remaining gypsum resources;



Mineral Safeguarding Area for identified resources of slate;



Mineral Safeguarding Area for identified resources of secondary aggregates;



Mineral Consultation Areas, which will include 250 metre wide buffer zones around
cover the resources within the Mineral Safeguarding Areas.

118

Policy SP8 Strategic areas for new mineral developments
The Kirkby Thore/Long Marton area is identified as the location for further supplies of
gypsum, if required towards the end of the Plan period.
Land next to High Greenscoe Quarry is identified as the location for further supplies of
mudstones for the Askam in Furness brickworks.
Land next to The slates near Kirkby Slate Quarry are is identified as the location for
further supplies of slate.
The igneous rocks near Ghyll Scaur Quarry are identified as the location for further
supplies of nationally important very high specification roadstone.
The sandstones near Roan Edge Quarry and Holmescales Quarry are identified as the
locations for further supplies of regionally important high specification roadstone.
The sand and gravel resources in the Roosecote area and near Peel Place Quarry are
identified as the location for further supplies of sand and gravel in the south west of the
county.
Policy SP9 Marine dredged aggregates
Planning permission will be granted for developments that demonstrate both anat
appropriate locations, and which that they do not have unacceptable environmental
impacts, that would when enableing the increased use of marine dredged aggregates as
an alternative to land won aggregates.
Policy SP10 Industrial limestones
Any proposal for the extraction of high purity limestone should demonstrate that it is
primarily for non-aggregate uses. Each application will be considered on its own merits
against other relevant policies in this Plan, regardless of the stock of permitted reserve.
However, low stocks of permitted reserves, to serve a related industrial facility, may be
seen as an indicator of urgent need.
No change
Policy SP11 Peat
Planning permission will not be granted for peat extraction from new or physically
extended sites.
Time extensions for existing peat extraction planning consents will be considered on a
case-by-case basis, where it is demonstrated that it is necessary to enable the proper
restoration of the land or to secure biodiversity, climate change or other appropriate
objectives of this Plan. Any such proposals must conform to all relevant policies in this
Plan.
POLICY SP12 Climate change mitigation and adaptation
Proposals for minerals and waste management developments should demonstrate that:


proportionate to the scale and type of development, energy management, carbon

119







reduction and resource efficiency have been determining design factors for the
development; and
water use and the requirement for wastewater treatment have been minimised; and
their location will minimise, as far as is practicable, the "minerals or waste road
miles" involved in supplying the minerals or managing the wastes, unless other
environmental/sustainability and, for minerals, geological considerations override
this aim; and
where the development affects or is adjacent to peat bog, that carbon emissions
would not be significantly increased and the condition of remaining peat bog would
not be adversely affected; and
where appropriate, restoration and afteruse proposals fulfil a role in helping to
mitigate for or adapt to climate change.

Proposals for low carbon renewable energy will be supported where they conform to other
policies in this Plan and either:
a. use residual waste as part of the feedstock; or
b. are located within a proposed or existing mineral or waste site and do not have
unacceptable impacts on adversely affect the operations, restoration or aftercare of
the site.
POLICY SP13 Economic benefit
Proposals for new and time or physically extended minerals and waste developments
should demonstrate that how they would realise their potential to provide economic
benefit. This will may include such matters as the number of jobs directly or indirectly
created or safeguarded and the support that proposals give to other industries and
developments.
Relevant adverse economic impacts on other industries, or on regeneration and
development initiatives, will be weighed against the overall economic benefits of the
proposal.
POLICY SP14 Environmental assets
Minerals and waste management developments, including restoration and afteruse,
should aim to:








protect, maintain and enhance people’s overall quality of life and the natural, historic
and other distinctive features that contribute to the environment of Cumbria and to
the character of its landscapes and places;
improve conserve the settings of these features environmental assets;
improve the linkages between these features environmental assets and provide
buffer zones around them, where this is appropriate;
realise the opportunities for expanding and increasing environmental resources,
including adapting and mitigating for climate change;
help to secure movement from a net loss of biodiversity towards achievement of net
gains a step change increase in biodiversity resources by protecting, enhancing,
expanding and linking areas for wildlife within and between the locations of highest
biodiversity resources and encouraging the conservation and expansion of the
ecological fabric elsewhere;
help to create new green infrastructure, and to conserve and manage where it is
existing, and enhance its functionality, quality, connectivity and accessibility.

120

All proposals should also be expected to demonstrate that they include reasonable
measures to secure the opportunities that they present for enhancing Cumbria's
environmental assets.
Information on environmental assets and guidance on implementing this policy are
provided by the Landscape Character Toolkit, the Guide to using the Cumbria Historic
Landscape Character database, the Cumbria Biodiversity Evidence Base and the
Cumbria Historic Environment Record.
There are national policies for areas and features that are identified to be of international
or national importance, as set out below.
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty Landscape designations
Major developments in that affect these designated areas or the settings of National
Parks, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Heritage Coasts, will only be granted
planning permission in exceptional circumstances and where it can be demonstrated that
they are in the public interest, in accordance with paragraph 116 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.
Geodiversity designations
Major developments that affect the designated areas of GeoParks, will only be granted
planning permission in exceptional circumstances and where it can be demonstrated that
they are in the public interest, in accordance with paragraph 116 of the National Planning
Policy Framework. They shall also incorporate any relevant features of geological interest
into an appropriate restoration scheme.
Ramsar and European Wildlife Sites
Planning permission will be granted only if Habitats Regulations Assessment can
determine that a proposal will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the Site. The
only exceptions are where there are no alternative solutions that would have no (or a
lesser) effect, or that there are imperative reasons of overriding public interest, in
accordance with paragraphs 25 to 32 of ODPM Circular 06/2005 (Defra Circular 01/2005).
In accordance with NPPF paragraph 118, this policy also applies to potential Special
Protection Areas, possible Special Areas of Conservation and proposed Ramsar sites
where the Government has initiated the relevant public consultation, and for sites
identified, or required, as compensatory measures for adverse effects on European or
Ramsar Sites, including the potential, possible or proposed ones.
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)
In accordance with paragraphs 56 to 73 of ODPM Circular 06/2005, and the general and
overarching duty placed on local planning authorities, to take reasonable steps to further
the conservation and enhancement of the features for which sites are of special interest:


Planning permission will not normally be granted for development within or outside an
SSSI, which is likely to have an adverse effect on it, individually or in combination
with other development.
Exceptions will only be made where the benefits of the development, at the proposed
site, clearly outweigh both the impacts that it is likely to have on the features of the
site that make it of special scientific interest and any broader impacts on the national
network of SSSIs.

121

Heritage designations
Major developments that impact on the significance, or the settings, of World Heritage
Sites, Scheduled Monuments, Registered Historic Battlefields, Registered Historic Parks
and Gardens, Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas, will only be granted planning
permission in exceptional or wholly exceptional circumstances (in accordance with
paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework) and where it can be
demonstrated that there are substantial public benefits.
Environmental assets not protected by national, or European or international
legislation
Where not otherwise protected by national, or European or international legislation, great
weight will be given to conserving habitats and species of principal importance and
irreplaceable habitats, ancient woodlands and veteran trees outside of ancient woodlands.
In accordance with NPPF paragraph 118, planning permission will be refused for
development resulting in the loss or deterioration of such irreplaceable habitats unless the
need for, and benefits of, the development in that location clearly outweigh the loss.
Planning permission will not be granted for development that would have an unacceptable
impact on the environmental assets, on its own or in combination with other
developments, unless it is demonstrated that:




there is an overriding need for the development, and
it cannot reasonably be located on any alternative site that would result in less or
no harm, and then,
the effects can be adequately mitigated, or if not,
the effects can be adequately and realistically compensated for through offsetting
actions.

All proposals would also be expected to demonstrate that they include reasonable
measures to secure the opportunities that they present for enhancing Cumbria's
environmental assets.
Information on environmental assets and guidance on implementing this policy are
provided by the Landscape Character Toolkit, the Guide to using the Cumbria Historic
Landscape Character database, the Cumbria Biodiversity Evidence Base and the
Cumbria Historic Environment Record.

POLICY SP15 Restoration and afteruse
Restoration, afteruse and aftercare schemes for mineral working and waste management
sites should demonstrate that best practicable measures have been taken to secure full
advantage of their potential to help deliver the sustainability objectives of this Plan. This
should include consideration of the potential for biodiversity, geodiversity and landscape
enhancement, flood risk mitigation and water quality, maintaining agricultural land quality,
ameliorating contaminated land and securing land stability.

POLICY SP16 Section 106 planning obligations
Where it is not possible to achieve the necessary control or outcome through the use of
planning conditions, the County Council will require appropriate mitigation to be secured
through Section 106 planning obligations that ensure that development proposals:-

122

1. Secure long term management of relevant environmental assets.
2. Provide financial guarantees, including with parent companies, where appropriate for
restoration works, except where a national industry guarantee fund will remain in place.
3. Provide necessary infrastructure such as highway and transport improvements, flood
and surface water management schemes and green infrastructure.
Where planning obligations or legal agreements are required in order to achieve the
necessary control of a development, provision for the following may be included in a
planning obligation:
a.
b.
c.
d.

highways and access improvements;
traffic management measures;
the undertaking of landscape improvements;
the implementation of long term monitoring, mitigation and enhancement measures
for environmental assets, before, during and after development;
e. the provision for archaeological investigation, analysis, reporting, publication and
archive deposition;
f. the long term restoration and afteruse of sites (including financial guarantees to
ensure restoration and long term maintenance is undertaken);
g. the provision of, maintenance of, and improvements to the public rights of way
network;
h. the long term management of, and public access to, sites restored for amenity
purposes;
i. the off-site monitoring of watercourses, groundwater levels and water supply
abstractions;
j. the provision of facilities to compensate local communities for the loss of amenity; or
k. any other improvements deemed necessary by Cumbria County Council.
add deleted text into a non-exhaustive list in the preceding text of Plan
POLICY SP17 Monitoring and enforcing planning control
The County Council, in exercising its function of ensuring compliance with planning
control, will:
1.

2.
3.

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.

where there is serious harm caused to amenity or potentially irreparable harm to the
environment, take practicable immediate action against a breach of planning control
to stop further damage;
in all other instances, seek to resolve any problems within a reasonable timescale by
discussion and negotiation without the need to resort to legal action;
only take enforcement action where it is necessary to do so to protect people, the
environment, the public interest, transport systems and the amenity of the area, in
accordance with the provisions of the development plan;
ensure that action is always commensurate with the breach of planning control;
give due regard to current legislation, policy framework, instructions, appeal
decisions and relevant judicial authority;
take account of comments made by the general public and consultees;
enable sustainable development to take place, even though it may initially have
been unauthorised;
maintain the integrity of sites having interests of acknowledged historical or
environmental importance and their surroundings;
where when appropriate, maintain liaison and contact with the general public, and
mineral and waste management operators;
where a planning application is submitted to address a breach of planning control,
only take formal enforcement action in exceptional circumstances, until such time as
the application has been determined.

123

POLICY DC1 TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORT
Proposals for minerals and waste developments should be located where they:
a. are well related to the strategic route network as defined in the Cumbria Local
Transport Plan, and/or
b. have potential for rail or waterborne transport and sustainable travel to work, and
c. are located to minimise operational "minerals and waste road miles", where practicable.
Mineral developments that are not located as above may be permitted:



if they do not have unacceptable impacts on highway safety and fabric, the
convenience of other road users, and on community amenity;
where an appropriate standard of access and traffic routing is provided.

POLICY DC2 General criteria
Minerals and waste proposals must, where appropriate, demonstrate that:
a.
b.
c.
d
e.

assessments have been carried out, the relevant scope of which have been agreed in
advance with the planning authority, and proposals have been designed to address,
where relevant, impacts on the natural and historic environment or human health;
the cumulative effects of multiple impacts from individual sites and/or a number of
sites in the locality have been taken into account;
public rights of way or concessionary paths are not adversely affected, or if this is not
possible, either temporary or permanent alternative provision is made;
the overall carbon footprint of the development has been minimised;
issues of ground stability have been addressed including tip and quarry slope
stability, mining subsidence and differential settlement of backfill.

Considerations will include:










the proximity of sensitive receptors, including impacts on surrounding land uses, and
protected habitats and, species and landscapes;
how residual and/or mineral wastes will be managed;
the extent to which adverse effects can be controlled through sensitive siting and
design, or visual or acoustic screening;
the use of appropriate and well maintained and managed equipment;
phasing and duration of working;
progressive restoration;
hours of operations;
appropriate routes and volumes of traffic; and
other mitigation measures.

POLICY DC3 Noise
Noise attributable to minerals and waste developments should shall not exceed
background noise levels, LAeq 1 hour (free field) by more than 10dB(A) at noise sensitive
properties, subject to:




weekday daytime (0700 to 1900 hours) maximum of 55dB(A) LAeq 1 hour (free
field)
Saturday daytime (0700 to 1300) maximum of 55dB(A) LAeq 1 hour (free field)
evening (1900 to 2200 hours) maximum of 55dB(A) LAeq 1 hour (free field)

124



night time (2200 to 0700 hours) maximum of 42dB(A) LAeq 1 hour (free field)

Sunday, public/Bank holiday and night time working near to noise sensitive properties or
receptors should be avoided where practicable. Developments that are required to
operate at these times shall provide extensive noise mitigation measures and, when
operational, shall proactively seek to minimise noise throughout the life of the
development, based on the findings of comprehensive environmental noise monitoring. A
limit of 42dB (A) LAeq 1 hour (free field) shall apply.
It is recognised that some temporary activities, including soil stripping, construction and
removal of soil storage and baffle mounds, aspects of road construction and maintenance,
often bring longer-term environmental benefits. For such activities, increased temporary
weekday daytime noise level limits should not exceed 70dB(A) LAeq 1 hour (free field) for
periods up to eight weeks in a year at specified noise sensitive properties. Operators will
be expected to make every effort to deliver temporary works at a lower level of noise
impact.
Where tonal noise and/or peak and impulsive noise would contribute significantly to total
site noise, separate limits will be required independent of the background noise levels and
may include Lmax in specific octave or third-octave bands, and will not be allowed to occur
regularly at night.

POLICY DC4 Quarry blasting
Applications for new minerals and waste development, and for the expansion of existing
operations, will only be permitted where the applicant can provide evidence that the
proposed development will not have a demonstrable impact on vibration.
Ground vibration attributable to quarry blasting shall not exceed peak particle velocities of
6mm/second in any direction at sensitive properties.
The operator shall develop a regression line model which will be used to inform blast
design. Records of the detailed design of each blast shall be maintained and made
available to the mineral planning authority within two weeks of written request.
Records of the detailed design of each blast shall be maintained at the site for a period of
at least three months and be made available to the mineral planning authority on request.

POLICY DC5 Dust
Applications for new minerals and waste development, and for the expansion of existing
operations, will only be permitted where the applicant can provide evidence that the
proposed development will not have a demonstrable impact on amenity, human health, air
quality and the natural and historic environment, with regard to dust emissions. This will
include a dust assessment strategy.
Applications for developments must be accompanied by a dust assessment study. The
scope of the study should be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, but the study must:
identify sensitive receptors/locations; identify the existing baseline conditions at the
application site and the sensitive receptors; identify site activities that could lead to dust
emission; identify site parameters which may increase potential amenity impacts from dust;
and recommend mitigation measures and site design modifications. The study should also
include details of how the dust levels arising from the development would be monitored
during the operation of the site and how complaints relating to dust emissions will be
managed.

125

Applicants must first seek to remove dust emissions at their source. If this is not possible,
then the emissions must be controlled. Should neither option be possible, mitigation
measures must then be implemented. Planning applications should clearly set out what
measures to minimise the potential effects of dust from development sites on sensitive
receptors/locations are proposed.
If the development is expected to produce fine particulates (PM10 dust), additional measures
may need to be put in place if the actual source of emission is within 1,000m of any
residential property or other sensitive receptor/location (this distance may be revised due to
local circumstances).
All laden Heavy Good Vehicles entering/leaving a site should be sheeted to avoid dust
being emitted from the lorry load when transporting loose materials.
Deleted text to be moved into preceding text of the Plan
POLICY DC6 Cumulative environmental impacts
Cumulative impacts of minerals and waste development proposals will be assessed in the
light of other land-uses in the area. Considerations will include:
a. impacts on local communities;
ab. all environmental aspects including habitats and species, visual impact, landscape
character, cultural heritage, noise, air quality, ground and surface water resources and
quality, agricultural resources and flood risk;
bc. the impact of processing and other plant;
cd. the type, size and numbers of vehicles generated, from site preparation to final
restoration and their potential impacts on the transport network, safety and the
environment;
de. impacts on the wider economy and regeneration;
ef. impacts on local amenity, community health and areas for formal and informal
recreation.

POLICY DC7 Energy from waste
Development that would generate energy from waste will be permitted if they conform to the
all other relevant polices in this Plan and demonstrate that:





the proposal conforms to the waste hierarchy and does not prejudice the reduction, reuse or recycling of waste; and
the proposal contributes to a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions compared to the
feasible alternatives; and
there are appropriate storage facilities for waste and other potential feedstocks; and
the location and design maximises opportunities for waste heat utilisation.

Proposals utilising agricultural waste from more than one source as feedstock will be
favoured where the process maximises the use of waste and also the beneficial use of
digestates or other waste products.
No change

126

POLICY DC8 Renewable energy use to offset operational energy consumption on
minerals and waste sites
The County Council will support planning applications for the use of renewable and low
carbon energy installations on minerals and waste sites that :
a. conform to all other relevant policies of this Plan; and
b. do not adversely affect any the operations of the application site to an
unacceptable level, either individually or cumulatively, during either construction or
operation, and are compatible with appropriate restoration proposals for the site.
Proposals must also demonstrate that:








the proposal is part of a carbon reduction plan for the site’s operational activities
that prioritises energy saving and energy efficiency;
the stability of the site has been established through an appropriate site
investigation report;
excavated material would be dealt with appropriately;
in the case of planning applications for wind turbines, the micro-siting distance for
the turbines does not significantly affect the working operations of the site;
connections to the electricity distribution network would be feasible and not have
unacceptable adverse environmental impacts;
adequate measures would be put in place to remove ancillary structures and for
restoration of the site, should the site become non-operational;
appropriate mitigation can be applied to address any negative impacts and, if
appropriate, demonstrate that such mitigation measures can be secured by
Planning Conditions and Planning Obligations.

POLICY DC9 Criteria for waste management facilities
Proposals for waste management facilities that conform to all other relevant policies in this
Plan, will be permitted subject to the locational and other criteria set out in the table
below.
Proposals on other locations, or those that do not meet the key criteria, would need to be
justified under policy SP1.
a.

b.
c.

Facility Type
Scrapyards, vehicle
dismantlers,
materials
recovery
facilities or waste
transfer facilities
Household
Waste
Recycling Centres

Locations
Suitable existing or planned
industrial estates; or
Existing waste management
sites

Key Criteria
If no unacceptable impacts
on housing, business uses
or other sensitive land uses

Suitable existing or planned If no unacceptable impacts
industrial estates
on housing, business uses
or other sensitive land uses
Open windrow green Farms or open countryside Where adequate stand-off
waste composting
locations; or
distances
can
be
and
no
Existing peat extraction sites; established,
unacceptable impacts on
or
housing, business uses or
Isolated suitable industrial
other sensitive land uses
estates; or
Isolated waste management
sites

127

d.

e.

f.

g.

Enclosed composting As for c. above; or
facilities
Suitable industrial estates; or
Existing waste management
sites
Physical, chemical or Suitable industrial estates; or
biological
waste
treatment
Suitable farms or open
countryside locations; or

If no unacceptable impacts
on housing, business uses
or other sensitive land uses
If the development reduces
the potential of waste to
pollute the environment
If adverse environmental
impacts are minimised to
an acceptable level
If they do not prejudice
good operational standards
or the restoration scheme
If no unacceptable impacts
on housing, business uses
or other sensitive land uses
If they do not prejudice
good operational standards
or the restoration scheme

Non-inert landfill sites where
required for pre-treatment, or
for treatment of leachate
Construction
and Suitable industrial estates; or
demolition, mineral
or excavation waste
recycling
Active quarries and landfill
sites, i.e. not for periods
beyond the active life of the
site
Wastewater
Appropriate
locations
as If adverse environmental
treatment
required by the wastewater impacts are minimised to
infrastructure
network
an acceptable level

POLICY DC10 Criteria for landfill and landraise
Proposals for additional non-inert landfill capacity will only be permitted if they comply with
Strategic Policy SP3 Waste capacity, and will be required to demonstrate the measures that
have been taken to drive the wastes up the waste hierarchy, to reduce waste road miles,
and have comprehensive landfill gas management systems, including electricity generation
where viable.
All such proposals will also be assessed against environmental and community policies in
this Plan and, in addition, their proximity to sensitive receptors, including aerodromes.
Proposals involving landraising should comply with policy DC18.
Proposals for new or extended inert waste landfill will need to demonstrate that they will not
undermine the availability of such waste material for agreed restoration schemes at mineral
workings and landfills and for derelict land and do not conflict with the County Council’s
culverting policy as the Lead Local Flood Authority.

POLICY DC11 Inert waste for agricultural improvement
Residual inert waste that cannot be recycled should, as a first priority, be directed to landfill
engineering works, mineral workings or derelict land requiring fill for agreed restoration
schemes.
Proposals for the use of inert waste for the improvement or reclamation of agricultural land
will only be permitted if they can demonstrate that they:
a. will not undermine the availability of such waste for use in the type of schemes
described above;
b. will result in a material improvement to the grade or classification of agricultural land;
c. will use the minimum amount of material necessary;
d. will have no adverse impact on the drainage system or water quality (either coastal,

128

surface or groundwater) of the land which is the subject of the proposals or any land
outside the site; and
e. do not conflict with other policies in this Plan and with any relevant locational or site
specific policies.
No change
POLICY DC12 Criteria for non-energy minerals development
Proposals for non-energy minerals development inside the identified Preferred Areas will
be permitted if they do not conflict with other policies in this Plan.
Proposals for non-energy minerals development outside the Preferred Areas, whether an
a physical or time extension to an existing site or a new site, will be considered on their
individual merits. Criteria to be considered are:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

the need for the specific mineral
economic considerations;
positive and negative environmental impacts (including a strategic approach);
the cumulative impact of proposals in an area;
land stability.

Favourable consideration may also be given to proposals that can be demonstrated to be
more sustainable than any available alternative, including:




borrow pits to meet a specific demand not easily met from elsewhere;
building stone quarries, including to meet their need for stone to match local
vernacular building, and the conservation and repair of heritage assets and also for
local vernacular building;
areas already subject to minerals extraction where the additional working will enable
comprehensive exploitation of the reserves, or where the proposal achieves a more
sustainable afteruse or a better restoration of the area.

POLICY DC13 Criteria for energy minerals
Proposals for energy minerals developments that conform to the Strategic and other
Policies of this Local Plan will be supported subject to the following criteria:
Exploration and appraisal of hydrocarbons
Planning permission will be granted for proposals for exploration and appraisal of oil
and gas resources provided that:
a. the site and equipment is sited at a location where it can be demonstrated that it
will only not have any unacceptable environmental impacts; and
b. the proposal provides for appropriate baseline monitoring prior to commencement
of development; and
c. the timely restoration and subsequent aftercare of the site, whether or not oil or
gas is found.
Commercial production exploitation of hydrocarbons
Planning permission will be granted for proposals for commercial production of oil and
gas, provided that:
a. a full appraisal programme for the oil or gas field has been completed;
b. the proposed location is the most suitable, taking into account environmental,
geological and technical factors;

129

c. the cumulative impacts of the development of the gas field and essential
associated infrastructure have been assessed; and
d. provision is made for mitigation or compensation for significantly adverse impacts
on the environment and communities.
Combined planning applications for more than one phase will only be considered if all
relevant information, including environmental information, to support the full extent of the
application is provided.
Underground Coal Gasification
The criteria set out above in this policy, for exploration and appraisal and commercial
production, will also apply to proposals for onshore surface works or ancillary
development to support offshore Underground Coal Gasification (UCG). Where a UCG
proposal follows a planning permission for coal extraction only, a separate planning
application will be required for development related to UCG.
Coal
Planning applications for coal extraction will only be granted where;
 the proposal is environmentally acceptable; or
 can be made so by planning conditions or obligations; or, if not
 provides national, local or community benefits which clearly outweigh the likely
impacts to justify the grant of planning permission.
For underground coal mining, potential impacts to be considered and mitigated for will
include subsidence and the disposal of colliery spoil. Provision of sustainable transport
will be encouraged, as will Coal Mine Methane capture and utilisation.

POLICY DC14

Review of mMineral pPermissions

In aAll applications for initial or and periodic reviews of minerals developments
permissions, should demonstrate that appropriate environmental and working standards
of operation consistent with present day standards must will be achieved, which by:




minimiseing impacts on the environment and communities; and
realise the potential to achieve significant providing environmental enhancements
through; including
enhanced restoration and after-use schemes.

POLICY DC15 Minerals safeguarding
The Mineral Planning Authority will safeguard those mineral resources that are shown on
the Policies Map. Within those areas, the Mineral Planning Authority District Councils
should be consulted by the Local Planning Authorities County Council on any planning
applications they receive for non-minerals development, which fall within the boundary of
a Minerals Consultation Area, and which that would be likely to affect the winning and
working of minerals. Where a development site overlies or would sterilise mineral
resources, their prior extraction will be permitted as long as it can be achieved:
a. without prejudicing the development, and
b. completed within a reasonable timescale, and
c. without unacceptable environmental impacts.

130

All non-minerals development proposals within the Mineral Safeguarding Area should
extract any viable mineral resources present, in advance of construction. Proposals for
non-mineral development within the Mineral Safeguarding Areas that do not allow for the
prior extraction of minerals will only be permitted where:
1.
2.

3.
4.
5.

the need for the development outweighs the need to extract the mineral; or
it can be clearly demonstrated that it is not environmentally acceptable or
economically viable to extract the mineral prior to non-mineral development taking
place; or
it can be clearly demonstrated that the mineral is either not present or of no economic
value or too deep to extract in relation to the proposed development; or
the development would not prevent minerals extraction taking place in the future; or
the development within the Mineral Safeguarding Area is exempt, as set out in the
exemption list in Table 15.X.

POLICY DC16 Biodiversity and geodiversity
Proposals for minerals and waste developments, including ones for ROMP applications and
time extensions the renewal of existing planning permissions, will be required to identify:



their likely impacts on important biodiversity and geological conservation assets, as
defined in the Strategic Policies and on functional ecological and green infrastructure
networks, and
their potential to enhance, restore or add to these resources, and
to contribute to national and local biodiversity and geodiversity objectives and targets.

Proposals for developments within, or affecting the features or settings of such resources,
should demonstrate that:
a. the need for, and benefits of, the development and the reasons for locating the
development in its proposed location and alternatives, have been considered;
b. appropriate measures to mitigate any adverse effects (direct, indirect and cumulative)
have been identified and secured, and advantage has been taken of opportunities to
incorporate beneficial biodiversity and geological conservation features; or
c. where adverse impacts cannot be avoided or mitigated for, that appropriate
compensatory measures have been identified and secured; and
d. that all mitigation, enhancement or compensatory measures are compatible with the
characteristics of, and features within, Cumbria.

POLICY DC17 Historic environment
In accordance with NPPF paragraphs 126 to 141:
Proposals for waste management developments that would result in the harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, or an undesignated heritage asset that is
demonstrably of equivalent importance to a designated heritage asset, or its setting, will
not be permitted unless the asset and setting can be conserved in situ.
Proposals for waste management developments or mineral developments that would
result in the harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, or an undesignated
heritage asset that is demonstrably of equivalent importance to a designated heritage
asset, or its setting, will not be permitted unless it can be demonstrated that the harm is
necessary to achieve public benefits, in cases of less than substantial harm to the

131

significance of assets, or substantial public benefits, in cases of substantial harm to the
significance of assets that outweigh the harm, or the asset and setting can be conserved
in situ.
Any proposals that cause substantial harm to the outstanding universal value of the
Frontiers of the Roman Empire - Hadrian’s Wall World Heritage Site, a Scheduled
Monument, a grade I or II* Listed Building, the Solway Moss Registered Battlefield or a
grade I or II* Registered Park and Garden, will only be permitted in wholly exceptional
circumstances. Proposals that cause substantial harm to a grade II Listed Building, a
grade II Registered Park and Garden and a Conservation Area, will only be permitted in
exceptional circumstances.
Any proposals that affect a non-designated heritage asset or its setting will be judged on
the significance of the heritage asset and the scale of the harm.
Any heritage asset, whether designated or not, that is harmed by a proposal, will need to
be recorded by the developer to a level that is proportionate to its significance and to the
scale of impact of the proposal. The information will need to be made publically
accessible in the County's Historic Environment Record.
Proposals that will have an impact on any heritage asset or its setting, whether
designated or not, should be accompanied by an assessment of the significance of the
heritage asset and how that significance will be affected by the proposed development.
The level of information required will be proportionate to the asset's significance and to
the scale of impact of the proposal, and may require, where necessary, archaeological
field investigation.

POLICY DC18 Landscape and visual impact
Proposals for development should be compatible with the distinctive characteristics and
features of Cumbria's landscapes and should:
a. avoid significant adverse impacts on the natural and historic landscape;
b. use Landscape Character Assessment to assess the capacity of landscapes to accept
development, to inform the appropriate scale and character of such development, and
guide restoration where development is permitted;
c. in appropriate cases, use the Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment to assess and integrate these issues into the development process;
d. ensure that development proposals avoid significant adverse visual impacts and
consider the effects on: locally distinctive natural or built features; scale in relation to
landscape features; public access and community value of the landscape; historic
patterns and attributes; and openness and remoteness;
e. ensure high quality design of modern waste facilities to minimise their impact on the
landscape, or views from sensitive areas, and to contribute to the built environment;
f. direct minerals and waste developments to less sensitive locations, wherever this is
possible, and ensure that sensitive siting and high quality design prevent significant
adverse impacts on the principal local characteristics of the landscape including views
to or from, and the setting of, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, the Heritage
Coast, or National Parks or World Heritage Sites.

132

POLICY DC19 Flood risk
All proposed minerals and waste management developments should be located using the
sequential tests set out in chapter 7 of the Planning Practice Guidance. Developments
should be located, wherever possible, in areas with the lowest probability of flooding (Zone
1).
A site-specific flood risk assessment is required for proposals of 1 hectare or greater in
Flood Zone 1, and is also required for: all proposals for new development (including minor
development and change of use) in Flood Zones 2 and 3, or in an area within Flood Zone 1
which has critical drainage problems (as notified to the local planning authority by the
Environment Agency); and where proposed development or a change of use to a more
vulnerable class may be subject to other sources of flooding.
When undertaking a flood risk assessment, account must be taken of the flood vulnerability
of the development (Table 16.x) and where the Exception Test is required:•

sand and gravel workings are water-compatible development and may be appropriate
in the functional flood plain (Zone 3b);
sewage transmission infrastructure and pumping stations are water-compatible
development and may be appropriate in the functional flood plain (Zone 3b);
docks and wharves are water-compatible development (Zone 3b);
certain mineral workings and processing may be appropriate in areas of high
probability (Zone 3a);
waste treatment facilities (except landfill and for hazardous wastes) may be
appropriate in areas of high probability (Zone 3a);
sewage treatment plants may be appropriate, if adequate pollution control measures
are in place, in areas of high probability (Zone 3a);
water treatment works that do not need to remain operational during times of flood
(Zone 3a);
landfills and sites used for hazardous waste management facilities may be appropriate
in areas of medium probability (Zone 2).

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Exceptions Minerals and waste development to the policy will only be permitted if it has
been demonstrated that:a.

it is demonstrated that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to the
community that of the development outweigh the flood risk and contribute to
sustainability development; or
b. development is on developable brownfield land or there are no reasonable alternative
sites on developable brownfield land; and
cb. flood risk assessment demonstrates that the development will be safe for its lifetime,
taking account of the vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere
and, where possible, will reduce flood risk overall.
Minerals and waste developments that reduce flood risk downstream of the proposal would
be supported.
Minerals and waste development proposals should incorporate sustainable drainage
systems unless they are demonstrated to be inappropriate.
POLICY DC20 The water environment
Proposals for developments should demonstrate that they would have no unacceptable
quantitative or qualitative adverse effects on the water environment, both within the
application site and its surroundings, including surface waters, coastal waters, private
water supplies and groundwater resources. Proposals that minimise water use and

133

include sustainable water management will be favoured.

POLICY DC21 Protection of soil resources
Proposals for minerals and waste development will be required to demonstrate that:
a.
b.

the long-term potential of Best and Most Versatile agricultural land will be safeguarded;
soil resources are conserved and maintained in viable condition to be used in
restoration of the site; or
c. where developments are permanent and restoration is not envisaged, that soil
resources are used effectively on undeveloped areas of the site, or used appropriately
on other suitable sites.
No change
POLICY DC22 Restoration and afteruse
Proposals for minerals extraction, or for temporary waste facilities such as landfill, shall
should be accompanied by detailed proposals restoration and aftercare proposals with
sufficient detail to clearly demonstrate that the overall objectives of the scheme are
practically achievable, including a vision for overall restoration of the site, and to includeing
proposals for appropriate afteruse and the means to achieve it, financial provision and long
term management, where necessary. Restoration and enhancement measures should
maximise their contributions to national and local biodiversity objectives and targets,
including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current
and future pressures. The level of detail required will depend on the circumstances of each
specific site including the expected duration of operations on the site. In all cases,
restoration schemes must demonstrate that the land is stable and that the risk of future
collapse of any mine workings has been minimised.
After-uses that enhance biodiversity, geodiversity and the environment, conserve soil
resources, conserve and enhance the historic environment, increase public access,
minimise the impacts of global warming and are appropriate for the landscape character of
the area, will be encouraged. These could include: nature conservation, agriculture, leisure
and recreation, green infrastructure and woodland.
Where sites accord with other policies in the Plan, an alternative or mixed afteruse that
would support long term management, farm diversification, renewable energy schemes,
tourism or employment land, may be acceptable.
All proposals must demonstrate that:
a.

for agricultural, forestry, nature conservation and amenity afteruses, there is an
aftercare management programme of at least 5 years, but longer where required to
ensure that the restoration scheme is established;
b. the restoration is appropriate for the landscape character and wildlife interest of the
area, and measures to protect, restore and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity
conservation features are practical, of a high quality appropriate to the area and
secure their long-term safeguarding and maintenance;
c. the restoration scheme is compatible with neighbouring land uses;
cd. restoration will be completed within a reasonable timescale and is progressive as far
as practicable;
de. provision for the likely financial and material budgets for the agreed restoration,
aftercare and afteruse will be made during the operational life of the site;
ef. restoration and aftercare (or reclamation) will be undertaken using industry best
practice.

134

Once peat workings have become non-operational, they should be restored to peat
regeneration wherever possible feasible using best practicable measures. Where such regeneration is not demonstrably feasible, the detailed restoration scheme should minimise
carbon loss and maximise both habitat re-creation and carbon sequestration capacity
across the site.
POLICY SAP1
AL37
SL1B

Household waste recycling centres (HWRC) (sites of around 0.5 to
1.0 ha)

Lillyhall industrial estate to replace the HWRCs at Clay Flatts, Workington, and at
Frizington
Land adjacent to Kendal Fell Quarry, to replace the HWRC at Canal Head

No change
POLICY SAP2
AL3
AL8
AL18
CA11
CA30
CA31
CO11
ED31

Waste treatment and management facilities (sites of around 2 to 4
ha)

Oldside, Workington
Lillyhall Waste Treatment Centre, Workington
Port of Workington
Willowholme, Carlisle
Kingmoor Road recycling centre, Carlisle
Kingmoor Park East, Carlisle
Bridge End Industrial Estate, Egremont
Flusco waste management site, near Penrith

boundary of CA30 changes
POLICY SAP3 Low level rRadioactive wastes (LLW) treatment, management, storage
and disposal
Unless it can be demonstrated that it is no longer required, the capacity for LLW treatment,
management, storage and/or disposal of currently permitted radioactive wastes will be
safeguarded over the Plan period at the following existing sites:
•
•
•
•

Sellafield/Windscale complex (including former Windscale site)
Low Level Waste Repository
Studsvik metal processing complex
Lillyhall landfill

The following sites are considered to be suitable locations for additional capacity, subject to
the granting of planning permission:
1.
•
•
2.
•
•

CO35 The Low Level Waste Repository, near Drigg
higher activity LLW storage and/or disposal, within highly engineered containment
facilities;
lower activity LLW storage and/or disposal, outwith highly engineered containment
facilities
CO36 Land within Sellafield
CO32 Land adjacent to Sellafield
lower activity LLW disposal;
lower activity LLW long-term storage, linked to an approved site decommissioning
strategy

135

POLICY SAP4 Areas for minerals
Preferred areas
M18
M12
M27

Stamphill, Long Marton, for gypsum
Roosecote sand and gravel quarry extension, Barrow-in-Furness
land adjacent to Roosecote sand and gravel quarry, Barrow-in-Furness

Areas of Search
M5
land adjacent to High Greenscoe Quarry, near Dalton-in-Furness, for brickmaking
mudstones
M6
land between Overby and High House sand and gravel quarries, near Abbeytown
M8
land adjacent to Cardewmires sand and gravel quarry, near Dalston
M10 land adjacent to Silvertop limestone quarry, near Brampton
M11 land adjacent to Kirkhouse sand and gravel quarry, near Brampton
M12 land near to Roosecote sand and gravel quarry, Barrow-in-Furness
M14 land adjacent to Kirkby Slate Quarry, near Kirkby-in-Furness
M15 land adjacent to Peel Place sand and gravel quarry, near Gosforth
M16 land adjacent to Holmescales high specification roadstone quarry, near Kendal
M17 land adjacent to Ghyll Scaur very high specification roadstone quarry, near Millom
M30 land adjacent to Roan Edge high specification roadstone quarry, near New Hutton
Sites for secondary or recycled aggregates facilities
In addition to existing recycling facilities at waste management sites and elsewhere, the
hard rock quarries are considered to be suitable locations for processing alternative
aggregates from their quarry wastes and from recycled aggregates.
POLICY SAP5 Mineral Safeguarding Areas
These are defined for sand and gravel, limestone, high purity limestone, igneous rocks,
sandstone, shallow coal, fireclay and gypsum in accordance with the geological resources
maps included within the British Geological Survey Technical Report WF/01/02 Mineral
Resource Information for Development Plans: Cumbria and the Lake District.
A Mineral Safeguarding Area is also defined for the Wray Castle slate formation.
M24 Derwent Howe Slag Bank, Workington, is a Mineral Safeguarding Area for its
resource of secondary aggregate.
POLICY SAP56

Safeguarding of existing and potential railheads and wharves

AL18
Port of Workington and railhead
AL32
Siddick potential rail sidings
AL38
Innovia rail sidings, Wigton
AL39
Silloth Port
BA26 Barrow Port and rail sidings, Barrow
CO35 Low Level Waste Repository rail spur, Drigg (within LLWR site allocation)
CO36 Sellafield site rail spur (within Sellafield site allocation)
M31
Salthouse, near Millom, potential rail sidings for Ghyll Scaur Quarry
M34
Kingmoor rail sidings, Carlisle
M35
Shap Beck Quarry rail sidings, Shap
M36
Shapfell Quarry rail sidings, Shap
M37
Shap Blue Quarry rail sidings, Shap
M38
Kirkby Thore gypsum works rail sidings, Kirkby Thore
no change

136

Agenda Item 11
CABINET
Meeting date:
From:

24 March 2016

Interim Corporate Director – Health and Care
Services

BETTER CARE FUND (BCF)
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report asks for the Cabinet to agree delegations for the sign-off of the
2016/17 Better Care Fund (BCF).

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

This report primarily relates to four of the Council Plan priorities:





To enable communities to live safely and shape services locally
To promote health and wellbeing, and tackle poverty
To support older and vulnerable people to live independent and
healthy lives
To be a modern, efficient Council

The report also relates to the Cumbria County Council Commissioning
Strategy for Care and Support delivered by Adult Social Care 2016-20
and the Cumbria Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-19 and is
fundamental to the delivery of both.
3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

Cabinet agrees to delegate to the Interim Corporate Director – Health
and Care Services, in consultation with the Leader, the Deputy Leader
and the cabinet members for Health and Care Services, and Public
Health and Community Services, authority to approve on behalf of
Cumbria County Council the submission of the 2016-17 Better Care
Fund.

137

ADVICE OF INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR – HEALTH AND CARE
SERVICES
4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Better Care Fund is a financial incentive for the integration of health and social
care. It requires Clinical Commissioning Groups and local authorities in every single
area to pool budgets and to agree an integrated spending plan for how they will use
their Better Care Fund allocation.

4.2

Current health and care approaches have evolved to respond reactively to changes in
an individual’s health or ability to look after themselves, and they often do not meet
people’s expectations for person-centred co-ordinated care. Greater integration is
seen as a potential way to use resources more efficiently, in particular by reducing
avoidable hospital admissions and facilitating early discharge.

4.3

In 2016-17, the Better Care Fund will be increased to a mandated minimum of £3.9
billion to be deployed locally on health and social care through pooled budget
arrangements between local authorities and Clinical Commissioning Groups. In
Cumbria this amounts to £40,770,381. The local flexibility to pool more than the
mandatory amount will remain.

4.4

From 2017-18, the government will make funding available to local authorities,
worth £1.5 billion by 2019-20, to be included in the Better Care Fund. For 2016-17,
it is important that Better Care Fund plans are aligned to other programmes of work
including the new models of care as set out in the NHS Five Year Forward View and
delivery of 7-day services.

4.5

The Spending Review set out an ambitious plan so that by 2020 health and social
care are integrated across the country. Every part of the country must have a plan for
this in 2017, implemented by 2020. Areas will be able to graduate from the existing
Better Care Fund programme management once they can demonstrate that they have
moved beyond its requirements

4.6

It was anticipated that allocations, planning guidance and technical advice would be
issued by NHS England by Christmas, and Clinical Commissioning Group, Local
Authorities and Health and Wellbeing Boards would be briefed as to process and
expectations by the BCF national team in a similar timeframe.

4.7

However, NHS England did not release this information until the 24th February
resulting in very tight planning timescales.

4.8

Health and Wellbeing Boards have to submit the 2016-17 proposals by the 25th
April. These also have to be agreed by the Clinical Commissioning Group and the
County Council.

4.9

Given the lateness of the announcement from NHS England, the submission will be
in the process of being prepared and going through assurance mechanisms up until
the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 19th April where final approval will be
sought. It will therefore not be possible to bring the sign-off to the March cabinet
meeting and the April cabinet meeting falls after the submission deadline.

138

4.10

Delegation is therefore being sought to allow the County Council to sign-off the
BCF proposal before it is submitted by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

4.11

Once approved on behalf of Cumbria County Council the submission will be
executed by the Corporate Director – Health and Care Services.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Cabinet could decide to agree the recommendation and the delegation of
decision making.

5.2

Cabinet could decide to not agree the recommendation. However, this
would either require and additional Cabinet meeting or could result in a
failure to complete the 2016-17 BCF submission.

5.3

Cabinet could decide to amend the recommendation and agree different
delegations.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

This report concerns the Council’s governance arrangements in relation to
final approval of the Better Care Fund (BCF) plan and therefore has no
direct financial implications.

6.2

The Council’s revenue Budget 2016/17 assumes £20.5m of the Better Care
Fund will support Council services.

6.3

With specific regards to financial governance the Council’s Section 151
Officer is a member of the Joint Commissioning Board which is leading the
production of the BCF plan. The Section 151 Officer will therefore approve
the financial components of the BCF plan prior to final Council approval
regardless of the method used to secure final approval.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Paragraph 2.1(j) of Part 2B of the Constitution authorises Cabinet to agree
strategies and plans which do not form part of the Policy Framework and are
not delegated to the Corporate Directors. The Better Care Fund plan is such
a plan.

7.2

Cabinet may delegate responsibility for its functions in accordance with
paragraph 1.4 of Part 5B of the Constitution.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

The Better Care Fund provides funding for integrated services between
social care and the NHS. It also underpins the council’s revenue budget.

139

Approving the proposed delegations will allow the County Council to sign-off
the 2016-17 within the timescales as set out by NHS England.
Sally Burton
Interim Corporate Director – Health and Care Services
24 March 2016
APPENDICES
None
Electoral Division(s):

All

Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and the Corporate Director has obtained the
necessary approvals.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
No
BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

140

RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER
Patricia Bell – Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance
Beth Furneaux – Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care.
Ian Stewart – Cabinet Member for Public Health and Community Services
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact:

Derek Houston, 07771 975902, derek.houston@cumbria.gov.uk

141

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
CABINET
Meeting date:
From:

24 March 2016

Corporate Director Children’s Services

APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY GOVERNORS
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

In May 2014, the government passed new regulations, The School
Governance (Constitution and Federations) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2014 (“The 2014 Regulations”) relating to the
Constitution of Governing Bodies (not Academies) which came into
force on 31 August 2014.

1.2

The 2014 Regulations required all schools to review their
constitution in line with the ‘The School Governance’ (Constitution)
(England) Regulations 2012 (“The 2012 Regulations”). Schools had
until September 2015 to reconstitute and the majority have now
completed this.

1.3

To support this work the local authority:
1.3.1 Notified all schools of the need to review their Instrument of
Government and ensure that their constitution comply with the
2012 Regulations.
1.3.2 Worked with governing bodies to inform governor elections so
that they are clear on the extent to which nominated
candidates possess the skills the governing body ideally
requires, including the skills and knowledge to be an effective
LA Governor.
1.3.3 Worked with governing bodies to manage the transition period,
especially where there are more local authority governors than
required.
1.3.4 Reviewed the administration of procedures by Governor
Support and Democratic Services to ensure an efficient
change from the previous process of appointment to one of
nomination and speedy filling of vacancies.

1.4

This report outlines the progress to-date and the responsibilities for
the nomination of and appointment of LA Governors.

143

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

These proposals support the delivery of the Council Plan in the
following areas:


To safeguard children, and ensure that Cumbria is a great place
to be a child and grow up by providing local services to meet the
needs of children with Cumbria.

2.2

This is achieved by the support for high quality leadership of schools
through support for school governance.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

Cabinet to note the 2014 Regulations pertaining to school
governance and in particular the position in relation to the
appointment of LA Governors in maintained schools.

3.2

Cabinet to note the current process the Governor Support Team
undertake in support of this work and make further
recommendations, as appropriate.

ADVICE OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR – CHILDREN’S SERVICES
4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The Local Authority discharges its duties to appoint LA governors to all
maintained school GBs through the process outlined below.

4.2

Local Authority governors have the same responsibilities and
accountabilities as other school governors, however they are expected to
be an active representative of the local authority on the governing body
and to provide appropriate feedback to the local authority. This feedback
supports the local authorities’ role in supporting schools and ensuring
effective governance.

4.3

The Governor Support Team also support maintained school and
federation Governing Bodies to ensure that appropriate instruments of
Governance are in place and that school governors have access to
relevant training and information to enable them to effectively discharge
their duties.

4.4

The strengthening of school governance is also a key strand of
development within our partnership of the Cumbria Alliance of System
Leaders (CASL).

144

4.5

The majority of LA maintained schools have now reconstituted under the
2012 Regulations. There are 15 schools (6%) remaining, all of whom are
in the process of completing this work. There are no schools that need to
appoint a Local Authority governor under the pre-Sept 2015 process.

4.6

The most significant implications for the local authority are that, for its
maintained schools (not Academies)
4.6.1 All governing bodies are required to have one, and only one, Local
Authority governor.
4.5.2 The school’s governing body is able to:





Prescribe the skills and experience it is seeking in its Local
Authority Governor;
Set additional eligibility criteria for nomination;
Offer the Local Authority a nominee; and
Have the right to reject a Local Authority nomination, if they
believe that the nominee does not meet their criteria.

4.5.2 The local authority is therefore able to nominate, but not appoint,
the Local Authority governor. The Local Authority governor will be
appointed by the school’s governing body. Conversely, the
governing body may suggest a name to the LA, but they cannot
formally nominate an individual for appointment.
4.6

Academy schools may choose to appoint an Authority governor. It is
recommended that the procedure followed is consistent with that followed
for maintained schools.

4.7

There is no prescription about the procedure the local authority adopts for
making nominations. In addressing the changes required through the new
regulations, there has been an opportunity to reflect on the efficiency and
effectiveness of our processes to ensure that:
 Liaison with schools’ governing bodies is efficient;
 Vacancies are filled as quickly as possible;
 The most suitable people are appointed in accordance with the skills
requirement under the 2012 Regulations, and
 The Local Authority has a countywide and consistent process that is
open to scrutiny.

4.8

In developing a revised procedure for the appointment of LA Governors,
consideration has been given both to the statutory duty of the LA and the
need for effective communication to all relevant parties. Local Committees
contributed to this discussion as part of awareness raising over the
change in regulations.

4.9

The procedure outlined below is supported by a shared form containing all
necessary details, see Appendix A (LA Governor Nomination Form).

145

4.9.1 Recommended process:













‘LA Governor Appointment Form’ available on Governor
Support Team (GST) website;
School Governing Body (GB) completes relevant details on
form when vacancy arises;
GB emails form to GST;
GST checks information provided; returns to school if
incomplete; forwards to Area Manager if complete;
Area Manager informs Councillor(s) of vacancies and
forwards form to them;
Area Manager lists vacancies on Local Committee agenda;
Nomination considered at subsequent Local Committee;
Candidate nominated and relevant section on form
completed;
Area Manager returns form to GST;
GST forward form to school GB;
At GB meeting, nominee is appointed if nominee is believed
to meet skill and experience required and relevant section on
form completed;
GB forwards completed form to GST to be logged on
database.

4.9.2 Rationale for this process:





All necessary information is contained on one form;
The form is readily available;
All relevant parties are involved in the process;
GST provides a check at appropriate stages to reduce any
potential delay in the process.

4.9.3 Situations where this process may vary:



Where a school has no candidate to propose, that section in
Appendix A will remain blank and can be completed by the
relevant Councillor, should they have a suitable nominee;
If a discrepancy arises between a candidate proposed by a
school and a preferred nominee from the relevant Councillor,
the Area Manager will liaise with both parties to resolve the
matter.

4.10 There is no appeal mechanism in legislation for situations where the
governing body choose not to appoint a nominee when it is believed the nominee
does not have the skills and experience required by the governing body. Where
this situation arises the Area Manager will seek to resolve the issue. If the
governing body maintain the view that the nominee does not have the required
skills and experience the local authority can make an alternative nomination.

146

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

This report is for information, no decision is required, however further
recommendation for improvement of the support process are welcomed.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Council provides Governor Support through officers in the Learning
Improvement Team within the Early Help and Learning Service. The
budget for this service is £0.094m. This service is funded through the
Council’s budget and cannot be attributed to the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) in accordance with Schedule 1 of the Schools and Early Years
Finance Regulations (2014).

6.2

The revised procedure for appointing Governors outlined within this report
has no financial consequence to the Council’s budget.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The revised procedure for appointing Local Authority Governors outlined
within this report is legally compliant and meets the requirements of The
School Governance (Constitution and Federations) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2014.

7.2

As section 4.5 above clarifies, only the Local Authority can nominate
candidates and only the governing body can appoint. The new regulations
make it clear that any governor selection should be based on the skills and
experience required by the governing body and the revised procedure
described above facilitates this.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report provides highlights the recent regulatory change to school
governance, the progress of schools undertaking this and provides
opportunity for Cabinet to comment on the current county council
procedures for supporting the appointment of LA Governors.

John Macilwraith
Corporate Director Children’s Services
26th January 2016

APPENDICES
Appendix A - Local Authority Governor Nomination Form

147

Executive Decision

No*

Key Decision

No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?

N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

No*

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

N/A*

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

No*

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A*

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A*

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision
is urgent and exempt from call-in and the Corporate Director has obtained the
necessary approvals.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
No previous relevant decisions.
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.
BACKGROUND PAPERS
None
RESPONSIBLE CABINET MEMBER
Clare Feeney-Johnson, cabinet Member for Schools and Learning
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Alan Lindsay - Senior Manager, Learning Improvement
Tel:
07971 446054
e-mail:
alan.lindsay@cumbria.gov.uk

148

Appendix A
Local Authority Governor Nomination Form
NAME OF SCHOOL

PROPOSED CANDIDATE

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE
(as required by governing body)

NOMINEE AGREED BY LOCAL
COMMITTEE

DATE

NAME OF PERSON APPOINTED

DATE APPOINTED BY GB

149

This page is intentionally left blank

